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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

In addition to historical information, this Annugkport on Form 10-K contains forward-looking sta¢ats within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as aneeindr the Securities Act, and Section 21E of theuBities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, or the Exchange Act, including statenteg@rding our business, our financial position,rfmearch and development of
biopharmaceutical products based on our patentefl @ivery technologies, and other statements dldsgrour goals, expectations,
intentions or beliefs. Such statements reflectoourent views and assumptions and are subjecskie &nd uncertainties, particularly those
inherent in the process of developing and commiirig biopharmaceutical products based on ourrgateDNA delivery technologies.
Actual results could differ materially from thosiseclssed in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Factbat could cause or contribute to such
differences include, but are not limited to, thaentified in Item 1A entitled “Risk Factors” begiimg on page 25 of this report, as well as
those discussed in our other filings with the Siiesrand Exchange Commission, or SEC, including@uarterly Reports on Form 10-Q. As a
result, you are cautioned not to unduly rely orséhforward-looking statements. We disclaim any dotypdate any forward-looking statement
to reflect events or circumstances that occur #dfedate on which such statement is made.
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PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

We research and develop biopharmaceutical prodhactsd on our patented DNA delivery technologiesHermprevention and treatment
of serious or life-threatening diseases. We beltaedollowing areas of research offer the gregtestntial for neaterm commercialization fc
us and our partners:

. Vaccines for use in hi¢risk populations for infectious disease targetsafbich there are significant neet

. Vaccines for general pediatric, adolescent andtguydulations for infectious disease applicatic

. Cancer vaccines or immunotherapies that complemengxisting programs and core expertise;

. Genebased delivery of therapeutic proteins, such agogegic growth factors for treatment of cardiovdacudiseases

We currently have three active independent cliréeel preclinical development programs in the acdasfectious disease and cancer
including:

. A fully enrolled ongoing Phase 3 clinical trial ngiour Allovectin® immunotherapeutic in patientstwitetastatic melanoma which
has been funded, up to certain limits, by AnGes M@, or AnGes, through cash payments and equitystments under a resea
and development agreeme

. A completed preclinical program, with an allowegdstigational new drug application, or IND, using €yMVectin™
prophylactic vaccine formulated with our proprigt&faxfectin® adjuvant to prevent cytomegalovirus, or CMV, infeatbefore ani
during pregnancy; ar

. A preclinical program with therapeutic and propleyievaccines for herpes simplex virus type 2, &2, formulated with our
proprietary Vaxfectir® adjuvant.

We have leveraged our patented technologies thrbegsing and collaboration arrangements, suauadicensing arrangements with
Astellas Pharma Inc., or Astellas, Merck & Co.,.Jrar Merck, Sanofi, AnGes, Aqua Health Ltd. of @da, or Aqua Health, an affiliate of
Novartis Animal Health, and Merial Limited, or Malj a subsidiary of Sanofi, among other biopharmtical companies

In addition, we have licensed complementary teabgiiek from leading research institutions and bioplaaeutical companies. We also
have granted non-exclusive, academic licensesnt®iA delivery technology patent estate to 11 legdiesearch institutions including
Stanford, Harvard, Yale and the Massachusettguitstdf Technology, or MIT. The non-exclusive aaadelicenses allow university
researchers to use our technology free of changediacational and internal, non-commercial reseptoposes. In exchange, we have the
option to exclusively license from the universitpstential commercial applications arising fromithese of our technology on terms to be
negotiated.

Available Information

We were incorporated in Delaware in 1987. Our AhiReport on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form@,Current Reports on Fol
8-K, and amendments to these reports filed or filned pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Bmgk Act, are available free of charge on
our website at www.vical.coms soon as reasonably practicable after such seeapd amendments are electronically filed withuonished to
the SEC. We also make available copies of our melgases and other financial information aboutruswr website.
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Our Core Technology

The key discovery leading to our patented core DidAvery technology was that muscle tissues caa tgkpolynucleotide genetic
material, such as DNA or RNA, directly, without thee of viral components or other delivery vehidesechnologies, and subsequently
express the proteins encoded by the genetic miferiperiods ranging from weeks to more than ary®ar approach typically involves
designing and constructing closed loops of DNAeathplasmids, or pDNAs. These pDNAs contain a DNgnsent encoding the protein of
interest, as well as short segments of DNA thatrobprotein expression. Plasmids can be manufadtusing uniform methods of fermentai
and processing. This could result in faster devalkapt and production times than technologies thatire development of product-specific
manufacturing processes.

Since the initial discovery of our DNA delivery tewlogy, our researchers have improved the dedignrgplasmids to provide increases
in efficiency of gene expression and immunogenidityaddition, we continue to develop formulatioadjuvants, and delivery technologies,
including the use of lipid molecules, syntheticymoérs called poloxamers and other approaches @mneetDNA expression or increase the
immune response to DNA vaccines. We own broad paigihts in the United States and in key foreigrrkags to certain non-viral
polynucleotide delivery technologies. Our patemis patent applications cover, for example, DNAdsly for immunization and delivery of
therapeutic proteins, specific DNA constructs asminulations of gene-based product candidates, rdstfay producing pharmaceutical-grade
DNA, and several families of lipid molecules andittuses in DNA delivery. Benefits of our DNA dediy technologies may include the
following, which may enable us to offer novel tmaant alternatives for diseases that are curreiitylp addressed:

. Broad Applicability. Our DNA delivery technologies may be useful iveleping vaccines for infectious diseases, in whtieh
expressed protein induces an immune response; tierapies for cancer, in which the expressed pragean immune system
stimulant or tumor suppressor; and therapeuticepmatelivery, in which the expressed protein iberapeutic agen

. Convenienct.. Our DNA-based biopharmaceutical product candidates anedateto be administered on an outpatient b

. Safety. Our product candidates contain no infectious comepts that may cause unwanted immune respongegjons, or
malignant and permanent changes in the targeté&s’ genetic makeuy

. Repeat Administratio. Our product candidates contain no infectious comepts that may preclude multiple dosing with @len
product or use in multiple produc

. Ease of Manufacturin. Our product candidates are manufactured usinfgumifermentation and purification procedures;

. Cost-EffectivenessOur DNA delivery technologies may be more co$afve than other approaches. They may also dauser
potential side effects, which may reduce per patieatment cost:

Applications of DNA Technology
Our DNA delivery technology is currently being daged by us and our partners in four broad areapplication:

Infectious Diseases

DNA vaccines use portions of the genetic code médithogen to cause the host to produce proteitsegiathogen that may induce an
immune response. Compared with conventional vasdimat use live, weakened, or dead pathogens thupecan immune response, this
method potentially offers superior safety and edsaanufacturing, as well as convenient storageteamdlling characteristics. DNA vaccines
have the potential to induce potent T-cell respsrgrinst target pathogens as well as trigger ptmauof antibodies. Over the past decade,
many scientific publications have documented tliectizeness of DNA vaccines in contributing to
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immune responses in dozens of species, includéig fionhuman primates and humans. We believe ianosteps in the validation of DNA
vaccines occurred in 2005 when our licensee Aquathieeceived Canadian approval to market its petgry product, Ape® -IHN, a DNA
vaccine to protect farmaised salmon against infectious hematopoieticagsvirus, or IHNV, and again in late 2009, whein icensee Meri:
received approval from the U.S. Department of Agtioe to sell a therapeutic DNA vaccine, ONCEPTesigned to aid in extending the
survival time of dogs with oral melanoma.

Vaccines are generally recognized as the mosteaftesttive approach for infectious disease healthddowever, the technical limitations
of conventional vaccine approaches have constralreedevelopment of effective vaccines for mangakes. Development of vaccines based
on conventional methods requires significant irtftature in research and manufacturing. In addjtiba safety risks associated with certain
conventional vaccine approaches may offset thagni@l benefits. We believe our potential vacgineducts may be simpler to manufacture
than vaccines made using live viruses or proteliusit approaches, including those involving mamaralavian or insect cell, or egg-based,
culture procedures. In addition, our DNA deliveggtinologies may accelerate certain aspects ofvageoduct development such as
nonclinical evaluation and manufacturing.

In the broader vaccine marketplace, it is importantote a changing dynamic. Traditionally, vacsihave been predominantly focused
on the pediatric market, intended to protect cbitdirom diseases that could cause them serious Aamtay, there is a growing interest in
vaccines against diseases that may affect adolessaed adults, which include both sexually trantaditliseases and infections that strike
opportunistically, such as during pregnhancy onmimiunocompromised individuals, including the gerigiopulation. We believe our
technologies, because of their potential safetydeelopment timeline advantages, could be ideaiited for this new generation of vaccines.

Cancer

Cancer is a disease of uncontrolled cell growtheWtietected early and still confined to a singtatimn, cancer may be cured by sur¢
or irradiation. However, neither surgery nor irtn can cure cancer that has spread througheutatly. Although chemotherapy can
sometimes effectively treat cancer that has spiteatdighout the body, a number of non-cancerous,calich as bone marrow cells, are also
highly susceptible to chemotherapy. As a resultpottherapy often has fairly significant side effeétinally, it is common to see cancer returr
after apparently successful treatment by eachesfeimeans.

Immunotherapy, a process which uses the pasienth immune system to treat cancer, may have &alyas over surgery, irradiation, ¢
chemotherapy. Many cancers appear to have devetbpeaability to “hide” from the immune system. &atment that can augment the immune
response against tumor cells by making the canoee fivisible” to the immune system would likely repent a significant improvement in
cancer therapy. Immune-enhancing proteins suchtedeukin-2, or IL-2, and interferon-alpha, or IFN, have shown encouraging results.
However, these agents often require frequent dbsesegularly result in severe side effects.

Two drugs for metastatic melanoma were approve®irl, both on the basis of increased survival. ¥gfv, a monoclonal antibody
marketed by Bristol-Myers Squibb Co., increasesefffiectiveness of T-cells that can seek out anttaesnelanoma cells. Zelboréf , a B-Raf
inhibitor marketed by Roche and Daiichi Sankyoeinipts a key process in melanoma growth in paiesth a particular melanoma mutation.
Both drugs are associated with significant sidea#f, and neither is considered a cure for melanoma

We have researched delivery enhancements that omaglement our core DNA delivery technology and rhelp us develop cancer
therapies. Our current clinical-stage approachistssf directly injecting solid tumors with plasisiwhich, upon uptake into cells, direct the
production of the encoded immunostimulatory pratémgenerate a local, regional and systemic efféw plasmids are formulated with a
cationic lipid-based
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delivery system. The ease of manufacture, conveajeand ability to repeat administration may oéfdvantages over current modalities of
therapy. In addition, cancer therapies using noaHdNA delivery may offer an added margin of spfedbmpared with viral-based delivery, as
no viral particles or other potentially infectioagents are contained in the formulation.

Human studies utilizing this approach demonstratgédtumor effects and were found to be safe wittery low incidence of treatment-
related serious adverse events. In addition, studianimals have demonstrated the potential efficd this approach. Further validation of
DNA technology in cancer vaccine applications ooediin late 2009, when our licensee Merial receapeproval from the USDA to sell a
therapeutic DNA vaccine, ONCEPT , designed to miektending the survival time of dogs with oral arema.

Cardiovascular

Cardiovascular diseases represent the leading chudleath in the United States and in most Westeumtries. Cardiovascular disease
refers to the class of diseases that involve tlagtlve blood vessels. Peripheral artery diseaseA@, including critical limb ischemia, or CLI,
and coronary artery disease, or CAD, also knowis@®emic heart disease, or IHD, are the end resuaitterial occlusive disease, which is n
commonly known as atherosclerosis. Atherosclermf$écts the inner lining of an artery and is chtgdzed by fatty deposits that block the
flow of blood.

PAD is a common circulatory problem in which naresharteries reduce the blood flow to the limbs. A&Paused by atherosclerosis
often in association with hypertension, hypercheledemia, cigarette smoking or diabetes. Early ggms of PAD include transient pain in
the legs upon walking, a condition called interamttclaudication, which is caused by ischemia. Agpnately 25% of ischemic patients will
progress to develop CLI, which is associated wétm @t rest and ulcers, and frequently requiresudation. Altogether approximately 30% of
patients with PAD die within 5 years of developlPgD, rising to approximately 50% after 10 yearsjchirepresents a mortality rate
exceeding most other vascular conditions, includ@idd. The number of therapeutic options for PAD aéms very limited in comparison with
other areas of cardiovascular medicine and thehezak burden associated with amputations in ti$e i9.estimated to be greater than
$10 billion per year.

CAD occurs when the coronary arteries that supfadgdto the heart muscle become hardened and nadrd®AD is the most common
type of heart disease and is the leading causeathdn the U.S. in both men and women. Over ti@f) can weaken the heart muscle and
contribute to heart failure or arrhythmias. Curreaaitment regimens for CAD include drugs, cathbteed interventional therapies such as
balloon angioplasty or stents, mechanical therapieb as atherectomy, and surgical proceduresasiblipass surgery.

We believe PAD and CAD may be better treated byudtting angiogenesis, which refers to the growthew blood vessels from pre-
existing vessels to replace those blocked by theadie. Our core DNA delivery technology may allbe/targeted delivery of certain growth
factors with potential therapeutic value in the egimg field of angiogenesis. Angiogenesis has tsawn to occur by the exogenous
administration of angiogenic growth factors. Weided that the localized and sustained expressidhesie growth factors from plasmids may
be both safe and effective.

Veterinary

Prior to their development for human therapy, ottAdelivery technologies were extensively testednimals. Research scientists have
published numerous papers detailing positive resaltnany species and covering a broad range e&sksindications. Animal health
encompasses two distinct market segments: livestwcknimals bred and raised for food or other pot&l and companion animals, or pets.
Through our collaborative partnerships there haaantapprovals within each of these market segnfientsccines utilizing our DNA delivery
technology.
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Manufacturing Process Development

Our RapidResponse™ DNA vaccine manufacturing platfis intended to significantly reduce the timeuiegd to develop, manufacture
and deploy vaccines against emerging diseasesgdilménearly stages of an infectious outbreak. TagidRResponse™ platform produces a
small segment of DNA, called a linear expressicssetie, which includes only those DNA sequencesndiss for the specific vaccine. The
bacterial fermentation process typically used fofADvaccines produces a closed loop of DNA, callgdasmid, which must include DNA
sequences required in the manufacturing process.

Conventional vaccine development and manufacturiethods require prolonged effort after the emergeri@ new pathogen for
production of even a single dose for testing. GurEENA vaccine development and manufacturing preessllow initial production of
vaccines in as little as three months after selaatf a gene sequence associated with a pathogequantities are limited by the batch-
processing capacity of available manufacturing gaint. By using a cell-free manufacturing processpelieve that the RapidResponse™
DNA platform can overcome the time, capacity anst challenges of manufacturing conventional vaccioe diseases such as influenza,
which use killed or disabled viruses grown in cleigleggs or via cell culture, requiring months afdarction time in large, dedicated facilities.

We have conducted feasibility studies of the Rapgfionse™ DNA platform. These studies were partfatiged by grants from the
Defense Advanced Research Projects Agency of tBeepartment of Defense.

Business Strategy
There are four basic elements to our businessgtrat

Develop Products Independently

We currently focus our resources on the independievelopment of infectious disease vaccines andezammunotherapeutics. The
selection of targets for our independent develogmesgrams is driven by three key criteria: the pterity of the product development
program, competition, and commercial opportuniti&/e. intend to retain significant participation iretcommercialization of any independet
developed proprietary DNA vaccines and therapetiiasreceive regulatory approval, although we mtagose to enlist the support of partners
to accelerate product development and commercializa

Infectious Disease Vaccine¥accines are perceived by government and medaamunities as an efficient and cost-effective nsezin
healthcare. According to the Centers for Diseasgi@band Prevention, or CDC, “Vaccines are amdmegMery best protections we have
against infectious diseases.” In the infectiougaée area, we have primarily focused our resomrtdise development of DNA-based vaccines
against CMV, pandemic influenza and HSV-2. We lvelieur technologies may lead to the developmenbwgél preventive or therapeutic
vaccines for infectious disease targets. DNA vazxmay help combat diseases for which conventiataine methods have been
unsuccessful.

Cancer Therapiesin the cancer area, we are focusing our resouncelse development of Allovectfh initially as atpitial treatment
for metastatic melanoma, an aggressive form of chirter. Allovectir® is a plasmid/lipid formulatioontaining the DNA sequences encoding
HLA-B7 and 32 microglobulin, which together fornMajor Histocompatibility Complex, or MHC, Classlhjection of Allovectin® directly
into tumors is designed to stimulate a systemic imeresponse against both local and distant métatenors. In previous human clinical
trials, Allovectin® has shown evidence of activityainst other types of cancer, and could potentladlyised to treat any injectable
immunoreactive solid tumor.

Enhance and Expand Our Technologies

We are actively pursuing the refinement of our plis and formulations, the evaluation of potergighancements to our core
technologies and the exploration of additional D8&livery technologies. We are
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developing future product candidates based on tigesmologies through nonclinical and clinical ilegto determine their safety and
effectiveness. We also seek to develop additiopplieations for our technologies by testing newrapghes to disease control or prevention.
These efforts could lead to further independentlpcb development or additional licensing opportesitin addition, we continually evaluate
compatible technologies or products that may bgoténtial interest for in-licensing or acquisitidle license intellectual property from
companies holding complementary technologies terkye the potential of our own DNA delivery tectugi¢s and to further the discovery of
innovative therapies for internal development.

Expand the Applications of Our Technologies throuddtrategic Collaborations

We collaborate with major pharmaceutical and biotetogy companies and government agencies, prayigéraccess to complementary
technologies or greater resources. These collabossare intended to provide us with mutually bariaf opportunities to expand or advance
our product pipeline and serve significant unmetliced needs. We license our intellectual propestgther companies to leverage our
technologies for applications that may not be appate for our independent product development.

Pursue Contract Manufacturing Opportunities

We selectively pursue contract manufacturing opputies to leverage our infrastructure and expeiitispDNA manufacturing, to
support advancement and application of our teclyiesoby others, and to provide revenues that dantito our independent research and
development efforts.
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Product Development

We, together with our licensees and collaboratme currently developing a number of DNA-based waand therapeutics for the
prevention or treatment of infectious diseases¢ceaand cardiovascular diseases. The table belownsuizes our independent programs and

corporate and government collaborations.

Product/Concept

Intended Use Development Statust

Lead Developer

Independent Program

Allovectin ® cancer immunotherapeutic First-line treatment for metastatic Phase 3 Vical
melanome
CyMVectin™ prophylactic vaccine for Prevent infection before pregnancy to Preclinical complete Vical
cytomegalovirus preclude fetal transmissic
Therapeutic and prophylactic vaccines for Prevent and protect against recurring flare- Preclinical Vical
herpes simplex type 2 virus ups, reduce viral shedding and
transmissior
Corporate Collaboration:
TransVax™ therapeutic vaccine for Protect against CMV infection after stem Phase 3 preparation Astellas
cytomegalovirus cell transplant:
TransVax™ therapeutic vaccine for Protect against CMV infection after solid  Phase 2 preparation Astellas
cytomegalovirus organ transplant
Collategene® angiogenic therapy encoding Induce local growth of blood vessels to Phase 3 preparation AnGes
Hepatocyte Growth Factor restore blood flow to limbs affected by
critical limb ischemie
Apex® -IHN prophylactic vaccine for Prevent infection and disease in farm- Marketed in Canada Aqua Health
infectious hematopoietic necrosis virus raised salmon when exposed to infected (Novartis)
wild salmon
ONCEPT® therapeutic cancer vaccine Adjunct treatment to increase survival ti Marketed in the United  Merial
encoding human tyrosina of dogs with oral melanon States
Government Collaboratior
Prophylactic and/or therapeutic HIV vaccine Prevent and/or treat infection, disease, Phase 2b National
and/or viral shedding Institutes of
Health
Tetravalent dengue vaccine Prevent dengue disease caused by all4  Phase 1 Naval Medical
dengue serotypes Research
Center

“Research” indicates exploration and/or evaluatiba potential product candidate in a noncliniedldratory setting. “Preclinical”

indicates that a specific product candidate inractinical setting has shown functional activity ttigarelevant to a targeted medical need,
and is advancing toward initial human clinical tegt “Phase 1” clinical trials are typically conded with a small number of patients or
healthy subjects to evaluate safety, determindeadszsage range, identify side effects, and, iGjiabs, gain early evidence of
effectiveness. “Phase 2” clinical trials are cortddawith a larger group of patients to evaluateaffeness of an investigational product
for a defined patient population, and to deterntimmmon short-term side effects and risks associaitidthe product candidate. “Phase
3” clinical trials involve large scale, multi-centeomparative trials that are conducted with pasiefflicted with a target disease to
evaluate the overall benerisk relationship of the investigational productlan provide an adequate basis for product labe

9
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Independent Programs Targeting Infectious Diseases
CMV Vaccines

CMV is a ubiquitous herpes virus that can causesgicomplications in two distinct patient popubats: immunocompromised transpli
patients and children born to women initially irteset during pregnancy. We and our collaborator aresatly developing two CMV vaccines:
TransVax™ and CyMVectin™. TransVax™ is designeddove the first patient population by preventing\Chactivation or infection in
transplant recipients. In 2011, we licensed thitrig develop and commercialize TransVax™ to AagelCyMVectin™ is designed to serve
the second, much larger patient population by préwg primary CMV infection during pregnancy anetéby precluding maternal-fetal CMV
transmission, congenital CMV infection, and relabéth defects. We believe congenital CMV representajor commercial opportunity and
could potentially lead to widespread vaccination.

CyMVectin™

CMV is the most common congenital infection in theited States and the leading cause of infectitasade- related birth defects. If a
woman becomes infected with CMV for the first tich&ring pregnancy, there are no treatment alteresti@yMVectin™ was designed to
prevent CMV infection prior to pregnancy. We beéehis may ultimately reduce birth defects cause@HlIV.

CyMVectin™ consists of pDNA that encodes the hur@afv gB antigen with pDNA that encodes the human Cpp65 antigen. The
product is formulated with our proprietary lipiddsal adjuvant Vaxfectifi . Vaxfectih has been showmoinclinical studies by us and others
to enhance immune responses, particularly antilbesiyonses, to expressed immunogens. A gB protasiedbzaccine, developed by others, ha
shown some protection against CMV infection in as#h?2 clinical trial, so we believe a vaccine sggtfor CMV prevention can be success
In addition, prior maternal CMV infection is assateid with protection against secondary infectioprignant women and reduction of
congenital infection. Nonclinical studies performadabbit, guinea pig and mouse animal models la@monstrated the ability to induce high
titers of gB-specific antibodies in animals receg/the gB plasmid. Rabbit studies of gB pDNA adstigried intramuscularly demonstrated an
approximate 10-fold enhancement of gB antibodidk Waxfectin® as an adjuvant when compared to gB AliNphosphate-buffered saline.
Similarly, mouse studies also demonstrated thieddidnefit of Vaxfecti® as an adjuvant. The resfithese studies support both our past
experience and other published studies which itgiteat immune responses can be induced by pDNAiInvaiion and that formulation with
Vaxfectin® enhances those immune responses. Phaspéiop65, or pp65, is a major CMV tegument prothiat is recognized by both CD4+
and CD8+ T cells in CMV-seropositive subjects. latin of pp65-specific T cells following vaccinationay provide an additional antiviral
mechanism that could act to reduce CMV replicatind viral loads. Repeat dose safety studies intsabith Vaxfectin® -formulated gB and
pp65 plasmids have enabled the allowance of antiNiBitiate clinical evaluation of CyMVectin™.

About CMV

CMV infects between 50% and 80% of adults in thédthStates by 40 years of age. Although most hggleople who are infected by
CMV after birth are asymptomatic, CMV can affecttaa high-risk groups including immunocompromisedividuals and prenatal or
postnatal infants. Significant mortality and moibjidare observed in the immunocompromised poputatiespecially hematopoietic stem cell
transplant, or HSCT, and solid organ transplan§@T, recipients. In CMV-seropositive HSCT recipigrhe incidence of CMV reactivation
in the first 6 months following transplantatiorbi8-70% in the absence of prophylaxis. The incidencedsiced to approximately 5% by the
of preemptive antiviral therapy, but currently dabie antiviral therapies are associated with doxirity, are costly, may lead to drug
resistance and provide incomplete efficacy. Lateedbl€MV reactivation may also occur after thisiahiperiod of heightened susceptibility.
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Currently no vaccine is approved for the preventb@MYV infection. The only approved treatment @1V in HSCT patients is
ganciclovir, although other antivirals are usedlafffel, such as valganciclovir, foscarnet, andfcidio. We believe a vaccine that enables the
patient’'s immune system to control CMV infectioneteby reducing the need for antiviral therapy, Mddie a valuable therapeutic option for
HSCT recipients. The control of CMV in immunocommised persons is primarily associated with T-ceddiated immune responses.

CMV-seropositive HSCT and SOT recipients repregapbrtant populations for the prevention of CMV ¢teation and reduction in
antiviral therapy. Approximately 50,000 HCT trarespts and 60,000 SOT transplants are performed dpfughe United States and Europe.
We believe these populations represent a significeanket potential for our TransVax™ vaccine.

CyMVectin™ was designed to prevent CMV infectioiopto pregnancy. We believe this may ultimatelgiuee birth defects caused by
CMV. In the U.S. congenital infection occurs in aba in 150 live-born infants and resulting in pement disabilities, such as mental
retardation, hearing loss and vision loss, in apipnately 8,000 children per year, and 400 deatimsially. Symptomatic congenital infections
occur about one-third of the time following a primanaternal infection during pregnhancy. Congeriitégction can also occur in CMV-
seropositive women, which results in even moresxagor maternal CMV infection is associated vgtrtial protection against secondary
infection in pregnant women and reduction of tlegfrency and severity of congenital infection. Conteith infected young children is the
primary source of infection for pregnant women,ezsally those exposed to children in daycare emarents.

DNA vaccine induction of CMV-specific antibodiesdai-cell responses may prevent or limit CMV infectioninomen before and duril
pregnancy, which could impact perinatal transmissiod newborn infections. We believe that thewesgynificant market potential for our
CyMVectin™ vaccine, as there are more than 40 amilivomen of childbearing age in the United States.

Herpes Simplex Virus-2

In April 2008 we were awarded a two-year, $2.0imillPhase Il Small Business Technology Transfentgram the National Institute of
Allergy and Infectious Diseases, or NIAID. The grimded the ongoing development of our prophytaatid therapeutic plasmid DNA
vaccine against HSV-2. The HSV-2 vaccines wereuatatl with our Vaxfectif adjuvant. The grant penab extended to allow preclinical
development to continue for a third year. We haamapleted preclinical studies funded by the HSV-2ngland found that our prophylactic
Vaxfectin® -formulated plasmid DNA vaccine protectaite against lethal challenge, provided sterifiziimmunity, and inhibited viral counts
at both the primary and latent infection sitesglinea pigs, our prophylactic and therapeutic Vetifie® -formulated vaccines provided
complete protection against both primary and resurHSV-2 disease, and significantly reduced gklgitgon recurrence and viral shedding as
well as latent infection in the central nervoustegs

The initial results demonstrated that an appropriatse of the prophylactic Vaxfecin -formulatedaiae, which encoded the HSV-2
glycoprotein D, or gD2, antigen elicited antibodgponses in 100% of mice against the encoded anfigetected 100% of mice against
subsequent challenge with a lethal dose of livesyireduced viral shedding in mice at both the prinand latent infection sites; and elicited
sterilizing immunity in 80% of mice as evidencedraydetectable virus after challenge at eitheptimaary (vagina) or latent (dorsal root
ganglia) infection sites. The Vaxfectin adjuvanbstantially improved vaccine effectiveness in thecpnical studies. A therapeutic vaccine
that encoded the gD2 antigen as well as the tegupneteins UL46/UL47 significantly reduced recurcerof HSV-2 lesions in a therapeutic
model using guinea pigs with latent infection (B38). Three doses of Vaxfectin -formulated vaccimgenadministered after resolution of the
primary infection. The studies were repeated ardéisults were confirmed.
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Based on the success of our preclinical developmentre advancing toward clinical testing in humasith a Vaxfectir? -formulated
therapeutic vaccine. After completing required pnézal safety/toxicology and biodistribution stedi we expect to begin a Phase 1/2
therapeutic vaccine trial in the second half of 20dth safety, immunogenicity and clinical endpsidisigned to establish clear proof of
concept and support potential future partneringudisions.

About HSV-2

HSV-2 is a member of the herpes virus family anithésleading cause of genital herpes worldwide.rAgimately one out of every six
individuals worldwide is infected by HSV-2 beforgea50. HSV-2 infection also significantly increadias risk of acquiring HIV-1. In the
United States, HSV-2 infects some 1.6 million nexele per year, with approximately 320,000 of thegiéering from disease symptoms. At
least 40 million people in the United States afedted with HSV2. Even higher infection rates are evident in depielg countries, with furth
complications in people also infected with HIV. H&\infections are permanent and result in perigdies shedding. There is no approved
vaccine for HSV-2. Although antiviral regimens hderome a standard of care in developed countvedelieve their inconvenience,
cumulative cost and potential for drug resistarmaenscore the need for safe, new approaches toingddSV-2 lesions, shedding, and
transmission. Estimated annual costs of treating4d the United States alone are close to $1obijlprimarily for drugs and outpatient
medical care.

Other Infectious Disease Programs
Influenza Programs

In 2005, we applied our DNA delivery technologythe development of a pandemic influenza vaccineédated with our proprietary
adjuvant Vaxfectir® . Our approach was to includeciige components which we believed would providepiial cross strain protection,
particularly against severe disease and mortalitlike conventional influenza vaccines which prevgymptomatic relief through antibodies
alone and are unlikely to protect against seveseatie and mortality if the strain match is notexrr

In 2008, we completed two Phase 1 H5N1 pandeniiganta trials. The data demonstrated that a Varfécformulated DNA vaccine
can achieve significant immune responses againstlHmndemic influenza in humans. The data suggdéstedhe vaccine was well-tolerated
and achieved potentially protective levels of amiyp responses (H5 hemagglutination inhibition, artlers of at least 40 and at least a four-
fold increase from baseline) in at least 47% antbu§/% of evaluable subjects in the higher H5 dmd®rts in the trials. The data also sho
that in the highest H5 dose cohorts, responsespdak Day 56 and were sustained in 80% to 100%efésponders through the end of the
study at Day 182. The vaccines demonstrated clasie-antibody responses against two differentrstriai the trials and also induced T-cell
responses against a matching strain of influenzesvn 75% to 100% of the subjects for at leasnsdnths. No significant safety issues were
observed at any of the doses tested.

In 2011, we completed a Phase 1 clinical trialwf\daxfectin® -formulated DNA vaccine against A/H1Handemic influenza. The
double-blind, placebo-controlled HIN1 influenzasiae Phase 1 trial enrolled approximately 30 hgaditiult volunteers at a single U.S.
clinical site. Subjects were randomized 2:1 in® ¥hccine or placebo arms of the trial. The datgmested that the vaccine was well-tolerated
and that more than half of the subjects in the ggmerated neutralizing antibodies of the typeeexgd to provide protection against the dise

At this time, we do not intend to pursue furthevelepment of our pandemic influenza vaccines wittianding through research grants,
collaborations or otherwise. We believe we carhierroptimize the vaccine dose and formulation, icongafety and immunogenicity in a
larger number of subjects, and leverage the prbofncept for our DNA vaccine platform and Vaxfectiadjuvant into additional indications.
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Government Collaborations

There are also two ongoing infectious disease progrbeing conducted by the U.S. government usingechnology. The National
Institutes of Health, or NIH, has clinical-stageei@me programs based on our technology for HIV iarairrently conducting a Phase 2b DNA-
prime, adenovirus-boost study. The Naval Medicaldaech Center, or NMRC, has initiated a Phasedy sifia tetravalent (serotypes 1, 2, 3,
and 4) dengue DNA vaccine formulated with Vaxfeétin

In addition to these programs, we have developeerakvaccines targeted at emerging diseases imgumnalaria, anthrax, severe acute
respiratory syndrome, or SARS, West Nile VirusWiXV, and Ebola. We have performed preclinical wark completed a Phase 1 clinical
trial targeting anthrax. The NIH has completed Rhaslinical trials using our vaccines targetingR®\ WNV and Ebola. Due to the lack of
commercial opportunities and government funding deenot plan on further developing these vaccindsigtime.

Independent Program Targeting Cancer
Allovectin®

Allovectin ® is a plasmid/lipid formulation contairgrthe DNA sequences encoding HLA-B7 and 32 mictmglio, which together form a
MHC Class | complex. We believe injection of Allatm © directly into tumor lesions directs a locagional and systemic immune response
against metastatic tumors through several mechanisnHLA-B7 negative patients, a vigorous allogengmune response may be initiated
against the foreign MHC class | antigen. In alligrais, 32 microglobulin may reconstitute normakslaantigen presentation and/or increase
tumor antigen presentation to the immune systeranjnpatient, an innate pro-inflammatory responag occur that induces tumor responses
following intralesional injection of the pDNA/lipidomplex. The goal of all three of these mechanisns initially cause recognition of the
tumor at the local site to allow a then-sensitizethune response to recognize un-injected tumodistant metastatic sites.

In 2001, we began a high-dose, 2 mg, Phase Zwralating the Allovecti® immunotherapeutic aloaegatients with stage Ill or stage
IV melanoma, who have few other treatment optidie high-dose Phase 2 trial completed enrolimef008. The data showed that the trial
had a total of 15 responders among the 127 patieo¢sving the high dose (11.8 %), with four of regients having complete responses an
having partial responses. Data were recently updater long-term follow-up. The Kaplan-Meier estitad median duration of response was
13.8 months, and all responses were durable witinge of 6 months to 77 months. The updated Kalglaier median survival was 18.8
months. The safety profile was excellent with nported Grade 3 or Grade 4 adverse events assouidtedllovectin® .

Based on detailed guidance received from the WoSdfand Drug Administration, or FDA, in an End-dfeBe 2 meeting, we
subsequently completed a Special Protocol Assedsore8PA, with the FDA for a Phase 3 trial of hiddse, 2 mg, Allovecti® for certain
patients with recurrent Stage Il or Stage IV melaa. The SPAsgreed protocol specifies the trial objectives design, clinical endpoints, a
planned analyses expected to yield data that wilpsert a license application for product approval.

Enroliment in the Phase 3 trial began in DecemB@62and has involved more than 100 clinical sigegients could have been previot
treated with surgery, adjuvant therapy, and/orhgtapy, but could not have been previously treaféid chemotherapy. The patients were
randomized on a 2:1 basis with 260 patients treaitdAllovectin® and 130 treated with their physiois choice of either of two
chemotherapy agents, dacarbazine or temozolomtdepfimary endpoint is overall response rate thatpares the two trial arms for objective
responses that are ongoing or commence at 24 voeekere after randomization. The study will alsalerate safety and tolerability as well as
survival as secondary endpoints. The trial is aulyan the final stages of patient follow-up, datlection and analysis, which is expected to
be completed in 2013.
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AnGes has provided funding for the clinical trigl to certain limits under a research and developmgreement. The funding consisted
of purchases by AnGes of $10.85 million of reséitshares of our common stock and additional nhmdable cash payments by AnGes of
$11.75 million. All of the funding provided by AnGgincluding the funding used to purchase our comstock, was required to be used for
costs related to the Allovectih Phase 3 trial. Urtle agreement, we granted to AnGes exclusive atiackrights for Allovectir? in specified
countries in Asia and AnGes has the opportunifyusue regulatory approvals in those countriegestibo receipt by us of regulatory apprc
in the United States. We also granted AnGes certgialty-bearing licenses to our technology andvikiimw. AnGes is obligated to pay
royalties to us on sales of Allovectin in specif@alintries in Asia. AnGes also obtained the righeteive royalties from us on all
commercial sales of Allovectid outside the spediffesian countries.

In 1999, Allovectir® was granted orphan drug dedlignefor the treatment of invasive and metastatidanoma by the FDA's Office of
Orphan Products Development. Orphan drug desigmatiovides certain tax benefits for qualifying empes and can result in extended
marketing exclusivity. In 2010, the FDA granted tFasick designation of Allovectifi as a treatmenmtrfetastatic melanoma. Fast Track
designation is intended to facilitate the develophand expedite the review of drugs with demonsttgiotential to address an unmet medical
need for serious diseases. Fast Track designdtamsafor submission of a Biologics License Apptica, or BLA, on a “rolling” basis with
ongoing FDA review during the submission process.

About Metastatic Melanoma

The American Cancer Society estimated that appratéiy 76,690 new diagnoses of, and approximatdi@®deaths from, melanoma
would occur in 2013 in the United States. Theilifet risk of getting melanoma has been growing antbiv approximately 2% (or 1 in 50) for
Caucasians in the United States. Currently, therea consistently effective therapies for advarzasks of melanoma where the cancer has
spread beyond its site of origin, or metastasiZeglatment for these patients normally includesralioation of chemotherapy, radiation
therapy, and surgery. In patients with advancedastatic melanoma, median survival typically ranfges six to ten months.

FDA-approved drugs for treatment of metastatic mataa include: hydroxyurea, which is no longer cominaised as a single agent,
dacarbazine, and IL-2. The toxicity associated \wifiA-approved treatments such as dacarbazine @risLeften significant, resulting in
serious or life-threatening side effects in manyhef patients treated. Patients with metastatianozha often are treated with drugs that are n
approved for treatment of metastatic melanoma, asdiFrN-CI , which is approved as adjuvant therapy to surgaryemozolomide, which is
approved for certain types of brain cancer.

Two new drugs for metastatic melanoma were apprav@011, both on the basis of increased survivatvoy® ,a monoclonal antiboc
marketed by Bristol-Myers Squibb, increases theatifeness of T-cells that can seek out and destedgnoma cells. Zelboraf , a BRAF
inhibitor marketed by Roche and Daiichi Sankyoeinipts a key process in melanoma growth in paiesth a particular melanoma mutation.
Both drugs are associated with significant sideatf, and neither is considered a cure for melanoma

Adjuvant Development
Vaxfectin®

Vaxfectin® is our proprietary, cationic lipid fornmailon optimized to increase the immune respons@adoines. Vaxfecti® formulations
have demonstrated safety and adjuvant activityDNA vaccine applications in multiple animal modeéfs;luding nonhuman primates, in
addition to the animal and human influenza studie=sl above. Studies of Vaxfectin -formulated pDM#ccines against CMV and measles
have shown enhanced immunogenicity in rodents antiuman primates, respectively. Vaxfe&in has désoonstrated dose-sparing
attributes as an adjuvant for protein-based inftaeraccines as well as increased T-cell respomskaraitumor
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responses to formulated peptide-based cancer astifieaddition to the studies outlined below, ¢hieave been a number of published non-
clinical infectious disease studies utilizing Veotia ® as an adjuvant.

DNA Vaccines with Vaxfectih

A study has been completed which demonstratecathatasles DNA vaccine formulated with Vaxfeétin uadnt elicited sustained
protective levels of neutralizing antibodies inanf (6—10 week old) nonhuman primates confirmed by conegbeptection following challen
one year after intradermal vaccination, with naickl signs of disease and no culturable virug atb@llenge. Similar results were found in
juvenile (3—2 year old) nonhuman primates. Both measles studéze conducted in collaboration with Diane E fivi M.D., Ph.D., Alfred
and Jill Sommer Professor and Chair of Moleculaciebiology and Immunology, Johns Hopkins Bloomb8atool of Public Health, under a
grant from the Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation.

Protein Vaccines with Vaxfectfh

Data from a study in mice showed that a seasofiakimza vaccine, Sanofi Pasteur’s Fluz8m®mmercial vaccine, when formulated v
Vaxfectin® generated up to 200-fold higher antiboelsponses than an unformulated vaccine at the dasge Formulation of Fluzorfe with
Vaxfectin® also allowed a nearly 10-fold reductionvaccine dose while generating equivalent or battéibody responses compared with
unformulated vaccine, even at the lowest dosesdebt separate studies conducted by third paSiasofi Pasteur's HSN1 pandemic influenza
vaccine with no adjuvant achieved target antib@dgls in less than half the subjects after two 8§ doses — which are six times the normal
15 mcg dose for each strain of seasonal influeirzs that provides 75% to 90% protection againaseral influenza. In a separate study in
mice, we evaluated the potential of Vaxfeétin taubed as a dose-sparing agent with a protein-dasSkid pandemic influenza vaccine
currently stockpiled by the U.S. government. We destrated that after a single injection, the Vatife€-formulated vaccine yielded fivield
higher antibody responses at the same dose ad@amuihated vaccine, and comparable or better adyibesponses at one-third the dose of
unformulated vaccine. After a second injection, WMafectin® -formulated vaccine yielded nine-foldyher antibody responses at the same
dose as the unformulated vaccine, and five-foltebeintibody responses at one-third the dose dfitifi@rmulated vaccine. Dosgaring ability
could be critical in extending limited vaccine slippto protect the greatest number of people énethent of a pandemic influenza outbreak.

We also announced data from mouse studies whiclodsinated that a Vaxfectih -formulated seasonéiémiza vaccine generated
broader, more balanced antibody responses thanfamulated vaccine, and also generated influepzaific T-cell responses. Adjusting the
ratio of Vaxfectin® to vaccine allowed substantiarieases in either antibody or T-cell responsethout reducing the other type of response,
compared with unformulated vaccine. The abilityaeor primarily antibody or T-cell responses coptdvide important advantages in
developing vaccines for specific applications.

Cancer Vaccines with Vaxfectin

In a mouse study completed in 2008, a Vaxfettin rmfdated vaccine containing a peptide from tyros@eelated protein 2, or TRP-2,
an antigen commonly expressed by several typaswbtts including glioma and melanoma, resulted jpraximately a 100-fold increase in
antigen-specific CD8+ T-cell responses compared witformulated vaccine. CD8+ T cells are deploygdthe immune system to identify and
destroy infected or cancerous cells.

Collaboration and Licensing Agreements

We have entered into various arrangements withacatp, academic, and government collaboratorg)dioes, licensees, and others. In
addition to the agreements summarized below, wdwttrongoing discussions with potential collabargtbcensors and licensees.
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Out-licensing

AstellasIn July 2011, we entered into license agreemerits Astellas, granting Astellas exclusive, worldwideyalty-bearing licenses
under certain of the Company’s intellectual propéstdevelop and commercialize certain productdaiomg plasmids encoding certain forms
of glycoprotein B, or gB, and/or pp65, includingasVax™ but excluding CyMVectin™. Under the agreetseAstellas is responsible for the
worldwide development and commercialization of preid in the licensed field, at its expense, anddgased to use commercially reasonable
efforts to develop, obtain regulatory approvaldod commercialize at least one licensed produatgerin certain immunocompromised
patients in the licensed field in the United Stated certain other major markets. Astellas is qulygpreparing to begin a TransVax™ Phase 3
trial in patients to protect against CMV reactivatiafter HSCTs and a Phase 2 trial to protect piatizgainst CMV infection after SOTs. Both
trials are expected to begin in 2013.

Under the terms of the license agreements, Astpiaba nonrefundable upfront license fee of $28illon in 2011. We received an
additional $10.0 million in 2012 upon finalizatiofithe trial design for a Phase 3 registration tfalransVax™ in hematopoietic stem cell
transplant recipients. We are also entitled toivecadditional cash payments potentially totali®$$® million for achievement of certain
milestones through commercial launch and to receédueble-digit royalties on net sales of products] e have an option to co-promote
TransVax™ in the United States. Under the terms sipply and services agreement entered into bypd#\stellas on the same date, we
agreed to perform certain development and regylatctivities, at Astellas’ expense, and to supjagrised products to Astellas, at Astellas’
expense, for use in development and initial comiaization activities in the licensed field. Duritige years ended December 31, 2012 and
2011, we recognized $10.7 million and $25.3 millisgspectively, in license revenue and $5.7 milkod $2.7 million, respectively, of rever
related to contract services delivered.

In August 2012 we amended our license and suppheagents with Astellas to, among other thingseXtend the time period that we are
obligated to supply licensed products for comméncse to Astellas, at Astellas’ expense, (ii) mydife allocation of $95.0 million of
milestone payments among certain milestones threagimercial launch and (iii) modify the structufelee royalties on net sales from a fixed
double-digit royalty to tiered double-digit royais.

Prior to licensing TransVax™ to Astellas, we contgtea multicenter Phase 2 trial in 94 CMV-seropesiHSCT recipients (14 donor-
recipient pairs and 80 recipient-only subjects)d@mized 1:1 for vaccine or placebo. Subjects étalere 18-65 years old, CMV-
seropositive, and diagnosed with selected leukeoribfgmphomas. Enroliment in the trial was compdieite November 2008 and a 1-year
follow up was completed in November 2009. In 2046,released 12 month post-transplant data, andeshtvat significant reductions were
achieved for key viral reactivation metrics. Theali study results were publishedTihe Lancet Infectious Diseaseslanuary 2012.

In 2005, the Office of Orphan Products Developntdrihe FDA designated TransVax™ as an orphan dvuthe prevention of clinicall
significant CMV viremia, CMV disease and associatethplications in at-risk transplant populationspian drug designation provides certair
tax benefits for qualifying expenses and can raéaudixtended marketing exclusivity.

We initially developed TransVax™ as a pathway talelssh a CMV vaccine proof of concept in a relalivsmall patient population. We
decided to specifically target patients who wergcsptible to CMV reactivation in HSCT patients. fidfere we designed a vaccine that would
primarily induce a cellular immune response. TraasV is a plasmid DNA vaccine that induces both T-aed antibody responses by
expressing two antigens: pp65 and gB. The tegupretein, pp65, is a major antigen recognized bgllsén CMV-infected individuals. The
gB protein is a major surface antigen of CMV amtienary target of neutralizing antibodies. The gBtpin is also a major CMV antigen
recognized by both CD# and CB8 T cells in CMV-seasifive subjects. Induction of gB-specific T cdlilowing DNA vaccination may
provide an additional
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antiviral mechanism that could act to reduce CMpioation and viral loads shortly after infectiorhe vaccine is also formulated with
poloxamer CRL1005, which has been shown in noradirstudies by us and others to enhance gene sigmesnd immune responses.

AnGesln 2005, we granted an exclusive worldwide licettsAnGes for use of our core DNA delivery technglag the development
and commercialization of DNA-based products enogtiepatocyte growth factor, or HGF, for cardiovadascapplications. HGF is a human
protein that promotes angiogenesis.

AnGes is developing Collategefie , a DNA-based dgfiof HGF for indications related to PAD, a sevesadition caused by blockage
of blood vessels feeding the foot and lower legGAa completed a Phase 3 trial in Japan in 2007 ®@atlategené® for CLI, an advanced form
of PAD. AnGes completed two Phase 2 trials in tinétédl States in 2006 with Collategehe for PAD. AeGas partnered with Daiichi
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a wholly owned subsid@ripaiichi Sankyo Company Limited, for developmanti commercialization of DNA-
based HGF for PAD in Japan. In addition, AnGes detegd a Phase 1 trial in the United States for IRIR00G6.

In mid-2007, AnGes reported positive results foilogvan interim analysis of data from the first 4bjects to complete the Phase 3 CLI
trial of Collategen@ in Japan. In the trial, 40jsats with CLI were evaluated for efficacy. Thenpairy endpoints, improvement of rest pain ol
ischemic ulcer size, at 12 weeks post dosing, sH®0e8% improvement in the placebo group and 70mMptovement in the treatment group,
a statistically significant difference. Based oa timdings that the primary efficacy endpoint ie thial had been achieved with high statistical
significance compared to a placebo and that there wo major safety concerns related to treatnme ipatients evaluated, an independent
Data Monitoring Committee recommended stoppingitiaéearly to prevent potential ethical issuesoiwing the subjects in the placebo group.
AnGes filed a new drug application, or NDA, for dapse marketing approval in March 2008. In Septe@®£0, AnGes announced that aft
series of extensive consultations with the JapaRbesemaceuticals and Medical Devices Agency, itdexided to conduct an additional
clinical trial of Collategen& and that in the inteit would be withdrawing its NDA in Japan.

In December 2010, AnGes released long-term follpvgata from its Phase 3 CLI trial in Japan. Théofelup analysis was performed 3
years after gene delivery. The rate of lower limipatation after 1 year in patients with CLI is tyglly 30%. The results of the study shov
lower rates of lower limb amputation after admiraitbn of Collategen& : 5.4% after one year, 5.484r &awo years, and 9.2% after three
years. The mortality rates at 1, 2 and 3 yearstiepts treated for CLI is typically 25%, 25% arti®%. The results of the study showed lo
mortality rates after administration of Collategémwehich was 5.1% after one year, 15.7% after twogeand 26.6% after three years. AnGes
also reported that there were no clinically sigwifit adverse events related to Collategene

AnGes has obtained a SPA from the FDA for a PhadmiBal trial of Collategen@ for patients with CIThe study would be
multinational, randomized and placebo-controllethvai target population of 560 patients. The Phas&l3if initiated, will enroll no option as
well as poor option patients with chronic and sevuschemia of the lower limb. No option patients #irose unable to receive an endovasculat
intervention or surgical bypass procedure dueflown conduit or outflow reasons or due to a sead irreversible co-morbidity where
surgery is contraindicated. Poor option patiengstiaose unable to receive an endovascular intéoreand at high risk for bypass surgery due
to their vascular anatomy or severe co-morbid diseAnGes believes inclusion of poor option pasievitl open the clinical trial to at least
three to four times as many target patients congp@rether trials that only include no option patge

The agreement with AnGes expires upon the expiraifdhe last to expire of the patent rights licmh$o AnGes, or when the patent
rights licensed to AnGes are held invalid or unecéable, unless earlier terminated as set forthéragreement. We may terminate the
agreement early upon the bankruptcy or insolvericgrahe material breach of the agreement by, Asy@pon prior written notice to AnGes.
AnGes may terminate the agreement early upon pridien notice to us. Under the license agreemeetreceived an initial upfront
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payment of $1.0 million, and in 2008 we receivedadditional payment of $1.0 million. Further deyeleent may lead to additional milestone
and royalty payments.

Sanofi.ln 1999, Sanofi began testing the DNA delivery gfeme encoding fibroblast growth factor 1, or FGRiangiogenic growth
factor, in patients with CLI. In 2000, Sanofi liced the rights to our core DNA delivery technolégycardiovascular applications using FGF-
1.

Sanofi conducted a double-blind, placebo-controifédse 2 trial of its FGF-1 plasmiiésed therapeutic, or NV1FGF, in the United S
and Europe. In March 2006, Sanofi released encingatata from the Phase 2 trial demonstrating im@naent in amputation-free survival in
patients with CLI. In 2007, Sanofi announced thaiaid begun a 500 patient global Phase 3 studydfRGF. The trial was conducted in
patients with CLI, with combined trial endpointsmofjor amputation or death. In September 2010, ffannounced that NV1FGF did not
meet the primary endpoint in the global Phasead and that it is evaluating all options with resp® NV1FGF development in light of the
Phase 3 clinical trial results.

Our agreement with Sanofi specifies that we axgl#é to receive milestone payments plus royalfiasd when products advance
through commercialization. The agreement with Saxfires on the expiration of Sanafidbligation to pay royalties under the agreerriemg
obligation to pay royalties is the longer of seyears after the first commercial sale or when e rights licensed to Sanofi are held invalic
or unenforceable, unless earlier terminated afositin the agreement. We may terminate the ages¢marly for an uncured, material breach
of the agreement by Sanofi, upon prior written e@tio Sanofi. Sanofi may terminate the agreemeht epon prior written notice to us.

Merck.In 1991, we entered into an agreement with Merdkiclvwas subsequently amended, providing Merck woéthain exclusive
rights to develop and commercialize vaccines usimgcore DNA delivery technology for specified hundiseases. Under the agreement, as
amended, Merck licensed our core DNA delivery tetbgy for use in preventive and therapeutic hunmdectious disease vaccines.

In 2005, Merck exercised an option related to ttuegcer targets that were granted under an amendm#re agreement. In 2008, Me;
initiated a Phase 1 clinical trial of a candidadeaine based on our DNA gene delivery technologiyearcodes human telomerase reverse
transcriptase, or hTERT. As a result of the ongalegelopment of this vaccine, we received milesfpmgments of $1.5 million in 2009.

Merck also has rights to use the licensed techrydioaigHIV, hepatitis C virus, and hepatitis B viriderck is obligated to pay fees if
certain research milestones are achieved, andtieyah net sales if any products covered by otgeagent with Merck are commercialized.
The agreement with Merck expires on the expiratibilerck’s obligation to pay royalties under theegment. The obligation to pay royalties
is the longer of five years after the first comnigrsale or upon the expiration of the last to exif the patent rights licensed to Merck, or
when the patent rights licensed to Merck are haldlid or unenforceable, unless earlier terminai®det forth in the agreement. We may
terminate the agreement early upon the bankruptaysolvency of, or a material breach of the agreeinby, Merck upon prior written notice
Merck. Merck may terminate the agreement early ym@or written notice to us.

As of December 31, 2012, the aggregate potentigistoine payments that we were eligible to recengeun each of our out-license
agreements with Astellas, AnGes, Sanofi and Merak aqual to approximately $95.0 million, $2.0 roitlj $5.0 million and $36.0 million,
respectively. These amounts assume that all rentamilestones associated with the milestone paysremet met. Although we believe that
some of the milestones contained in these outdieegreements may be achieved, it is highly unlitedt a significant number of them will be
achieved. Because the milestones are contingerdrevaot in a position to reasonably estimate hawhmif any, of the potential milestone
payments will ultimately be received, or when. Adudially, under these out-license agreements, noatlye milestone events are related to
progress in clinical trials which will take seveyalars to achieve.
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We are also eligible to receive royalty paymentdanrthese out-license agreements based on netdalag products which incorporate
the out-licensed technology. In each of our owtrige agreements with Astellas, AnGes, Sanofi anghithese royalties are based on
percentages of net sales in the single to low aedigit range. Our receipt of any royalty paymemider our out-license agreements is
contingent upon the licensee successfully devetpaimd commercializing products incorporating tieeriised technology, and we have limited
control over our licensees’ efforts in this regatdnsequently, we are not in a position to reasgregiimate when or to what extent we will
receive any royalty payments under our out-licaagreements.

Aqua Healthln 2003, we granted a non-exclusive license to Aqealth for use in Canada of our core DNA delivimghnology in a
vaccine against a disease that affects both willdfamnm-raised fish. In 2005, Aqua Health receivetlfitation of approval from the Canadian
Food Inspection Agency to sell its proprietary prot Apex® -IHN, a DNA vaccine to protect farm-raissalmon against IHNV. We believe
this approval is an important step in the validatd our DNA delivery technology. Aqua Health paggalties to us on sales of the vaccine.

Merial . In 2004, we granted an exclusive license to Méoiause of our core DNA delivery technology irtheerapeutic vaccine designed
to aid in extending survival time of dogs with onaélanoma. Under the agreement, Merial is resptanfb research and development
activities. In March 2009, Merial received approfram the USDA to market the DNA vaccine, now cdl@NCEPT® . Merial pays royalties
to us on sales of the vaccine.

Academic CollaboratorsWe also have granted non-exclusive, academindiegto our DNA delivery technology patent estatélt
leading research institutions including Stanfordntard, Yale and MIT. The academic licenses aenihtd to encourage widespread
commercial use of our innovative DNA delivery teologies in the development of new antibodies, vaes, therapeutic proteins, and
diagnostics. The academic licenses allow universisgarchers to use our technology free of chanmgeducational and internal, non-
commercial research purposes. In exchange, wethawaption to exclusively license from the univies potential commercial applications
stemming from their use of the technology on tetonise negotiated.

In-licensing

CytRx. In 2001, we entered into an exclusive agreeméht@ytRx Corporation, or CytRx, which grants ughts to use or sublicense
CytRx’s poloxamer technology to enhance viral onfwal delivery of polynucleotides in all unexcludpteventive and therapeutic human
animal health applications, including CMV. In adldlit, the agreement permits our use of CytRx’s teldgy to enhance the delivery of
proteins in prime-boost vaccine applications thablve the use of polynucleotides. As part of tgeeament, we made a $3.8 million up-front
payment and agreed to make potential future mitesénd royalty payments. As of December 31, 20E2had paid Cytrx $4.8 million under
the agreement.

The agreement with CytRx expires upon the expinadibour royalty obligations, unless earlier teratgd as set forth in the agreement.
Each party may terminate the agreement early up@ibankruptcy or insolvency of, or the materialloteof the agreement by, the other party
upon prior written notice to the other party. Sabj® certain conditions, we may terminate the agrent early upon prior written notice to
CytRx.

City of Hope. In 2003, we licensed from the City of Hope oneanlusive basis various U.S. patents that providéeption for CMV-
related polynucleotide based vaccines, includiran$¥ax™ and CyMVectifiM vaccine candidates. The agee¢expires upon the last to
expire of the patent rights licensed by us underaireement, unless earlier terminated as setifottte agreement. The City of Hope may
terminate the agreement early, in accordance vaitite provisions set forth in the agreement, ifogase to operate, fail to make payments
when due or materially breach the agreement. Sutgjexertain conditions, we may terminate the ageg early at any time upon prior writt
notice to the City of Hope. We are also obligategdy a low double-digit percentage of any paymesgtseceive from the sub-license of
products that incorporate the licensed technoldgyof December 31, 2012, we had paid the City gb&i$5.3 million under the agreement.
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Wisconsin Alumni Research Foundatidunder a 1989 research agreement, scientiste &lrifversity of Wisconsin, Madison, and our
scientists co-invented a core technology relatédttamuscular DNA administration. In 1991, we fised from the Wisconsin Alumni
Research Foundation, or WARF, its interest in teeinology. Pursuant to the license agreementthetWARF, we paid the WARF an initial
license fee and agreed to pay the WARF up to 10%&uéin initial upfront monetary payments and alsmercentage of some royalty
payments received from third parties under subfeeagreements. As of December 31, 2012, we hadimaM/ARF an aggregate of $3.0
million under this agreement. The agreement expinege we have fulfilled our royalty obligations teéender, unless earlier terminated as set
forth in the agreement. The WARF may terminate digigement early, in accordance with notice promisiset forth in the agreement, if we
to make payments when due, materially breach theeagent or commit any act of bankruptcy or becamelizent. Subject to certain
conditions, we may terminate the agreement eadyngtiime upon prior written notice to the WARF.

University of Michigan In 1992, we licensed from the University of Mighn rights to various U.S. and international patéimat provide
additional protection for Allovectifi related to tiigection of DNAbased therapeutics into tumors. In July 2005, werated the agreement
exclude certain patents. In February 2006, we edteto an additional agreement with the Universitjlichigan which provides for rights to
a composition of matter patent related to a poty@isc plasmid and the use of this plasmid fortte@atment of solid tumors, which we believe
provides additional protection for Allovectin

As of December 31, 2012, we have paid the UnivediMichigan an aggregate of $0.5 million under €892 agreement with the
University of Michigan. The agreement expires ufftalast to expire of the patent rights licensedibyinder the agreement, unless earlier
terminated as set forth in the agreement. Eithey maay terminate the agreement early, in accorelavith notice provisions set forth in the
agreement, upon material breach of the agreemethiebgther party. Subject to certain conditionsmay terminate the agreement early at an
time upon prior written notice to the University Mfchigan.

As of December 31, 2012, we had paid the Universitylichigan only de minimus amounts under our 28g6eement with the
University of Michigan. The agreement expires ugftalast to expire of the patent rights licensedibyinder this agreement, unless earlier
terminated as set forth in the agreement. The Usityeof Michigan may terminate the agreement eanyaccordance with notice provisions
forth in the agreement, if we cease to operatktdanake payments when due or materially breaeratireement. Subject to certain conditions
we may terminate the agreement early at any tino@ pior written notice to the University of Miclag.

As of December 31, 2012, the aggregate potentiaistoine payments that we could be obligated toupaler our in-license agreements
with City of Hope, CytRx and the WARF, our 1992license agreement with the University of Michigam aur 2006 in-license agreement
with the University of Michigan was equal to approately $3.8 million, $2.1 million, $4.9 million,22,500 and $20,000, respectively. These
amounts assume that all remaining milestones asdcivith the milestone payments are met. Althougtbelieve that some of the milestones
contained in the in-license agreements may be aethjet is highly unlikely that a significant numbaf them will be achieved. Because the
milestones are contingent, we are not in a postbaeasonably estimate how much, if any, of theepiial milestone payments will ultimately
be paid, or when. Additionally, under these intise agreements, many of the milestone events lateddo progress in clinical trials which
will take several years to achieve.

Under these in-license agreements, we may alsbliggted to pay royalties based on net sales ofpaogiucts which incorporate the in-
licensed technology. In each of our in-license agrents with the City of Hope, CytRx, the WARF ahd University of Michigan, these
royalties are based on percentages of net sathe wingle digit range. We may also be obligateshéle payments under our in-license
agreements with the City of Hope, the WARF anduhérersity of Michigan based on amounts we recéigen sub-licensees, if any. Our
obligations to pay any royalty payments under atlidense agreements are contingent upon the ssfates
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development and commercialization of products ipooating the in-licensed technology. Before anydpiais incorporating the in-licensed
technology may be sold, such products must be apdrby U.S. or foreign regulatory authorities, whigill require a substantial amount of
additional research and development. Even if suotiyrt candidates are advanced through clinicalstrthe results of such trials may not
support approval by the FDA or comparable foreigareies. Consequently, we are not in a positiomasonably estimate when or to what
extent we will be obligated to pay any royaltiesle@nour in-license agreements.

Contract Manufacturing
IPPOX Foundation

In 2010, we entered into an agreement to manufagiasmid DNA vaccines against HIV under a $2.4iomlcontract with the IPPOX
Foundation, a collaborating institution for the RioMs Vaccine Regimen Design led by the Centre Habpr Universitaire Vaudois under the
auspices of the Collaboration for AIDS Vaccine Digery. We delivered the vaccine and recognized 8#lkbn in revenue related to this
contract in 2010.

Naval Medical Research Center

In 2008, we entered into a contract with the NMRQ@anufacture a dengue DNA vaccine formulated withVaxfectin® adjuvant. We
manufactured the vaccine and the adjuvant undér3arsillion contract, and provided regulatory afidical expertise. The dengue vaccine
delivered to the NMRC in 2009. The NMRC is currgrbnducting a Phase 1 clinical trial using thecuae. While we do not have any
ongoing rights to the NMRC'’s dengue DNA vaccin& #accine does incorporate our patented Vaxféctdjuvant. Therefore any
commercialization of the vaccine would requirecatise to these patents.

NIH Vaccine Research Center

The NIH through its Dale and Betty Bumpers VacdResearch Center, or VRC, has clinical stage vaqumiograms based on our
technology for HIV. The NIH has also completed Rhastudies based on our technology for Ebola, VENY SARS. We were granted
exclusive options to exclusively or nonexclusivitgnse any inventions developed by the NIH unterrespective Cooperative Research anc
Development Agreements, or CRADASs, for HIV, Ebota/dNV. The options and licenses that were exercigater the CRADAs have since
expired or terminated due to the discontinuatiothege programs by the NIH. The NIH has transfetinedND for its SARS DNA vaccine to
us and we continue to evaluate our options in oairig the development of that vaccine.

Based on encouraging results in prior studiesNttreinitiated a Phase 2a clinical trial in 2005tbé “prime-boost” vaccine approach
against HIV in several hundred patients. In 208&,NXIH released results from its Phase 2a HIV vextiial using a DNA prime-adenoviral
vector boost approach. The results showed the Macegimen was safe and well-tolerated, and was®fe in inducing T-cell immune
responses in up to 70% of the vaccine recipieriie. N1H planned to further test the DNA prime-adéaradwector boost approach in a trial
known as the PAVE 100 study, which was designezhtoll 8,500 volunteers. We manufactured the DNitnprcomponent of the vaccine to
be used in the PAVE 100 study. The study was tinb@gruitment in October 2007, but was postpomdid\fing the NIH's review of interim
data from an unrelated Phase 2b trial known a$iHeP study which utilized an adenoviral vector iae@lone. The NIH concluded that the
adenoviral vector vaccine failed to prevent HIVeiction or reduce viral load, and the vaccinatedigtia the STEP study exhibited a higher
incidence of infection than the placebo group.uly 2008, after soliciting and considering broagunhfrom the scientific and HIV
communities, the NIH determined that it would nohduct the PAVE 100 study.

In August 2009, the NIH opened a smaller versiothefPAVE 100 study, HVTN 505. The HVTN 505 studgsadesigned to enroll 2,5
HIV-seronegative men in a Phase 2b trial of a p#ioest vaccine regimen
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for HIV using three doses of DNA vaccine, previguslanufactured by us for the PAVE 100 study, fokalby a single dose of adenoviral
vector vaccine. Enrollment in this study is ongoing

Intellectual Property

Patents and other proprietary rights are essdot@lir business. We file patent applications tdgmbour technologies, inventions, and
improvements to our inventions that we considerartgnt to the development of our business. We belee have a comprehensive patent
portfolio in the United States and in key foreigarkets. We also rely upon trade secrets, know-ltowtinuing technological innovations and
licensing opportunities to develop and maintain @mpetitive position.

Our patents and patent applications cover, for gt@nDNA delivery for immunization and delivery tiferapeutic proteins, specific DI
constructs and formulations of gene-based prodardidates, methods for producing pharmaceuticaleggBaNA, and several families of lipid
molecules and their uses in DNA delivery, as désctimore fully below:

Core DNA Delivery Technologywe and the WARF co-own rights to issued U.S. mateovering our core DNA delivery
technology, including patents on methods of adrtenisg DNA sequences for the purposes of expreshiei@peutic proteins or for
inducing immune responses and the administratiddNA sequences into blood vessels and the heat9di, the WARF
exclusively licensed its rights in the core DNAidety technology to us. All of our clinical programare dependent upon this
platform technology. The remaining patents in fhisily expire between December 3, 2013, and Dece®®e2014, however,
under the Hatc-Waxman Act, a U.S. patent term extension for ufiv®years may be available under certain condti

Lipid Technologie. We are the sole assignee of issued U.S. paten&sing numerous examples of cationic lipid commtsthat
are used to facilitate delivery of gene therapiesame tissues. Our pandemic influenza vaccineidata$, CyMVectin™
prophylactic vaccine candidate, HSV-2 vaccine cdatgi as well as our Vaxfectin adjuvant are proteotepart by lipid
technology and/or lipid compound patents that extgmto March 24, 2020. Patent protection of theselipids also has been
obtained in Europe, Canada and Japan. Under thehifdaxman Act, a U.S. patent term extension fotaup years may be
available under certain conditior

Specific DNA TherapeuticdVe have supplemented the broad patent coverageiloed above with patents covering specific
product applications of our technologies. To date have received patents in the United States anope, and have patents
pending in Canada and Japan, relating to codomaged polynucleotide-based vaccines against hunM¥ @fection. The issued
patents expire between December 19, 2023, and ®af0R5. These patents further protect both oungvax™ therapeutic
vaccine candidate for CMV as well as our CyMVectipMphylactic vaccine candidate for CMV. We alsoéan issued U.S.
patent relating specifically to our pandemic inflae vaccine programs and foreign counterparts pgridiAustralia, Canada,
Europe and Japan, all of which will expire on Ma&y 2025. We and the University of Michigan are ¢beassignees of patents
directed towards compositions of matter relatea pmlycistronic plasmid and the use of this plasfaidhe treatment of solid
tumors, which we believe provide additional pratatfor Allovectin® .In 2006, the University of Michigan exclusivelydicsed it
rights in these patents to us. These patents lsaued in the U.S., Canada, Europe and Japan, piréd between May 27, 2014, a
June 8, 2016. Protection for our therapeutic vacandidate for HSV-2 is further augmented by anéd U.S. patent and foreign
counterparts pending in Australia, Canada, EurepkJapan, all of which will expire on July 20, 20Zhese patents are co-owned
with the University of Washington. Under the Haltkaxman Act, a U.S. patent term extension for up years may be available
under certain condition

DNA Process Technologi. As a result of our pioneering efforts to devetlop use of DNA as a therapeutic agent, we have also
developed manufacturing processes for producingypheeutical-grade DNA. To date, we are the exchiaissignee of patents
issued in the U.S. and granted in Ja
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and Europe covering various steps involved in tloegss of economically producing pure plasmidgpfarmaceutical use. This
provides a further level of protection to each of ongoing programs. Patents within this categapire between February 1, 2014
and November 24, 2023. Under the Hatch-Waxmanaphgtent term extension for up to 5 years may béadble under certain
conditions.

. Licensed DNA Delivery Technologi. We and the University of Michigan are the co-gees of patents directed towards
compositions of matter related to a polycistrodasmid and the use of this plasmid for the treatroésolid tumors, which we
believe provides additional protection for Alloviect . In 2006, the University of Michigan exclusiydicensed its rights in these
patents to us. These patents have issued in the@hBada, Europe and Japan, and expire betweer2®)&@&014, and June 8, 2016.
Under the Hatc-Waxman Act, a U.S. patent term extension for up years may be available under certain conditi

During 2012, we were issued one U.S. patent, two@an patents and a Japanese patents relateddoretDNA delivery technology,
enhancements of that technology, and applicatibtisad technology:

. U.S. Patent No. 8,128,938, covering the composéiwh methods of use for an influenza virus vaceihieh expires September 2,
2028;

. European Patent No. 1987845, covering the treatofargncer using cytokine-expressing polynucleatidied compositions which
expires November 20, 201

. European Patent No. 1955709, covering adjuvant ositipns and methods for enhancing immune respdnseslynucleotide
based vaccines which expires March 31, 2028;

. Japanese Patent No. 4917263, covering a procefgéae-drying nucleic acid/block copolymer/catmaurfactant complexes
which expires December 2, 20:

As of December 31, 2012, we were the assignee-assignee of 82 issued U.S. and foreign patentsm@ietain our issued patents by
paying maintenance fees to the patent office ith €acintry when due. Where appropriate, we partieipalegal proceedings to vigorously
defend against the revocation or withdrawal of gatents. The scope and nature of these proceegimgsally differ depending on the country
in which they are initiated.

Among these issued patents, a granted patent wpEuelated to our core DNA delivery technology wpposed by eight parties and
revoked under an initial ruling. We appealed thasidion and in December 2010 our appeal was sUatessl the patent was reinstated by the
Appeals Board and sent back to the Opposition rigor further processing. The Opposition Divisioeld hearings in March of 2012 to
determine whether the patent should be revokedtwr grounds. The Opposition Division ultimatelyedithat the patent should be
maintained. The Opposition Division set a deadéihdune 7, 2012 for filing Notice of Appeal. Becaum appeal was filed, the decision by the
Opposition Division became final on August 1, 200zhile this patent expired in March 2010, the r&itesment gives us the ability to prose«
any infringing activity that may have occurred prio the patent expiring and within five yearsmifiation of the legal proceedings. We may
use other issued patents and patent applicatiansith pending in Europe to protect our DNA techgyl! If we are not successful in defending
our patents, we may lose all or part of our prdprierights related to those patents in these ggattc regions.

As of December 31, 2012, we were also prosecutthpehding patent applications in the United Statessin foreign countries that cover
various aspects of our proprietary technologiesjmaiuding patent applications for which we arecseassignee and that are being prosecutt
our partners. One of the pending foreign patenliegions is an international patent applicatiomlenthe Patent Cooperation Treaty, which
preserves our right to pursue national-phase pafglications in a large number of foreign coustrie
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See “ltem 3—Legal Proceedings,” for a discussiopaiént-related disputes, oppositions, and progetstatus. See also “Risk Factors—
Our patents and proprietary rights may not prouslevith any benefit and the patents of others ntayemt us from commercializing our
products,” and “The legal proceedings to obtain defénd patents, and litigation of third-party wiaiof intellectual property infringement,
could require us to spend money and could impailoperations.”

Commercialization and Manufacturing

Because of the broad potential applications oftecinnologies, we intend to develop and commer&alionducts both on our own and
through our collaborators and licensees. We interdkvelop and commercialize products in well-dedispecialty markets, such as infectious
diseases, oncology and other life-threatening desseaVhere appropriate, we intend to rely on grat@arketing and distribution alliances.

We believe our plasmids can be produced in commlegciantities through uniform methods of fermewtatind processing that are
applicable to all plasmids. In addition, our formitibns consist of components that are synthesizethically using traditional, readily scalable
organic synthesis procedures.

We produce and supply our own plasmids for allwufr@search needs and clinical trials and interréduce sufficient supplies for all
foreseeable clinical investigations. In 2002, wgmsd a 15-year lease on our current facility, wiiehbelieve will be sufficient for our
foreseeable commercial manufacturing requiremdttits.facility received a California Food and DrugBch manufacturing facility license ¢
began production in 2004. We also engage in cantnaaufacturing of plasmid investigational produfcisselected clients.

Competition

We are aware of several development-stage andisk&dbenterprises, including major pharmaceutcal biotechnology firms, which
are actively engaged in infectious disease vaaeisearch and development. These include SanofiaftieyGlaxoSmithKline plc,
Medimmune, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of AZegaeca, Merck and Pfizer Inc., among others. We afsy experience competition from
companies that have acquired or may acquire teogied from companies, universities and other reseiastitutions. These companies may
develop proprietary technologies which may matkriahd adversely affect our business.

In addition, a number of companies are developnoglycts to address the same diseases that wergetirig. For example, Sanofi,
Medlmmune, Roche, GlaxoSmithKline, AlphaVax, Intcbnjunction with Novartis, and others have praslue development programs for
CMV treatment and prevention. Bristol-Myers SquiBlmche in conjunction with Daiichi Sankyo throughacquisition of Plexxikon Inc.,
GlaxoSmithKline, Amgen Inc. through its acquisitiohBioVex, Inc., Celgene Corporation and otheesdaveloping treatments for melanoma
If these or any other companies develop produdits &fficacy or safety profiles significantly bettdan our products, we may not be able to
commercialize our products, and sales of any ofconmmercialized products could be harmed.

Some of our competitors and potential competitangeetsubstantially greater product development dhfied and financial, scientific,
marketing and human resources than we do. Compeetitay develop products earlier, obtain FDA appisf@ products more rapidly, or
develop products that are more effective than thwsker development by us. We will seek to expandechnological capabilities to remain
competitive, however, research and developmentlgre may render our technologies or products ebsalr noncompetitive, or result in
treatments or cures superior to ours.

Our competitive position will be affected by theelse indications addressed by our product caedidaid those of our competitors, the
timing of market introduction for these productsldhne stage of development of other technologiegitiress these disease indications. For us
and our competitors, proprietary technologies atitity to complete clinical trials on a timely limsind with the desired results, and the ability
to obtain timely
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regulatory approvals to market these product cadglare likely to be significant competitive fastdOther important competitive factors will
include the efficacy, safety, ease of use, relighiavailability and price of products and thelipito fund operations during the period betw:
technological conception and commercial sales.

The FDA and other regulatory agencies may expaneicurequirements for public disclosure of DNA-baproduct development data,
which may harm our competitive position with foreignd U.S. companies developing DNA-based prodactsimilar indications.

Government Regulation

Any products we develop will require regulatoryasi@nces prior to clinical trials and additionalukegory approvals prior to
commercialization. New gene-based products forimaoor therapeutic applications are subject toresite regulation by the FDA and
comparable agencies in other countries. The preegdatory requirements with which we will havecamply are uncertain at this time due to
the novelty of the gene-based products and indiegtior uses, that are currently under developn@ntpotential products will be regulated
either as biological products or as drugs. In théddl States, drugs are subject to regulation utideFederal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, o
the FDC Act. Biological products, in addition toithg subject to provisions of the FDC Act, are reged in the United States under the Public
Health Service Act. Both statutes and related eg@is govern, among other things, testing, marnufeng, safety, efficacy, labeling, storage,
record keeping, advertising, and other promotigmattices.

Obtaining FDA approval is a costly and time-consugnprocess. Generally, FDA approval requires thetlimical studies be conducted
in the laboratory and in animal model systems 1o geeliminary information on efficacy and to idéntany major safety concerns. The results
of these studies are submitted as a part of anviNiBh the FDA must review and allow before humanicél trials can start. The IND includ
a detailed description of the proposed clinicakstigations.

A company must submit an IND for each proposed pebdnd must conduct clinical studies to demorsstifae safety and efficacy of the
product necessary to obtain FDA approval. The FB&eives reports on the progress of each phasenafatitesting and may require the
modification, suspension, or termination of cliditéals if an unwarranted risk is presented tagas.

To obtain FDA approval prior to marketing a pharewecal product in the United States typically riegs several phases of clinical trials
to demonstrate the safety and efficacy of the prbdandidate. Clinical trials are the means by Whgperimental treatments are tested in
humans, and are conducted following preclinicdirngs Clinical trials may be conducted within thaitéd States or in foreign countries. If
clinical trials are conducted in foreign countritse products under development as well as this @@ subject to regulations of the FDA
and/or its counterparts in the other countries.rUpaccessful completion of clinical trials, apprioiamarket the treatment for a particular
patient population may be requested from the FD&h@United States and/or its counterparts in atbentries.

Clinical trials for therapeutic products are noripdone in three phases. Phase 1 clinical triadsygically conducted with a small
number of patients or healthy subjects to evalsatety, determine a safe dosage range, identiéyefiidcts, and, if possible, gain early
evidence of effectiveness. Phase 2 clinical taa¢ésconducted with a larger group of patients &lwate effectiveness of an investigational
product for a defined patient population, and teedtaine common short-term side effects and risks@ated with the drug. Phase 3 clinical
trials involve large scale, multi-center, compamatirials that are conducted to evaluate the olvieealefitrisk relationship of the investigatior
product and to provide an adequate basis for ptddbeling. In some special cases where the effitesting of a product may present a spe
challenge to testing in humans, such as in the aaevaccine to protect healthy humans from atlifeatening disease that is not a naturally
occurring threat, effectiveness testing may beiredun animals.
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After completion of clinical trials of a new produ&DA marketing approval must be obtained. If pneduct is regulated as a biologic, a
BLA is required. If the product is classified arew drug, an NDA is required. The NDA or BLA mustlude results of product development
activities, preclinical studies, and clinical ts§ah addition to detailed chemistry, manufactudmgl control information.

Applications submitted to the FDA are subject tauapredictable and potentially prolonged approvatpss. Despite good-faith
communication and collaboration between the appliaad the FDA during the development processFib& may ultimately decide, upon
final review of the data, that the application doessatisfy its criteria for approval or requisdditional product development or further
preclinical or clinical studies. Even if FDA regtday clearances are obtained, a marketed prodsciifct to continual review, and later
discovery of previously unknown problems or failtwecomply with the applicable regulatory requirertsemay result in restrictions on the
marketing of a product or withdrawal of the prodfrom the market as well as possible civil or crialisanctions.

Before marketing clearance for a product can barseg the facility in which the product is manufaed must be inspected by the FDA
and must comply with the FD&’current Good Manufacturing Practices, or cGMBulaions. In addition, after marketing cleararsesédcurec
the manufacturing facility must be inspected pedallly for cGMP compliance by FDA inspectors, aifdhe facility is located in California,
by inspectors from the Food and Drug Branch ofGhéfornia Department of Health Services.

In addition to the FDA requirements, the NIH hamkkshed guidelines for research involving humeanagic materials, including
recombinant DNA molecules. The FDA cooperates énghforcement of these guidelines, which applyltcteaombinant DNA research that is
conducted at facilities supported by the NIH, imihg proposals to conduct clinical research invdvijene therapies. The NIH review of
clinical trial proposals and safety informatioraipublic process and often involves review and apgrby the Recombinant DNA Advisory
Committee of the NIH.

Sponsors of clinical trials are required to regiséad report results for, all controlled, cliniéavestigations, other than Phase 1
investigations, of a product subject to FDA regolat Trial registration may require public discloswf confidential commercial development
data resulting in the loss of competitive secnatsch could be commercially detrimental.

We also are subject to various federal, state acal laws, regulations, and recommendations rejdtrsafe working conditions,
laboratory and manufacturing practices, the expemntiad use of animals, and the use and disposazsrtous or potentially hazardous
substances, including radioactive compounds aratiitus disease agents, used in connection withesgarch. The extent of government
regulation that might result from any future legtgdn or administrative action cannot be accurgteddicted.

Employees

As of December 31, 2012, we had 118 full-time emeés, including 17 with doctorate degrees. Of tlieb¢ime employees, 91 were
engaged in, or directly supporting, research amgldpment and manufacturing activities, and 27 viegeneral and administrative positions.
A significant number of our management and othepleyees have prior experience with pharmaceuticdia biotechnology companies.
None of our employees is covered by collective amigg agreements, and our management considet®red with our employees to be go

26



Table of Contents

Executive Officers of the Registrant
Our executive officers and other executives af®l®ns:

Name ? Position

Vijay B. Samant 60 President, Chief Executive Officer and Direc

Jill M. Broadfoot? 51  Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer 8etretary
Alain P. Rolland, Pharm.D., Ph.?2 53 Executive Vice President, Product Developrr

Igor P. Bilinsky, Ph.D 40  Senior Vice President, Corporate Developn

Mammen P. Mammen, Jr., M.| 49  Vice President, Clinical Vaccine

Larry R. Smith, Ph.D 52  Vice President, Vaccine Resea

1 As of December 31, 201
2 Executive officer

Vijay B. Samanjpined us as President and Chief Executive Offieé&dovember 2000. Previously, he held various parsétat Merck
from 1977 to 2000. From 1998 to 2000, he was Qbjdrating Officer of the Merck Vaccine Division.dfn 1990 to 1998, he served in the
Merck Manufacturing Division as Vice President aidéine Operations, Vice President of Business Affand Executive Director of Materials
Management. From 1977 to 1990, Mr. Samant heldiatyaof positions of increasing responsibilityrimanufacturing, process engineering,
production planning and control, business develaograad loss prevention in several Merck operatingsihns. Mr. Samant holds a bachelor’s
degree in chemical engineering from the Universftombay, India, an M.S. degree in chemical engjiimg from Columbia University and
S.M. degree from the Sloan School of Managemektiat Mr. Samant became a member of the board efotlirs of Raptor Pharmaceutical
Corporation in 2011. Mr. Samant has been a mentitbedBoard of Trustees for the National Foundafmminfectious Diseases and the
International Vaccine Institute in Seoul, South &since 2008. Mr. Samant was also a Directoreoféras Global TB Vaccine Foundation
from 2001 to 2010.

Jill M. Broadfootjoined us as Vice President, Chief Financial Offiaed Secretary in October 2004 and was named S¢ite
President, Chief Financial Officer and Secretarganuary 2009. From February 1999 until joiningMs, Broadfoot held various positions at
DJO Global, Inc., a medical device company, mostméy as Vice President of Finance and Contrellighn broad responsibilities in finance,
accounting, treasury, risk management, and corpg@ternance. From September 1994 until joining BGJ@bal, Inc., Ms. Broadfoot served
as an audit manager at Ernst & Young LLP, whereclients included life sciences, computer softward telecommunications companies as
well as government contractors. From June 1990 joitiing Ernst & Young, she was Division Contraligt Medical Imaging Centers of
America, Inc., a chain of freestanding imaging eesxitnd mobile imaging centers, where she heldidival accounting and financial reporting
responsibilities. Ms. Broadfoot received her bactigldegree in business administration and accogritom San Diego State University and is
a Certified Public Accountant.

Alain P. Rolland, Pharm.D., Ph.Djoined us as Vice President, Product DevelopriteAugust 2002. He was named Senior Vice
President, Product Development in April 2004 anddttive Vice President, Product Development in 4an@009. Dr. Rolland was Senior
Vice President of Pre-Clinical Research and Devalemt and Head of The Woodlands Center of Valehtes,from 2000 to 2002. From 1993
to 1999, he served in several positions at a pes$ec company to Valentis, Inc., where he progesen Director of Gene Delivery to Vice
President of Research. From 1989 to 1993, he veasi¢tad of Formulation Research at the ResearchvIbpment Center of Galderma
International in France. Prior to that, he wasiargest at the Advanced Drug Delivery Research €eot Ciba Geigy Pharmaceuticals in the
United Kingdom. He received his Pharm.D., D.E.Ad &h.D. degrees from Rennes University, FranceRbland holds several U.S. and
European patents on advanced drug and gene deforenyedical applications. He has authored numepatnications and books in the area of
nonviral gene delivery resulting from his activeess in research and development. He also servidseceditorial board of several journals anc
was the founding Editor-in-Chief of “Current Phaweatical Biotechnology.”
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Igor P. Bilinsky, Ph.D, joined us as Senior Vice President, Corporatecldgment in October 2010. Prior to joining us, Bitinsky was
Vice President, Business Development and Speciat&dpns at Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. since Jg2@08, after joining the company in
2007 as Executive Director, Corporate Developmadt3pecial Operations. From 2005 to 2007, Dr. BKinwas Chief Executive Officer of
Androclus Therapeutics, Inc., a privately-held batnology company developing novel therapeuticafdoimmune and inflammatory
diseases. He joined Androclus in 2004 as Chief @y Officer. From 1999 to 2004, Dr. Bilinsky sedvin positions of increasing
responsibility as a management consultant, prégecter and ultimately as principal in the healtegamnactice of the Boston Consulting Group,
where he advised companies in the biotechnologgrrpaceutical and life science industries on busisasitegy, operational performance and
mergers and acquisitions. Prior to joining the Bastonsulting Group, Dr. Bilinsky also worked irsearch positions at Symyx Technologies,
Inc. and the MIT Lincoln Laboratory. Dr. Bilinskgeeived his B.S. degree in physics from the Moskwtitute of Physics and Technology
and his Ph.D. degree in physics from MIT.

Mammen P. Mammen, Jr., M.[bjned us as Vice President, Clinical VaccinedNovember 2012. Prior to joining us, he served as
Infectious Disease Consultant and Chief, Pandendmitlg Team, U.S. Department of Defense, Fort BletiMaryland. From 2006 to 2010,
served as the Army’s Product Manager for vaccinesdvanced Development against dengue, hepatisé& HIV viruses for the U.S. Army
Medical Research and Materiel Command, Fort Detit&ryland. As Chief, Department of Virology, themded Forces Research Institute of
Medical Sciences, Thailand, from 2001 to 2006, ammen managed a number of the Army’s FDA-regulatettine studies. Dr. Mammen
received his M.D. degree from the PennsylvaniaeSthtiversity College of Medicine and is Board-dextl in Infectious Diseases. He has beel
elected as Fellow by the Infectious Disease SociEfymerica and the American College of Physicidts.received his Internal Medicine and
Infectious Disease clinical training from the WalReed Army Medical Center. He earned a B.A. degremathematics from Williams
College. Dr. Mammen has authored or co-authoredynB@ scientific publications spanning multiple eming and re-emerging infectious
diseases.

Larry R. Smith, Ph.D, joined us as Executive Director, Vaccinology ep&mber 2003, and was named Vice President, Vaccin
Research in October 2006. Prior to joining Vical, ®mith was Director of Viral Vaccines Researchgteth Vaccines, where he oversaw the
immunogenicity testing of various viral vaccinesliding a number of recombinant viral vectors. Pt@joining Wyeth in 1996, Dr. Smith w
a Scientific Investigator at Immune Response, wher&lentified autoreactive T-cell targets in pasis and multiple sclerosis which led to the
clinical testing of several therapeutic vaccinedidates. Dr. Smith received a B.S. degree in Bipliogm Purdue University, a Ph.D. in
Microbiology and Immunology from the University ©éxas Medical Branch, and was a postdoctoral feitothe Immunology Department at
Scripps Clinic and Research Foundation.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should consider carefully the risks describebbly, together with all of the other informatiortinded in this Annual Report on Form
10-K, and in our other filings with the SEC, befalexiding whether to invest in or continue to holat common stock. The risks described
below are all material risks currently known, exigelcor reasonably foreseeable by us. If any ofethis&s actually occur, our business,
financial condition, results of operations or céelw could be seriously harmed. This could caugetthding price of our common stock to
decline, resulting in a loss of all or part of yaowestment.

None of our independently developed product candédahas been approved for sale, and we have adichitumber of independently
developed product candidates in clinical trials.Wfe do not develop commercially successful produets may be forced to curtail or cease
operations.

All of our independently developed product candidadre either in research or development. We namtut a substantial amount of
additional research and development before any &.freign regulatory authority will approve anfyaur product candidates. Limited data
exist regarding the efficacy of DNA vaccines
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or therapeutics compared with conventional vaccirdlerapeutics. Results of our research and dprent activities may indicate that our
product candidates are unsafe or ineffective. imehse, regulatory authorities will not approventh

Our independently developed product candidate®ntlyrin clinical development include Allovectin for which we announced the
completion of enroliment of a Phase 3 clinicalltiia2010. We have an allowed Investigational NemdpApplication for CyMVectin™ and
have begun preclinical work on a HSV-2 vaccine. M&y not conduct Phase 1 CyMVectin™ or HSV-2 vactiizds, and the future trials, if
any, may not demonstrate sufficient efficacy topaurpfurther product development. Because we hdiraited number of independent clinical-
stage product candidates, if we experience a signif delay, set-back or failure in the developnadrany of these product candidates, it coulo
have a material adverse impact on our businesp@cts In particular, we believe that our near-tprospects are substantially dependent on
the results of our Phase 3 clinical trial for Albmtin. If we do not meet the primary endpoint @& thal or the results are otherwise negative or
are perceived negatively, our stock price couldidecignificantly.

Additionally, we are in early stages of developmeith other product candidates. These product cateds will require significant costs
to advance through the development stages. If ptatuct candidates are advanced through clini@détrthe results of such trials may not
support approval by the FDA or comparable foreigareies. Even if approved, our products may natdmemercially successful, particularly
if they do not gain market acceptance among physsgipatients, healthcare payers and relevant alatimmunities. If we fail to develop and
commercialize our products, we may be forced téadusr cease operations.

We are dependent on our license agreements witheless to further develop and commercialize TransVak The failure to maintain
these agreements, or the failure of Astellas tofpem its obligations under these agreements, conkbatively impact our business.

Pursuant to the terms of our license agreementsAugtellas, we granted to Astellas exclusive worttwrights to develop and
commercialize certain products, including TransVakiit excluding CyMVectin™, for the control and peetion of CMV infection in
immunocompromised patients, including transplaaipients and transplant donors, and pursuant teetimes of our supply and services
agreement with Astellas, we are obligated to perfoertain development activities and supply Assalléth its product requirements for
development and initial commercialization actiwati€onsequently, our ability to generate any regsritom TransVax™ depends on Astellas’
ability to develop, obtain regulatory approvals &md successfully commercialize TransVax™. We Hiawiged control over the amount and
timing of resources that Astellas will dedicatdtiese efforts.

We are subject to a number of other risks assatiaith our dependence on our license agreemenitsAsitellas, including:

. Astellas may not comply with applicable regulatgoidelines with respect to developing or commeiziad TransVax™, which
could adversely impact sales or future developroéfitansVax™;

. We and Astellas could disagree as to future devedop plans and Astellas may delay, fail to commencsop future clinical trials
or other developmen

. There may be disputes between us and Astellasidimg disagreements regarding the license agresntéat may result in (1) the
delay of or failure to achieve developmental, ragily and commercial objectives that would resulnilestone or royalty
payments, (2) the delay or termination of any fatdevelopment or commercialization of TransVax™d/an(3) costly litigation or
arbitration that diverts our managen’s attention and resource

. Astellas may not provide us with timely and acceiiatormation regarding development, sales and etiuty activities or supply
forecasts, which could adversely impact our abititgomply with our service and supply obligatida#stellas and manage our
own inventory of TransVax™, as well as our abititygenerate accurate financial foreca
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. Business combinations or significant changes irelfest’ business strategy may adversely affect festehbility or willingness to
perform its obligations under our license agreesi

. Astellas may not properly defend our intellectualerty rights, or may use our proprietary inforimatin such a way as to invite
litigation that could jeopardize or invalidate ontellectual property rights or expose us to patiitigation;

. The royalties we are eligible to receive from Alstelmay be reduced based upon Astellas’ and olityai maintain or defend our
intellectual property rights and the presence ofegie competitors

. Limitations on our or an acquiror’s ability to medm or pursue development or commercializatioprofducts that are competitive
with TransVax™ could deter a potential acquisitidrus that our stockholders may otherwise viewexseficial; anc

. If Astellas is unsuccessful in developing, obtagniagulatory approvals for or commercializing Thdas™, we may not receive
any additional milestone or royalty payments uritierlicense agreements and our business prospetfmancial results may be
materially harmed

The license agreements and supply and servicesragrg are subject to early termination, includimgpuigh Astellas’ right to terminate
upon advance notice to us if Astellas reasonahigrdenes that further development and/or commereiibn will not be beneficial for
Astellas. If the agreements are terminated earymay not be able to find another collaboratottiercommercialization and further
development of TransVax™ on acceptable terms, all,aind we may be unable to pursue continuedldpaeent or commercialization of
TransVax™ on our own.

Our revenues partially depend on the developmend @ommercialization of products in collaboration thiothers to whom we have
licensed our technologies. If our other collaboratoor licensees do not successfully develop and memtialize products covered by these
arrangements, or if we are unable to find collabdaas or licensees in the future, we may not be atdelerive revenues from these
arrangements, we may lose opportunities to validate DNA delivery technologies, or we may be fordeccurtail our development and
commercialization efforts in these areas.

In addition to our license agreements with AsteNes have licensed, and may continue to licenseteminologies to corporate
collaborators and licensees for the research, dpwetnt and commercialization of specified prodactdidates. Our revenues partially depend
upon the ability of these collaborators and licessst® successfully develop and commercialize prisctmvered by these arrangements. In
addition, our licensees Astellas and AnGes havduymibcandidates in advanced stage of clinical agreent, for which we believe regulatory
approval would provide important further validatiohour DNA delivery technologies. The developmand commercialization efforts of our
collaborators and licensees are subject to the sgkseand uncertainties described above with @gpeour independently developed product
candidates.

Some collaborators or licensees may not succeigtinproduct development efforts. It is possilblattAnGes or any of our other
collaborators or licensees may be unable to obé&gjolatory approval of product candidates usingtecinologies or successfully market and
commercialize any such products for which regulapproval is obtained. In September 2010, AnGesanced that after a series of
extensive consultations with the Japanese Pharriealsiand Medical Devices Agency, it would be wlittwing its New Drug Application, or
NDA, in Japan. Also in September 2010, anotherafraur licensees, Sanofi, announced that NV1FGRrajiogenic growth factor therapet
for which Sanofi had licensed our DNA delivery taology, did not meet the primary endpoint in a gldBhase 3 trial. Other collaborators or
licensees may not devote sufficient time or resesito the programs covered by these arrangemeactsye may have limited or no control
over the time or resources allocated by theselmmiigtors or licensees to these programs. The aoweerof any of these events may cause us
derive little or no revenue from these arrangemeéose opportunities to validate our DNA deliveeghnologies, or force us to curtail or cease
our development and commercialization efforts esthareas.
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Our collaborators and licensees may breach or tet@itheir agreements with us, including somertieat terminate their agreements
without cause at any time subject to certain paigtten notice requirements, and we may be unssfgkis entering into and maintaining ott
collaborative arrangements for the developmentcamamercialization of products using our technolegléwe are unable to maintain existing
collaboration arrangements or enter into new oosability to generate licensing, milestone oraiby revenues would be materially impaired.

Some of our independent product candidates and saf#hose under development by our sublicenseesiiporate technologies we
have licensed from others. If we are unable to rietaights to use these technologies, we or our sabhsees may not be able to market
products incorporating these technologies on a coernially feasible basis, if at al

We have licensed certain technologies from corparatlaborators and research institutions, andiceided certain of such technologies
to others, for use in the research, developmentaminercialization of product candidates. Our poydievelopment efforts and those of our
sublicensees partially depend upon continued atoghgse technologies. For example, we or ounfioes may breach or terminate our
agreements, or disagree on interpretations of tagesements, which could prevent continued accegse technologies. If we were unabl
resolve such matters on satisfactory terms, olt,at@ or our sublicensees may be unable to devahmbcommercialize our products, and we
may be forced to curtail or cease operations.

We have a history of net losses. We expect to omtito incur net losses and we may not achieve aintain profitability.

To date, we have not sold, or received approvaétlh any pharmaceutical products. We do not exigesell any pharmaceutical products
for at least the next several years. Our net loages approximately $22.9 million, $7.3 million a$80.4 million for the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectivelypfAecember 31, 2012, we had incurred cumulatitdasses totaling approximately
$347.9 million. Moreover, we expect that our netsies will continue and may increase for the for@sleefuture. We may not be able to ach
projected results if we generate lower revenuasagive lower investment income than expected,@maeur greater expenses than expected,
or all of the above. We may never generate suffigieoduct revenue to become profitable. We algmeetto have quarter-to-quarter
fluctuations in revenues, expenses, and losses sbmhich could be significant.

We may need additional capital in the future. If diional capital is not available, we may have tortail or cease operations.

We may need to raise more money to continue theareb and development necessary to bring our ptedoienarket and to establish
marketing and additional manufacturing capabiliti® may seek additional funds through public amebpe stock offerings, government
contracts and grants, arrangements with corpomt&borators, borrowings under lease lines of ¢redother sources. We currently have on
file a shelf registration statement that allowsaigaise up to an aggregate of $150.0 million ftbmsale of common stock, preferred stock,
debt securities and/or warrants. However, we mayaable to raise additional funds on favorabimse or at all. Conditions in the credit
markets and the financial services industry mayereduity and debt financing more difficult to olboteénd may negatively impact our ability
complete financing transactions. To the extentweataise additional funds by issuing equity sem@gj our stockholders may experience
significant dilution. Any debt financing, if avablée, may involve restrictive covenants, such agtéitions on our ability to incur additional
indebtedness and other operating restrictionscihalt adversely impact our ability to conduct ousiness.

In November 2012, we entered into an At-The-Makkgtity Offering Sales Agreement, or Sales Agreemgith Stifel, Nicolaus &
Company, Incorporated, or Stifel, under which weynsaue and sell up to $50.0 million of our comnstwck from time to time. However,
Stifel is not obligated to sell any shares thatmay request to be sold, and any attempt to seleshander this facility, if made, may not be
successful or result in sufficient proceeds to noetcapital requirements.
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If we are unable to obtain additional funds, we rhaye to scale back our development of new produsdsice our workforce or license
to others products or technologies that we otherwisuld seek to commercialize ourselves. The amoumoney we may need would depend
on many factors, including:

. The progress of our research and development prosgy
. The scope and results of our preclinical studiesdimical trials; anc

. The time and costs involved in: obtaining necessagylatory approvals; filing, prosecuting and eaiiog patent claims; scaling up
our manufacturing capabilities; and the comme@iedngements we may establi

The regulatory approval process is expensive, ttnasuming and uncertain, which may prevent us angr@ollaborators and
licensees from obtaining required approvals for tatemmercialization of our products.

Our product candidates under development and thfoser collaborators and licensees, including Aatglare subject to extensive and
rigorous regulations by numerous governmental aiité® in the United States and other countrie® fdgulatory approval process takes man
years and will require us to expend substantiaueses. For example, the FDA has provided onlytéchguidelines concerning the size i
scope of clinical trials required for gene-basestdabeutic and vaccine products.

Therefore, U.S. or foreign regulations could preévardelay regulatory approval of our productsinit our and our collaborators and
licensees’ ability to develop and commercialize pioducts. Delays could:

. Impose costly procedures on our activities andehadur collaborators and license

. Delay or prevent our receipt of developmental anowrcial milestones from our collaborators andrisees
. Diminish any competitive advantages that we ormoducts attain; ¢

. Otherwise negatively affect our results of operatiand cash flow:

We have no experience in filing a BLA or NDA withet FDA. Because a BLA or NDA must be submittedrtd approved by the FDA
before any of our product candidates may be comialered, our lack of experience may impede ourighid obtain FDA approval in a timely
manner, if at all, which in turn would delay or peat us from commercializing those products. Sirhileour lack of experience with respect to
obtaining regulatory approvals in countries ottantthe United States may impede our ability torentialize our products in those countt

We believe that the FDA and comparable foreign laguy bodies will regulate separately each prodwocitaining a particular gene
depending on its intended use. Presently, to cowiaize any product we and our collaborators acensees must file a regulatory application
for each proposed use. We and our collaboratordieemsees must conduct clinical studies to denmatesthe safety and efficacy of the proc
necessary to obtain FDA or foreign regulatory artith@pproval. The results obtained so far in dinical trials and those of our collaborators
and licensees may not be replicated in ongoingitoré trials, or the results may be subject to arynterpretation on whether they are
sufficient to support approval for commercializatidhis may prevent any of our product candidatesh freceiving approval for commercial
sale.

We anticipate that we would commercially manufaetamy of our product candidates that are appromechérketing. Therefore, our
manufacturing facilities will have to be approvedtbe FDA pursuant to inspections conducted afeisubmit an application for regulatory
approval. If we cannot successfully manufactureematthat conforms to applicable specificationd #me strict regulatory requirements of the
FDA, we will not be able to secure and/or maintaigulatory approval for our manufacturing facilitiéf the FDA does not approve our
facilities for the manufacture of our product catades or if it withdraws any such approval in theufe, our ability to develop, obtain
regulatory approval for or market our product cdatés will be adversely effected.
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We use recombinant DNA molecules in our productizgdates, and therefore we and our collaboratordiaedsees also must comply
with guidelines instituted by the NIH and its O#iof Biotechnology Activities. The NIH could restrior delay the development of our produc
candidates.

If any of our product candidates receive regulatgpproval, the FDA or other foreign regulatory agies may still impose significant
restrictions on the indicated uses or marketinguwfproduct candidates or impose ongoing requirg¢sen potentially costly post-approval
studies. In addition, regulatory agencies subjgmoduct, its manufacturer and the manufacturedifies to continual review and periodic
inspections. If a regulatory agency discovers esly unknown problems with a product or a prodi@ss, including adverse events of
unanticipated severity or frequency, or problenthhe facility where the product is manufactur@degulatory agency may impose
restrictions on that product or product class,amllaborators and licensees or us, including réagiwithdrawal of a product from the market.
Our product candidates will also be subject to amy&DA and other foreign regulatory agency requieats for the labeling, packaging,
storage, advertising, promotion, record-keeping stimission of safety and other post-market inféionaon the product. If we or our
collaborators and licensees fail to maintain reguacompliance after receiving marketing approvad,or our collaborators and licensees may
be unable to market our products and our businassl cuffer.

Adverse events or the perception of adverse evientse field of gene therapy, or with respect torquroduct candidates, may
negatively impact regulatory approval or public meption of our products.

The commercial success of some of our product datek will depend in part on public acceptancéefuse of gene therapy for
preventing or treating human diseases. Seriousrsglevents, including patient deaths, have occumretinical trials utilizing viral delivery
systems to deliver therapeutic genes to the p&itargeted cells. Although none of our currentdarcts or studies utilize viral delivery
systems, these adverse events, as well as anyaatherse events in the field of gene therapy that atcur in the future, may negatively
influence public perception of gene therapy in gahéf public perception is influenced by clain&t gene therapy is unsafe, our product
candidates may not be accepted by the generalcputthe medical community.

Future adverse events in gene therapy or the Ihinttogy industry could also result in greater goveental regulation, stricter labeling
requirements and potential regulatory delays inéiséng or approval of our potential products. Amgreased scrutiny could delay or increase
the costs of our product development efforts aricdil trials. In addition, any adverse events thay occur in our clinical trials and any
resulting publicity may cause regulatory delaysthrerwise affect our product development effortslonical trials.

Some of our potential products may be administevguhtients who are suffering from, or are vulnérdb, serious diseases or other
conditions which can themselves be life-threateraind often result in the death of the patient.ds@mple, one patient in our Allovectn
Phase 2 trial conducted in 2000, died from progvestisease more than two months after receivirigu&tctin® and other cancer therapies.
death was originally reported as unrelated to thatinent. Following an autopsy, the death was ssiflad as “probably related” to the
treatment because the possibility could not bedrol&. We do not believe Allovectih was a significéactor in the patient’s death. Patient
deaths in our clinical trials, even if caused bg-pkisting diseases or conditions, could negatiaéfigct the perception of our product
candidates. In addition, in our TransVax™ Phagga®, tve administered TransVax™ to patients whoenarrisk of CMV reactivation.
Although we do not believe our vaccine candidategddcause the diseases they are designed to pagf@iost, a temporal relationship betw
vaccination and disease onset could be perceivedusal. Some of our products are designed to Btismimmune responses, and those
responses, if particularly strong or uncontrollealld result in local or systemic adverse eventduding latent adverse events.

Our patents and proprietary rights may not provide with any benefit and the patents of others magyent us from commercializing
our products.

As of December 31, 2012, we were the assignee-assignee of 82 issued U.S. and foreign patentsm@ietain our issued patents by
paying maintenance fees to the patent office ith €atintry when due. Where
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appropriate, we participate in legal proceedingggorously defend against the revocation or wigtvell of our patents. The scope and nature
of these proceedings generally differ dependinghercountry in which they are initiated. If we a@ successful in defending our patents, we
may lose all or part of our proprietary rights tethto those patents in these geographic regions.

As of December 31, 2012, we were also prosecutthpehding patent applications in the United Statesin foreign countries that cover
various aspects of our proprietary technologiesjmaiuding patent applications for which we arecseassignee and that are being prosecutt
our partners.

We may not receive any patents from our currergrgatpplications. Issued patents provide exclysfoit only a limited time period,
after which they no longer serve to protect prdprigtechnologies or to provide any commercial adxge. Moreover, if patents are issued to
us, governmental authorities may not allow clainfficGient to protect our technologies and produ€tthers may also challenge or seek to
circumvent or invalidate our patents. In that eyér rights granted under our patents may be ozate to protect our proprietary technolog
or to provide any commercial advantage.

In addition, the Leahy-Smith America Invents AatAdA, was signed into law on September 16, 201t significantly changed certain
aspects of the United States patent laws, soméatvare currently in effect and others of whichl Wweécome effective March 16, 2013. These
changes include, but are not limited to, authog4ie setting authority to the United States Pafdfite, transitioning the United States to a
first-inventor-to file patent system, expanding sitepe of prior art that may be utilized againgeading patent application, and adding post-
patent grant proceedings before the Patent Offisghich third parties may challenge the validitytloé granted patent. Accordingly, it is not
clear, what, if any, impact the AIA will have oretbost of prosecuting our patent applications,atility to obtain patents based on our patent
applications, and our ability to enforce or defend issued or granted United States patents. Ailityato obtain, enforce, and defend patents
covering our proprietary technologies would matgriand adversely affect our business prospectsfiaadcial condition.

Some components of our gene-based product canglideteor may become, patented by others. As &,resumay be required to obtain
licenses to conduct research, to manufacture, wraidket such products. Licenses may not be availalcommercially reasonable terms, or a
all, which may impede our ability to commercialmar products.

The legal proceedings to obtain and defend pateats] litigation of third-party claims of intellectal property infringement, could
require us to spend money and could impair our oggons.

Our and our collaborators’, including Astellas’ceass will depend in part on our, or our collabansit ability to obtain patent protection
for our products and processes, both in the UrStaties and in other countries. The patent positibiéotechnology and pharmaceutical
companies, however, can be highly uncertain andavcomplex legal and factual questions. Therefibie difficult to predict the breadth of
claims allowed in the biotechnology and pharmacalfields.

We also rely on confidentiality agreements with corporate collaborators, employees, consultardscartain contractors to protect our
proprietary technologies. However, these agreenmaisbe breached and we may not have adequate iemiedsuch breaches. In addition,
our trade secrets may otherwise become known epiendently discovered by our competitors.

Protecting intellectual property rights can be vexpensive. Litigation may be necessary to enfpatents issued to us or to determine
the scope and validity of third-party proprietaights. If we or, as applicable, our commercialiaatpartners, including Astellas pursuant to its
first right to enforce patents licensed to it under license agreements, choose to go to coutbpsomeone else from using our inventions,
that individual or company has the right to askdbert to rule that the underlying patents are lidvand/or should not be
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enforced against that third party. Moreover, ibapetitor were to file a patent application claightechnology also invented by us or our
collaborators or licensees, we would have to pgdte in an interference proceeding before the Befent and Trademark Office to determine
the priority of the invention. We or our collabayes or licensees may be drawn into interferencés third parties or may have to provoke
interferences ourselves to unblock third-party patights to allow us or our collaborators or liseres to commercialize products based on oul
technologies. Litigation could result in substantiasts and the diversion of management’s eff@tmrdless of the results of the litigation. An
unfavorable result in litigation could subject nsstgnificant liabilities to third parties, requidésputed rights to be licensed or require us to
cease using some technologies.

Our products and processes may infringe, or beddomnfringe, patents not owned or controlled By Ratents held by others may
require us to alter our products or processesjrohit&nses, or stop activities. If relevant claiofghird-party patents are upheld as valid and
enforceable, we or our collaborators or licenseesdche prevented from practicing the subject matti@med in the patents, or may be reqt
to obtain licenses or redesign our products orgsses to avoid infringement. In addition, we or@altaborators or licensees could be require
to pay money damages. A number of genetic sequemgasteins encoded by genetic sequences thatenieaestigating are, or may become,
patented by others. As a result, we or our collatoos or licensees may have to obtain licensesstouse or market these products. Our
business will suffer if we or our collaboratorslicensees are not able to obtain licenses at ahderms commercially reasonable to us or t
and we or they are not able to redesign our pradacprocesses to avoid infringement.

We have incurred costs in several legal proceedimgsving our intellectual property rights in Ey®, Japan and Canada. We may
continue to incur costs to defend and prosecutenpaeind patent applications in these and oth@neg

Competition and technological change may make ouoguct candidates and technologies less attractiveobsolete.

We compete with companies, including major pharrmatical and biotechnology firms that are pursuingeotforms of treatment or
prevention for diseases that we target. We alsoerpgrience competition from companies that hageiiaed or may acquire technologies
from universities and other research institutidksthese companies develop their technologies, ey develop proprietary positions which
may prevent us from successfully commercializingdpicts.

Some of our competitors are established comparitesgreater financial and other resources than axehOther companies may succ
in developing products and obtaining regulatoryrapal from the FDA or comparable foreign agencastdr than we do, or in developing
products that are more effective than ours. Rebeard development by others may seek to rendetechinologies or products obsolete or
noncompetitive or result in treatments or curessiop to any therapeutics developed by us.

The NIH and the FDA jointly developed the Genetiod¥fication Clinical Research Information SystemGeMCRIS, an Internet-based
database of human gene transfer trials. GeMCRIBles@dividuals to easily view information on peutar characteristics of clinical gene
transfer trials. Although GeMCRIS includes spesiturity features designed to protect patient pyivand confidential commercial
information, these security features may be inadtdy designed or enforced, potentially resultimglisclosure of confidential commercial
information. In addition, the NIH, in collaboratiovith the FDA, has developed an Internet site, i€éifTrials.gov, which provides public
access to information on clinical trials and thesults for a wide range of diseases and conditieuire disclosures of such confidential
commercial information may result in loss of adeay# of competitive secrets.
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If we lose our key personnel or are unable to atttand retain additional personnel, we may not b@leto achieve our business
objectives.

We are highly dependent on our principal scientifi@nufacturing, clinical, regulatory and managenpemsonnel, including Vijay B.
Samant, our President and Chief Executive Offithe loss of the services of these individuals mgigificantly delay or prevent the
achievement of our objectives. We do not maint&iy“person” life insurance on any of our personwé. depend on our continued ability to
attract, retain and motivate highly qualified mamagnt and scientific personnel. We face competftomualified individuals from other
companies, academic institutions, government estiaind other organizations in attracting and rigtgipersonnel. To pursue our product
development plans, we may need to hire additiormalagement personnel and additional scientific pemsioto perform research and
development, as well as additional personnel wiftedtise in clinical trials, government regulatamd manufacturing. However, due to the
reasons noted above, we may not be successfuirig lur retaining qualified personnel and therefeeemay not be able to achieve our
business objectives.

We have limited experience in manufacturing our mhact candidates in commercial quantities. We mayt be able to comply with
applicable manufacturing regulations or produce didient product for contract or commercial purposes

The commercial manufacturing of vaccines and adbi@bgical products is a time-consuming and compmcess, which must be
performed in compliance with the FDA's current Gdddnufacturing Practices, or cGMP, regulations. M&y not be able to comply with the
cGMP regulations, and we have in the past encoeah@nd may in the future encounter delays, dissaptor quality control problems in our
manufacturing process. In addition, we may neazbtoplete the installation and validation of additiblarge-scale fermentation and related
purification equipment to produce the quantitieprduct expected to be required for commerciappses. We have limited experience in
manufacturing at this scale. Noncompliance witha®&& P regulations, the inability to complete thstailation or validation of additional
large-scale equipment, or other problems with canafiacturing process may limit or delay the develept or commercialization of our
product candidates, and cause us to breach owactntanufacturing service arrangements or ougabbns under our agreements with
collaborators, including our obligations under supply and services agreement with Astellas.

We currently depend on third parties to conduct atlinical trials and may initially depend on thirgharties to manufacture our produ
candidates commercially.

We rely on third parties, including clinical resgfaorganizations, or CROs, medical institutions eowttract laboratories, to perform
critical services for us in connection with oumdtial trials. These third parties are responsibtenfany aspects of the trials, including finding
and enrolling subjects for testing and adminisgethre trials. Although we rely on these third pestto conduct our clinical trials, we are
responsible for ensuring that each of our clinidals is conducted in accordance with its protawd applicable regulations, including good
clinical practices established by the FDA and fgmaiegulatory authorities, which govern the condminitoring, recording and reporting the
results of clinical trials to ensure that the datd results are scientifically credible and aceyrand that trial subjects are adequately informed
of the potential risks associated with participgtim clinical trials. Our reliance on third partigses not relieve us of the responsibility to ea
these requirements are met. These third partiesmoiagomply with all regulatory and contractualug#gments or may not otherwise perform
their services in a timely or acceptable manned,\v@@ may need to enter into new arrangements Wehnative third parties and our clinical
trials may be extended, delayed or terminateddtiten, if such third parties fail to perform thebligations in compliance with our clinical
trial protocols or applicable good clinical praeti@gulations, our clinical trials may not meetulatpry requirements or may need to be
repeated, and we may not be able to obtain regylagproval for or commercialize the product caatidbeing tested in such trials. These
also apply to the development activities of outatmbrators and licensees, and we do not controtolleborators’ and licensees’ research and
development, clinical trials or regulatory actiggi
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We may also initially depend on collaborators, hisees or other third parties to manufacture ouwdyobcandidates in commercial
guantities. There are a limited number of thirdtiparthat could manufacture our product candiddsmay be unable to enter into any
arrangement for the commercial manufacture of codyct candidates, and any arrangement we secyr@obaneet our requirements for
manufacturing quality or quantity. Our dependentéhird parties for the commercial manufacture wf product candidates may also reduce
our profit margins and our ability to develop arediver products in a timely manner.

We have no marketing or sales experience, and ifame unable to develop our own sales and marketiagability, we may not be
successful in commercializing our product

Our current strategy is to market our proprietaigdpicts directly in the United States, but we cottyedo not possess pharmaceutical
marketing or sales capabilities. To market andasllproprietary products, we will need to devedogales force and a marketing group with
relevant pharmaceutical industry experience, orarvagipropriate arrangements with strategic partoemsarket and sell these products.
Developing a marketing and sales force is experainktime-consuming and could delay any producatdaulf we are unable to successfully
employ qualified marketing and sales personnekesetbp other sales and marketing capabilities, \&ag not be able to generate sufficient
product revenue to become profitable.

Healthcare reform and restrictions on reimbursememtay limit our returns on potential products.

Our ability to earn sufficient returns on our protiuwill depend in part on how much, if any, reimgament for our products and related
treatments will be available from:

. Government health administration authoriti

. Government agencies procuring biodefense prodactsifitary or public use, including some for whiale may become a sole-
source vendol

. Private health coverage insure
. Managed care organizations; &
. Other organization:

If we fail to obtain appropriate reimbursement, eeelld be prevented from successfully commercialznar potential products. There i
ongoing efforts by governmental and third-partygrayto contain or reduce the costs of healthcacaigh various reform measures. In the
United States, the Federal government passed comive healthcare reform legislation in 2010. Mahthe details regarding the
implementation of this legislation are yet to béedained and we currently cannot predict whethd@pavhat extent such implementation or
adoption of reforms may impair our business.

Additionally, third-party payers are increasinglyatlenging the price of medical products and sewidf purchasers or users of our
products are not able to obtain adequate reimbusefar the cost of using our products, they magdo or reduce their use. Significant
uncertainty exists as to the reimbursement stdtaswly approved healthcare products, and whettieqaate third-party coverage will be
available.

We use hazardous materials in our business. Anyiragrelating to improper handling, storage or dispal of these materials could be
time consuming and costly.

Our research and development processes involveotiteolled storage, use and disposal of hazard@terials and biological materials.
Our hazardous materials include certain compregases, flammable liquids, acids and bases, and tatkie compounds. We are subject to
federal, state and local regulations governingues manufacture, storage, handling and disposahtdrials and waste products. Although we
believe that our safety procedures for handlingdiegosing of these hazardous materials comply thigrstandards prescribed by law and
regulation, the risk of accidental contaminationnjury from hazardous materials cannot be completéminated. In the event of an accident,
we could be held liable for any damages that re¥uét could incur significant costs to comply witlrent or future environmental laws and
regulations
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We may have significant product liability exposure.

We face an inherent business risk of exposureddymt liability and other claims in the event tbat technologies or products are alle
to have caused harm. We also have potential liglidr products manufactured by us on a contrasisbfr third parties. Although we currer
maintain product liability insurance in the amooh$10 million in the aggregate plus additional emge specific to the foreign countries
where our clinical trials are being conducted, thigirance coverage may not be sufficient, and &g mot be able to obtain sufficient cover.
in the future at a reasonable cost. Our inabibitphtain product liability insurance at an accefgalost or to otherwise protect against potentia
product liability claims could prevent or inhibite commercialization of any products developed $grour collaborators, or our ability to
manufacture products for third parties. If we aredsfor any injury caused by our technologies odpcts, or by third-party products that we
manufacture, our liability could exceed our insweooverage and total assets.

Negative conditions in the global credit markets ynianpair the liquidity of a portion of our investnra portfolio.

Our investment securities consist of auction rataisties, corporate debt securities and governmgency securities. As of
December 31, 2012, our long-term investments iredual (at par value) $2.5 million auction rate siégwecured by municipal bonds. At
December 31, 2012, the auction rate security we imglintained a Standard and Poor’s credit ratingBB. Our auction rate security is a debt
instrument with a long-term maturity and with ateirest rate that is reset in short intervals thhoaigctions. The conditions in the global credit
markets have prevented some investors from liguiddheir holdings of auction rate securities beeathe amount of securities submitted for
sale has exceeded the amount of purchase ordessdbrsecurities. If there is insufficient demaodthe securities at the time of an auction
auction may not be completed and the interest ratasbe reset to predetermined higher rates. Whetioas for these securities fail, the
investments may not be readily convertible to aasiil a future auction of these investments is sastul or they are redeemed or mature.

Since February 2008, there has been insufficiemiaghel at auction for our auction rate security lalBecember 31, 2012. As a result,
this security is currently not liquid, and we coble required to hold it until it is redeemed by tbsuer or to maturity. As of December 31,
2012, we had recognized $0.5 million of lossesteel@o the auction rate security by adjusting ésying value. The market value of the
security has partially recovered from the lows ttratited the losses. As of December 31, 2012, wedwwrded cumulative unrealized gains of
$0.4 million. Any future decline in market value yn@sult in additional losses being recognized.

In the event we need to access the funds thahare illiquid state, we will not be able to do sithwut the possible loss of principal, until
a future auction for this investment is successfut is redeemed by the issuer or it matures.dfare unable to sell this security in the market
or it is not redeemed, then we may be requiredtd i to maturity.

Our stock price could continue to be highly volaibnd you may not be able to resell your sharesradbove the price you pay for
them.

The market price of our common stock, like thatainy other life sciences companies, has been dikelig to continue to be highly
volatile. From January 1, 2010, to December 312201ir stock price has ranged from $1.70 to $5T8@. following factors, among others,
could have a significant impact on the market poteur common stock:

. The results of our preclinical studies and clinicills or announcements regarding our plans fluréustudies or trials, or those of
our collaborators, licensees or competiti

. Evidence or lack of evidence of the safety or afficof our potential products or those of our dmiators, licensees or competits
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. The success of our collaborators and licenseesidimg Astellas, in the development or commercaian of our product
candidates

. The announcement by us or our collaborators, lees®r competitors of technological innovationa@w products

. Developments concerning our patent or other prégyeights or those of our collaborators, licersseecompetitors, including
litigation and challenges to our proprietary rigi

. Other developments with our collaborators or lie&ss including our entry into new collaborativdicensing arrangement
. Geopolitical developments, natural or r-made disease threats, or other events beyond atnot¢

. U.S. and foreign governmental regulatory actic

. Changes or announcements in reimbursement pol

. Perioc-to-period fluctuations in our operating resu

. Market conditions for life science stocks in getre

. Changes in the collective short interest in ouclst

. Changes in estimates of our performance by seesid@tnalysts; an

. Our cash balances, need for additional capital cacéss to capite

We are at risk of securities class action litigatiadlue to our expected stock price volatility.

In the past, stockholders have brought securitessaction litigation against a company followadecline in the market price of its
securities. This risk is especially acute for usduse life science companies have experiencedegtbain average stock price volatility in
recent years and, as a result, have been subjent siverage, a greater number of securities aletisn claims than companies in other
industries. To date, we have not been subjectgsdhction litigation. However, we may in the fatbe the target of this litigation. Securities
litigation could result in substantial costs andedi our management’s attention and resourcescamld seriously harm our business.

Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documenta@dunder Delaware law could make an acquisitionud, which may be beneficial
to our stockholders, more difficult and may prevesitempts by our stockholders to replace or remoue current management.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws incluatgi-takeover provisions, such as a classifieddoédirectors, a prohibition on
stockholder actions by written consent, the authaf our board of directors to issue preferreatktaithout stockholder approval, and
supermajority voting requirements for specifiedad. In addition, because we are incorporateddta®are, we are governed by the
provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware GenembGration Law, which generally prohibits stockrersl owning in excess of 15% of our
outstanding voting stock from merging or combinwith us for a period of three years. These prowisimay delay or prevent an acquisitior
us, even if the acquisition may be considered beiaéby some stockholders. In addition, they magcdurage or prevent any attempts by our
stockholders to replace or remove our current mamagt by making it more difficult for stockholdeesreplace members of our board of
directors, which is responsible for appointing thembers of our management.

The issuance of preferred stock could adverselyeaffour common stockholders.

We currently have on file a shelf registration eaént that allows us to raise up to an aggrega$d 9.0 million from the sale of
common stock, preferred stock, debt securitiesandarrants and our restated certificate of incoafion authorizes us to issue up to 5,000
shares of preferred stock. The issuance of prefestack could adversely affect the voting powehaitiers of our common stock, and reduce
the
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likelihood that our common stockholders will recedividend payments and payments upon liquidafitve. issuance of preferred stock could
also decrease the market price of our common stvdkave terms and conditions that could discoueagdkeover or other transaction that
might involve a premium price for our shares ot thar stockholders might believe to be in theirtbeterests.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We lease approximately 68,400 square feet of matwiag, research laboratory and office spacesatgle site in San Diego, California,
under a lease agreement that expires in August.2017

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

European patent 1026253, or the '253 patent, cogexisignificant portion of our core DNA deliveschnology, was granted in
September 2004. In June 2005, the '253 patent wassed by eight parties. Thid53 patent was revoked on formal grounds in Decer2d@t
under an initial ruling by the Opposition Divisiofthe European Patent Office. We appealed thisiecand in December 2010 our appeal
was successful and the '253 patent was reinstat¢kebAppeals Board and sent back to the Opposidioision for further processing. The
Opposition Division held hearings in March of 2ab2letermine whether the patent should be revokeatlver grounds. The Opposition
Division ultimately ruled that the patent shouldrbaintained. The Opposition Division set a deadtihdune 7, 2012, for filing Notice of
Appeal. Because no appeal was filed by the oppsn#re decision by the Opposition Division becamalfon August 1, 2012. While the '253
patent expired in March 2010, the reinstatemerggyivs the ability to prosecute any infringing dttithat may have occurred prior to the
expiration of the '253 patent expiring and withinef years of initiation of the legal proceedingse Wlay use other issued patents and patent
applications that are pending in Europe to prasectDNA technology.

We prosecute our intellectual property estate vigsly to obtain the broadest valid scope for otempz. Due to uncertainty of the
ultimate outcome of these matters, the impact turéuoperating results or our financial conditiemot subject to reasonable estimates.

In the ordinary course of business, we may becopatg to lawsuits involving various matters. We anaware of any such lawsuits
presently pending against us which, individuallyrothe aggregate, are deemed to be material téirmncial condition or results of operatio

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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PART Il
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISUER PURCHASES Ol
EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is listed on the Nasdaq Globalkgtaunder the symbol VICL. The following table peats quarterly information on
the range of high and low sales prices for our comistock during the periods presented.

2012 High Low
First Quarter $4.5E $2.9¢
Second Quarte 3.6¢€ 2.71
Third Quartel 4,74 3.17
Fourth Quarte 4.42 2.61
2011

First Quarte! $3.0C $1.7C
Second Quarte 4.9¢ 2.8t
Third Quartel 5.3C 2.31
Fourth Quarte 4.82 2.22

As of January 31, 2013, there were approximately2@ckholders of record of our common stock an@4%217 shares of our common
stock outstanding. We have never declared or paidlavidends and do not expect to pay any dividendbe foreseeable future. We did not
repurchase any of our common stock in the fourtrtgn of 2012.
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Performance Graph

The following performance graph and related infaiorashall not be deemed “soliciting material” ortte “filed” with the SEC, nor shall
such information be incorporated by reference @ty future filing under the Securities Act or Exoba Act, except to the extent that we
specifically incorporate it by reference into stiding.

The following table compares total stockholder mesufor Vical over the last five years to the NapthS. and Foreign Index and the
Nasdag Pharmaceutical Stocks Index assuming aifi¢68tment made on December 31, 2007. Each ofwbedmparative measures
cumulative total return assumes reinvestment afidivds. The stock performance shown on the gralgiwhie not necessarily indicative of

future price performance.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table summarizes certain selectedrfiial data derived from our audited financialetatnts. The information presented
should be read in conjunction with “Management’sddission and Analysis of Financial Condition andu®s of Operations” and our audited
financial statements and notes thereto appeargeywlere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Years ended December 3:
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(in thousands, except per share amount:

Statement of Operations Data

Revenues

Contract and grant reven $ 6,17¢ $ 4,22: $ 6,24¢ $ 3,69: $ 2,14¢

License and royalty reveni 11,34: 25,79¢ 2,462 8,99¢ 5,81(
Total revenue 17,51¢ 30,01¢ 8,711 12,68t¢ 7,95¢
Operating expense

Research and developmt 17,34( 17,97" 19,69: 23,44¢ 25,53:

Manufacturing and productic 13,05¢ 10,26° 11,43¢ 10,35 11,04¢

General and administrati 10,557 9,59¢ 8,79¢ 7,46¢ 8,721
Total operating expens 40,95: 37,84( 39,92¢ 41,27 45,29¢
Loss from operation (23,43)) (7,827) (31,21Y (28,586) (37,349
Investment and other income, 1 534 53¢ 83C 30 46¢
Interest expens — — — (2 (22)
Net loss (22,899 (7,289 $(30,38%) $(28,55%) $(36,89¢)
Net loss per share (basic and dilut $ (0.29) $ (0.10 $ (0.5) $ (0.6)) $ (0.99
Weighted average shares used in per share catou 85,96¢ 72,03: 60,08¢ 47,08¢ 39,85¢
Balance Sheet Data (at end of period
Cash, cash equivalents, marketable securities;tknmg investments,

including restrictec $ 86,08: $56,35¢ $ 60,70: $ 52,56: $41,67¢

Working capital 80,23( 47,09¢ 49,87« 38,42« 30,14«
Total asset 96,52: 68,77 72,90° 67,37. 59,05’
Long-term obligations , less current porti 1,657 1,96¢ 2,211 2,38( 2,46¢
Total stockholder equity 89,08¢ 60,34¢ 64,36 54,98: 48,61«
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Overview

We research and develop biopharmaceutical prodhactsd on our patented DNA delivery technologiesHerprevention and treatment

of serious or life-threatening diseases. We belibedollowing areas of research offer the gregtestntial for neaterm commercialization fc
us and our partners:

. Vaccines for use in hi¢risk populations for infectious disease targetsaifbich there are significant nee«

. Vaccines for general pediatric, adolescent andtgodydulations for infectious disease applicatic

. Cancer vaccines or immunotherapies which complemenéxisting programs and core expertise;

. Genebased delivery of therapeutic proteins, such aggegic growth factors, for treatment of cardioudac disease:

We currently have three active independent cliréeel preclinical development programs in the acdasfectious disease and cancer
including:

. A fully enrolled ongoing Phase 3 clinical trial ngiour Allovectin® immunotherapeutic in patientshwitetastatic melanoma which
has been funded, up to certain limits, by AnGes M@.,, or AnGes, through cash payments and equtystments under a resea
and development agreeme

. A completed preclinical program, with an alloweddJNusing our CyMVectin™ prophylactic vaccine forratdd with our
proprietary Vaxfectir® adjuvant to prevent CMV infection before and dunprggnancy; an

. A preclinical program with therapeutic and propleyiavaccines for HS-2 formulated with our proprietary Vaxfect® adjuvant.

We have leveraged our patented technologies thrbegsing and collaboration arrangements, suauadicensing arrangements with
Astellas, Merck, Sanofi, AnGes, Aqua Health andisleamong other biopharmaceutical companies.

In addition, we have licensed complementary teabgiek from leading research institutions and bioplageutical companies. We also
have granted non-exclusive, academic licensesnt®biA delivery technology patent estate to 11 lagdiesearch institutions including
Stanford, Harvard, Yale and MIT. The non-exclusieademic licenses allow university researcherséoaur technology free of charge for
educational and internal, non-commercial reseauchgses. In exchange, we have the option to exalysiicense from the universities
potential commercial applications arising from these of our technology on terms to be negotiated.
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Research, Development and Manufacturing Programs

To date, we have not received revenues from tleecdadur independently developed pharmaceuticadymts and have received minimal
revenues from the sale of commercially marketedipets by our licensees. We earn revenues by peirigragrvices under research and
development contracts, grants, manufacturing cotsrand from licensing access to our proprietachmologies. Since our inception, we
estimate that we have received approximately $2d#libn in revenues from these sources. Revenyesohrce for each of the three years
ended December 31, 2012, were as follows (in midl)o

Source 2012 2011 2010
Navy contract: $— $— $1.5
Astellas contract —
5.7 2.7
IPPOX contrac — — 24
Manufacturing process development gr — 0.€ 1.t
HSV grants — 0.2 0.7
Other contracts and grar 0.t 0.4 04
Total contract and grant revent 6.2 4.2 6.2
Astellas license —
10.% 25.%
AnGes licenst — — 2.C
Life Technologies royaltie 0.3 0.2 0.2
Other royalties and licens 0.3 0.2 0.2

-
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Research, development, manufacturing and productists by major program, as well as other expefiosesach of the three years ended
December 31, 2012, were as follows (in millions):

Program 2012 2011 2010
Allovectin ® $16.C $17.2 $16.5
Pandemic influenz 0.1 0.2 2.1
CMV 9.2 /3 6.7
Other research, development, manufacturing andugtamh 5.1 3.2 5.8
Total research, development, manufacturing andymtich $30.4 $28.2 $31.1

Since our inception through December 31, 2012, stienate that we have spent approximately $473anilin research, development,
manufacturing and production. Our current indepandevelopment focus is on our cancer immunotherapallovectin® , a DNA vaccine
for CMV, a vaccine to treat HSV-2, and other claliand preclinical targets.

We are conducting a Phase 3 clinical trial usinigvdctin® in patients with recurrent metastatic melaa which has been funded, up to
certain limits, by AnGes through cash paymentsedty investments under a research and developageeement. We are also developing
TransVax™, CyMVectin™ and HSV-2 drug candidatesl trese programs, excluding TransVax™ which wenbeel to Astellas, will require
significant additional funds to advance throughelegment to commercialization. From inception tlglolecember 31, 2012, we have spent
approximately $166 million on our Allovectth progneand $73 million on our CMV programs.

We have other product candidates in the reseaagje stt can take many years to develop productidates from the initial decision to
screen product candidates, perform preclinicalsafdty studies, and perform clinical trials leadimgto possible approval of a product by the
FDA or comparable foreign agencies.
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The outcome of the research is unknown until etedpesof the testing is completed, up through aohiding the registration clinical trials.
Accordingly, we are unable to predict which potahgiroduct candidates we may proceed with, the g@ngecost to complete development, anc
ultimately whether we will have a product approbgdhe FDA or comparable foreign agencies.

As a result, we expect to incur substantial opegaltisses for at least the next several yearspdoerily to the advancement of our
research and development programs, the cost ofifgoat studies and clinical trials, spending fartside services, costs related to maintaining
our intellectual property portfolio, costs due tamafacturing activities, costs related to our fdes, and possible advancement toward
commercialization activities.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation and presentation of financial states in accordance with accounting principles gpdlyeaccepted in the United States
requires that management make a number of assumaitd estimates that affect the reported amodiissets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses in our financial statements and accompgmgtes. Management bases its estimates on hatorformation and assumptions
believed to be reasonable. Although these estinzatebased on management’s best knowledge of ¢w@vents and circumstances that may
impact us in the future, they are inherently uraiarand actual results may differ materially frdmge estimates.

Our critical accounting policies are those thagetffour financial statements materially and invavagnificant level of judgment by
management. Our critical accounting policies rem@rdevenue recognition are in the following ardagnse and royalty agreements,
manufacturing contracts, contract services andtgeaenues. Our critical accounting policies alsdide recognition of research and
development expenses and the valuation of longtarm intangible assets.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when the four basic critdri@venue recognition are met: (1) persuasiveandd of an arrangement exists;
(2) delivery has occurred or services renderedth@Xee is fixed or determinable; and (4) collbiity is reasonably assured. Certain of our
revenue is generated through manufacturing costaatd stand-alone license agreements.

We have entered into multiple-element arrangemémistder to account for the multiple-element agements, we identify the
deliverables included within the agreement andwatalwhich deliverables represent separate unasagunting. Analyzing the arrangemen
identify deliverables requires the use of judgmant] each deliverable may be an obligation to dekervices, a right or license to use an ¢
or another performance obligation.

Multiple-element arrangements prior to January 1, 2011

Prior to adopting the revised multiple element gnick on January 1, 2011, we analyzed our multlpleent arrangements to determine
whether the identified deliverables could be actedrfor individually as separate units of accoumtifihe delivered item(s) were considered a
separate unit of accounting if all of the followingteria were met: (1) the delivered item(s) hatlie to the customer on a standalone basis;
(2) there was objective and reliable evidence eff#lr value of the undelivered item(s); and (3h# arrangement included a general right of
return relative to the delivered item, deliveryparformance of the undelivered item(s) was considi@robable and substantially in our cont
If these criteria were not met, the deliverable sasbined with other deliverables in the arrangemaed accounted for as a combined unit of
accounting.
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Multiple-element arrangements after January 1, 2011

Effective January 1, 2011, we follow the provisi@iASU No. 2009-13 for all multiple element agrests, including contract
manufacturing, contract services and license ageassnUnder the revised guidance, if the delivétied(s) has value to the customer on a
standalone basis and if the arrangement includesharal right of return relative to the delivertsi, delivery or performance of the
undelivered item(s) is considered probable andtanbially in our control.

A delivered item is considered a separate unitobanting when the delivered item has value tgoiéner on a standalone basis based
on the consideration of the relevant facts anduairstances for each arrangement. Factors considetieid determination include the research
capabilities of the partner and the availability@$earch expertise in this field in the generalketplace. Arrangement consideration is
allocated at the inception of the agreement talelttified units of accounting based on their ietaselling price. The relative selling price for
each deliverable is determined using vendor spesffjective evidence, or VSOE, of selling pricehord-party evidence of selling price if
VSOE does not exist. If neither VSOE nor third-gavidence of selling price exists, we use our kesitnate of the selling price for the
deliverable. The amount of allocable arrangemensicieration is limited to amounts that are fixedleterminable. The consideration received
is allocated among the separate units of accouraimgj the applicable revenue recognition critengaagplied to each of the separate units.
Changes in the allocation of the sales price batvadedivered and undelivered elements can impa&mea® recognition but do not change the
total revenue recognized under any agreementct$ fand circumstances dictate that the licensastaaslialone value from the undelivered
items, which generally include research and devetn services and the manufacture of drug prodtiedjcense is identified as a separate
unit of accounting and the amounts allocated tditlemse are recognized upon the delivery of tbenise, assuming the other revenue
recognition criteria have been met. However, ifdahgounts allocated to the license through theivelaelling price allocation exceed the
upfront license fee, the amount recognized upordétieery of the license is limited to the upfrdeé received. If facts and circumstances
dictate that the license does not have standalale vthe transaction price, including any upfiar@nse fee payments received, are allocated
to the identified separate units of accounting mmbgnized as those items are delivered.

The terms of our partnership agreements providenftastone payments upon achievement of certainlaéayy and commercial events.
Effective January 1, 2011, we adopted on a prosebasis the Milestone Method of accounting un&igt) 2010-17. Under the Milestone
Method, we recognize consideration that is contimg@on the achievement of a milestone in its etytias revenue in the period in which the
milestone is achieved only if the milestone is save in its entirety. A milestone is considesetbstantive when it meets all of the following
three criteria: 1) The consideration is commengwath either the entity’s performance to achigwe milestone or the enhancement of the
value of the delivered item(s) as a result of a#jgeoutcome resulting from the entity’s perforntarto achieve the milestone, 2) The
consideration relates solely to past performance, 3 The consideration is reasonable relativdl tof ¢he deliverables and payment terms
within the arrangement. A milestone is definedrmgweent (i) that can only be achieved based in &bolin part on either the entity’s
performance or on the occurrence of a specificaua&resulting from the entity’s performance, (@j fvhich there is substantive uncertainty at
the date the arrangement is entered into thatwbetevill be achieved and (iii) that would resultadditional payments being due to us.

Contract Services, Grant and Royalty Revenue

We recognize revenue from contract services aneréédovernment research grants during the peniechich the related expenditures
are incurred and related payments for those serapereceived or collection is reasonably assiReyalties to be received based on sales of
licensed products by our partners incorporatinglicensed technology are recognized when received.

47



Table of Contents

Accruals for Potential Disallowed Costs on Governi@ontracts

We have contracts with U.S. government agenciesmuntlich we bill for direct and indirect costs im@d. These billed costs are subject
to audit by government agencies. We have establiaberuals of approximately $49,000 at each of Bésez 31, 2012 and 2011, to provide
potential disallowed costs. In the event that thalfcosts allowed are different from what we hagémated, we may need to make a change i
our estimated accrual, which could also affectresults of operations and cash flow.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses consist of egigesirred in performing research and developmetitities including salaries and
personnel-related costs, supplies and materialsideuservices, costs of conducting preclinical elimdcal trials, facilities costs and
amortization of intangible assets. Research andldpment expenses are charged to operations asithéycurred.

We assess our obligations to make milestone payntleat may become due for licensed or acquirecht#dolyy to determine whether the
payments should be expensed or capitalized. Weehailestone payments to research and developmpahse when:

» The technology is in the early stage of developraexthas no alternative us

» There is substantial uncertainty of the technologgroduct being successfi

» There will be difficulty in completing the remaimgjrdevelopment; an

» There is substantial cost to complete the w

Capitalization and Valuation of Long-Lived and Intagible Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives consistapitalized legal costs incurred in connectigthywatents, patent applications pending
and technology license agreements. Payments téra@jlicense to use a proprietary technology apétalized if the technology is expected to
have alternative future use in research and demeop projects. We amortize costs of approved pst@atent applications pending and lice
agreements over their estimated useful lives,rongeof the agreements, whichever are shorter.

For patents pending, we amortize the costs oveshibeer of a period of twenty years from the ddtiling the application or, if license
the term of the license agreement. We re-assessstial lives of patents when they are issued,l@never events or changes in circumstance
indicate the useful lives may have changed. Famiatand patent applications pending that we allgvae charge the remaining unamortized
accumulated costs to research and development sxpen

Intangible assets and long-lived assets are ewaldat impairment at least annually or whenevené&er changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying value may not be rexable. If the review indicates that intangibleeas®r long-lived assets are not recoverable,
their carrying amount would be reduced to fair ealsactors we consider important that could triggemmpairment review include the
following:

» A significant change in the manner of our use efahquired asset or the strategy for our overalinass; and/c

» A significant negative industry or economic tre

In the event we determine that the carrying vafuatangible assets or long-lived assets is notvetable based upon the existence of
one or more of the above indicators of impairmesmt,may be required to record impairment chargethiese assets. As of December 31, 201:

our largest group of intangible assets with fitikes included patents and patents pending foWA delivery technology, consisting of
intangible assets with a net carrying value of aginately $2.7 million.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

For information on the receatcounting pronouncements which may impact oumssi, see Note 1 of the Notes to Financial Statey
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2012, Compared to Year Hridecember 31, 2011

Total RevenuesTotal revenues decreased $12.5 million, or 4116%17.5 million in 2012 from $30.0 million in 2010ur license and
royalty revenue decreased by $14.5 million whicls ywamarily the result of the recognition of $288lion of revenue related to our
TransVax™ license agreement with Astellas in 2@biypared to $10.7 million in license revenue re@ephunder the agreement in 2012.
contract and grant revenue increased by $2.0 milibich was primarily the result of a $3.0 millioxcrease in contract service revenue
recognized under our contracts with Astellas, whiels partially offset by $1.1 million decrease rarg revenue.

Research and Development Expendeesearch and development expenses decreasemi$iia®, or 3.5%, to $17.3 million for 2012
from $18.0 million for 2011. This decrease was priity due to lower costs related to contract sewifor various suBtudies and safety stud
primarily related to Allovectir®

Manufacturing and Production Expensddanufacturing and production expenses increagdgifillion, or 27.2%, to $13.1 million for
2012 from $10.3 million for 2011. This increase vpaisnarily the result of a $1.6 million increaseciosts recognized related to the production
of TransVax™ under our service and supply agreeméhtAstellas. In addition, employee related exgenincreased $0.9 million as a result
of a higher average head count in 2012.

General and Administrative Expenséseneral and administrative expenses increasé€driillion, or 10.0%, to $10.6 million for 2012
from $9.6 million for 2011. This increase was priityathe result of higher overall wages during trear ended December 31, 2012.

Investment and Other Incoménvestment and other income decreased $5,00096%, to $534,000 for 2012 from $539,000 for 2011.

Year Ended December 31, 2011, Compared to Year Hridecember 31, 2010

Total RevenuesTotal revenues increased $21.3 million, or 244.6%830.0 million in 2011 from $8.7 million in 2010ur license and
royalty revenue increased by $23.3 million whichsyeaimarily the result of the recognition of $28n8lion of revenue related to our
TransVax™ license agreement with Astellas, whicls partially offset by a decrease of $2.0 milliodiggnse revenue recognized related to
our Allovectin® program. Our contract and grant rave decreased by $2.0 million which was primafily tesult of a $3.6 million decrease in
revenue related to the manufacture of vaccinesrnouatdract as well as a $1.1 million decrease angrevenue, which was partially offset by
an increase of $2.7 million in contract serviceemave recognized under our contracts with Astellas.

Research and Development ExpendResearch and development expenses decreasemifiibid, or 8.7%, to $18.0 million for 2011
from $19.7 million for 2010. This decrease was pritty due to lower costs related to our clinicéls for TransVax™ and Allovecti® during
the year ended December 31, 2011, which was pgartifitet by a subicense payment we made to the City of Hope reltdetie license of ol
TransVax™ program in 2011.

Manufacturing and Production Expensddanufacturing and production expenses decreas&drillion, or 10.2%, to $10.3 million for
2011 from $11.4 million for 2010. This decrease wamarily the result of the capitalization of $hlllion in manufacturing costs related to
the production of TransVax™ under our service ampy agreement with Astellas.
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General and Administrative ExpenséSeneral and administrative expenses increasé@dn#llion, or 9.1%, to $9.6 million for 2011 fro
$8.8 million for 2010. This increase was primatlhe result of higher overall wages and higher chimgucosts during the year ended
December 31, 2011.

Investment and Other Incomévestment and other income decreased $0.3 miltio 35.1%, to $0.5 million for 2011 from $0.8 haih
for 2010. This decrease was primarily the resutiofreceipt of $0.5 million in income related be tQualifying Therapeutic Discovery Project
tax credit during the year ended December 31, 2010.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Since our inception, we have financed our operatfmmarily through private placements and pubfferings of equity securities, and
revenues from our operations. From our inceptioauh December 31, 2012, we have received approeiy$®215.7 million in revenues fro
performing services under research and developar@htmanufacturing contracts, from grants and frieamking access to our proprietary
technologies, and we have raised net proceedspobamately $420.0 million from the sale of equiigcurities. Cash, cash equivalents,
marketable securities, and long-term investmentduding restricted securities, totaled $86.1 miillat December 31, 2012, compared with
$56.4 million at December 31, 2011. The increaseuincash, cash equivalents and marketable sexafir the year ended December 31, 2
was primarily the result of the receipt of $48.7lion in net proceeds related to the sale of 13ilflan of our common shares in a public
offering completed in January 2012.

Net cash used in operating activities was $17.6aniknd $3.8 million for the years ended Decen81r2012 and 2011, respectively.
The increase in net cash used in operating aets/ftir the year ended December 31, 2012, compatkdhe prior year period, was primarily
the result of a $14.6 million decrease in licerseenue related to our TransVax™ license agreemehtsh was partially offset by a decrease
in accounts receivable.

Net cash used in investing activities was $26.6ioniland $4.8 million for the years ended Decen8%r2012 and 2011, respectively.
The increase in net cash used in investing adw/ior the year ended December 31, 2012, compatkdhe prior year, was primarily the res
of an increase in net purchases of investments.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $48illion and $55,000 for the years ended Decembef812 and 2011, respectively.
The increase in net cash provided by financingraiets for the year ended December 31, 2012, coetpaith the prior year period, was the
result of net proceeds received from the sale otommon stock during the year ended December(@i2.2

A discussion of our exposure to auction rate séesris included in Part Il, Item 7A of this AnnuRéport on Form 10-K under the
heading “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosurdmit Market Risk.”

We expect to incur substantial additional researathdevelopment expenses, manufacturing and prioduetpenses, and general and
administrative expenses, including continued ingesan costs related to personnel, preclinicaldinital testing, outside services, facilities,
intellectual property and possible commercializatiOur future capital requirements will depend ammfactors, including continued scient
progress in our research and development progthmscope and results of preclinical testing amdaal trials, the time and costs involved in
obtaining regulatory approvals, the costs involirefiling, prosecuting, enforcing and defendinggudtclaims, the impact of competing
technological and market developments, the costafufacturing scale-up and validation, and possiblamercialization activities and
arrangements. We may seek additional funding throegearch and development relationships with Isigitaotential corporate collaborators.
We may also seek additional funding through pubtiprivate financings. We currently have on filstreelf registration statement that allows us
to raise up to an aggregate of $150.0 million ftbesale of
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common stock, preferred stock, debt securitiesawdarrants and we have also entered into an AtiMagket Equity Offering Sales
Agreement with Stifel under which we may issue selllup to $50,000,000 of shares of our commorkstdowever, additional financing may
not be available on favorable terms or at all.dditional financing is not available, we anticip#tat our current available cash and existing
sources of funding will be adequate to satisfyaash needs at least through December 31, 2014.

Contractual Obligations and Off-Balance Sheet Arrgements

The following table sets forth our contractual ghtions, including all off-balance sheet arrangetsieas of December 31, 2012 (in
thousands):

Payment Due by Perioc

Less thar After 5
2-3 4-5
Total 1 Year Years Years Years
Contractual Obligations 1
Operating lease obligations $ —
$16,38t¢ $ 3,392 $6,98¢ $6,00¢

Unconditional purchase obligatio? 97¢ 97¢ — — —

Total contractual obligations $ —

$17,36¢ $4,37( $6,98¢ $6,00¢

Certain long-term liabilities reflected on our bada sheet are not presented in this table bechageate already reflected in operating
lease commitments or do not require cash settlemehe future

Unconditional purchase obligations represent cotiie commitments entered into for goods and sesvie the normal course of our
business. The purchase obligations do not includenpial severance payment obligations to our exezwofficers. For information
regarding these severance arrangements, refee ot paragraph in this Item

Under our Merck, Sanofi, AnGes, Merial and Aqua ltteagreements, we are required to pay up to 10&exéin initial upfront
monetary payments, and a small percentage of soyadty payments, to the WARF and/or the Universityichigan. Under our license
agreements with Astellas, we are required to mak&in payments to the City of Hope and CytRx inreection with the development and
commercialization of our products licensed by Aatelin addition, certain technology license agreeis require us to make other payments if
we or our sublicensees advance products througitalidevelopment. For programs developed withstiygport of U.S. government funding,
the U.S. government may have rights to resultirmglpcts without payment of royalties to us.

We may be required to make future payments toioensors based on the achievement of milestondsréietin various in-licensing
agreements. In most cases, these milestone payarenisised on the achievement of development afategy milestones, including the
exercise of options to obtain licenses relategtrHic disease targets, commencement of varioasgshof clinical trials, filing of product
license applications, approval of product licerfses) the FDA or a foreign regulatory agency, anel first commercial sale of a related
product. Payment for the achievement of milestameter our in-license agreements is highly speadatnd subject to a number of
contingencies.

The aggregate amount of additional milestone paysi&at we could be required to pay under all afindicense agreements in place at
December 31, 2012, is approximately $15.1 milliminwhich approximately $7.2 million is related torandependent programs and corporate
and government collaborations which are curremtlglinical development. These amounts assume bh&naaining milestones associated w
the milestone payments are met. In the event tivatyst license approval for any of the related poisl is obtained, we may be required to
make royalty payments in addition to these milestpayments. Although we believe that some of tHestunes contained in our in-license
agreements may be achieved, it is highly unlikegt &a significant number of them will be achievBdcause the milestones are contingent, we
are not in a position to
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reasonably estimate how much, if any, of the padéntilestone payments will ultimately be paid vanen. Additionally, under the in-license
agreements, many of the milestone events are deiaterogress in clinical trials which will takevegal years to achieve.

In addition, we have undertaken certain commitmantier license agreements with collaborators, aindemnification agreements
with our officers and directors. Under the liceageeements with our collaborators, we have agmeedrtinue to maintain and defend the
patent rights licensed to the collaborators anthéncase of our agreements with Astellas, haveeabto undertake certain development and
manufacturing activities. Under the indemnificatexgreements with our officers and directors, weehagreed to indemnify those individuals
for any expenses and liabilities in the event tifraatened, pending or actual investigation, latysuicriminal or investigative proceeding.

We have employment agreements that contain sevemnangements with each of our three executivearff and two of our other
executives. Under the agreements with the execoffigers we are obligated to pay severance if evminate the executive officer's
employment without “cause,” or if the executiveiodf resigns for “good reason,” as defined in theeaments, within the periods set forth
therein. The severance for the executive officerssists of continued base salary payments at gredhbrrent rate, including the payment of
health insurance premiums, for the period specifiegach agreement, which ranges from 12 to 18 hsomius a payment equal to between
and one and a half times the executive’s cash bionthie previous year. In addition, the executiffecers receive accelerated vesting on all
their unvested stock awards as if they had rematnggloyed by us for between 12 and 18 months fladate of termination. In the event
the termination occurs within 24 months of a “chamgcontrol,” as defined in the agreements, tivesace for the executive officers consists
of lump sum payments equal to between 18 and 24hmai base salary at the then-current rate, thepat of health insurance premiums for
the period specified in each agreement, which raufrgen 12 to 18 months, plus a payment equal tavdxeh one and one and a half times the
executive's cash bonus in the previous year. Intigagl all outstanding unvested stock awards watvimmediately. The severance for the
other executives consists of continued paymerttseathen-current base compensation rate for aghefigsix months. All of the agreements
specify that any earnings from employment or caimsmyiduring this period will offset any salary contation payments due from us. The
maximum payments due under these employment agreenveuld have been $3.2 million if each such etieewfficer and other executives
were terminated at December 31, 2012.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are subject to interest rate risk. Our investrpentfolio is maintained in accordance with ouréstment policy which defines
allowable investments, specifies credit qualityndrds and limits the credit exposure of any siimggaer. Our investment portfolio consists of
cash equivalents, both restricted and non-restrictewrketable securities and long-term investm@iiis.average maturity of our investments,
excluding our auction rate securities, is approxétyaeight months. Our investments are classified\ailable-for-sale securities.

To assess our interest rate risk, we performeasitsgty analysis projecting an ending fair valieour cash equivalents and current
marketable securities using the following assurmgti@ 12-month time horizon, a 9-month average ritatand a 150-basis-point increase in
interest rates. This pro forma fair value wouldé&een $310,000 lower than the reported fair vafu@ir investments at December 31, 2012.

Our investment securities consist of auction ratausties, corporate debt securities and governmgency securities. As of
December 31, 2012, our long-term investments iredual (at par value) $2.5 million auction rate siégwecured by municipal bonds. At
December 31, 2012, the auction rate security we imglintained a Standard and Poor’s credit ratingRBB. Our auction rate security is a debt
instrument with a long-term maturity and with ateest rate that is reset in short intervals thhoaigctions. The conditions in the global credit
markets have prevented some investors from ligudaheir holdings of auction rate securities beaeau
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the amount of securities submitted for sale haseded the amount of purchase orders for such sesuif there is insufficient demand for the
securities at the time of an auction, the aucti@y mot be completed and the interest rates magd®s to predetermined higher rates. When
auctions for these securities fail, the investmemdy not be readily convertible to cash until aifatauction of these investments is successful
or they are redeemed or mature.

Since February 2008, there has been insufficiemiaghe at auction for our auction rate security lalBecember 31, 2012. As a result,
this security is currently not liquid, and we coble required to hold it until it is redeemed by ibsuer or to maturity. As of December 31,
2012, we had recognized $0.5 million of lossesteel@o the auction rate security by adjusting ésying value. The market value of the
security has partially recovered from the lows tireited the losses. As of December 31, 2012, dedwrded cumulative unrealized gains of
$0.4 million. Any future decline in market value yn@sult in additional losses being recognized.

The valuation of our auction rate security investtrportfolio is subject to uncertainties that aifficult to predict. The fair values of
these securities are estimated utilizing a diseaiobsh flow analysis or other type of valuatiordei@s of December 31, 2012. The key
drivers of the valuation model include the expederdh, collateralization underlying the security@stments, the creditworthiness of the
counterparty, the timing of expected future caskvf, rates of default of the underlying assets;adiat rates, and the expectation of the next
time the security is expected to have a succeasfttion. These securities were also compared, whbssible, to other observable market data
with similar characteristics to the securities hajdus.

In the event we need to access the funds thataareunrently liquid, we will not be able to do sdthout the possible loss of principal,
until a future auction for these investments iscegsful or they are redeemed by the issuer orrfayre. If we are unable to sell these
securities in the market or they are not redeertiet, we may be required to hold them to maturite. 88 not anticipate a need to access thes
funds for operational purposes for the foreseehlee. We will continue to monitor and evaluategh investments on an ongoing basis for
impairment. Based on our ability to access our eashother short-term investments, our expectedatipg cash flows, and our other sources
of cash, we do not anticipate that the potentiiguidity of these investments will affect our &dtyilto execute our current business plan.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Vicaldrporated

We have audited the accompanying balance shedtisalfincorporated as of December 31, 2012 and 284d the related statements of
operations, comprehensive loss, stockholders’ ggaiitd cash flows for each of the three yearseérpriod ended December 31, 2012. These
financial statements are the responsibility of@enpany’s management. Our responsibility is to egpran opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstials of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States). Those standard:
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether the finastaieiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on Blasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digds in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenenelaas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@alove present fairly, in all material respedts, financial position of Vical Incorporated at
December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the results opisations and its cash flows for each of the tlgezers in the period ended December 31,
2012, in conformity with U.S. generally acceptedamting principles.

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statemehesCompany changed its method of accountingeieemue recognition as a result of the
adoption of the amendments to the FASB Accountitagn@ards Codification resulting from Accountingr®tards Update No. 2009-13,
Revenue Recognition (Topic 605): Mult-Deliverable Revenue Arrangementffective January 1, 2011.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), Vical
Incorporated’s internal control over financial refirog as of December 31, 2012, based on critetibished in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imgtions of the Treadway Commission and our tegated February 15, 2013
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

San Diego, California
February 15, 2013
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VICAL INCORPORATED

BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except per share data)

December 31

2012 2011
ASSETS
Current assett
Cash and cash equivale $ 43,15¢ $ 38,69¢
Marketable securities, availa-for-sale 37,63¢ 8,73:
Restricted cas 3,05¢ 2,99¢
Receivables and other ass 2,152 3,13(
Total current asse 86,00¢ 53,55}
Long-term investment 2,22¢ 5,92¢
Property and equipment, r 5,28¢ 6,22¢
Intangible assets, n 2,81: 2,871
Other asset 191 191
Total asset $ 96,52: $ 68,77
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expel $ 5,62¢ $ 6,362
Deferred revenu 15C 99
Total current liabilities 5,77¢ 6,461
Long-term liabilities:
Deferred ren 1,657 1,96¢
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 6 an
Stockholder' equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 5,000 share®egréd, none issued and outstanc — —
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 160,000 shares arndiolp 86,136 and 71,913 shares issued anc
outstanding at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respéc 861 71¢
Additional paic-in capital 435,91! 384,08
Accumulated defici (347,93) (325,03))
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 247 58C
Total stockholder equity 89,08t 60,34¢
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 96,52: $ 68,77

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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VICAL INCORPORATED

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share data)

Revenues
Contract and grant reven
License and royalty reveni
Total revenue
Operating expense
Research and developmt
Manufacturing and productic
General and administrati
Total operating expens:
Loss from operation
Other income (expense
Investment and other income, |
Net loss

Basic and diluted net loss per sh
Weighted average shares used in computing basidiaurtdd net loss per sha

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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Year ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

$ 6,17€  $ 4220 $ 6,24¢
11,34: 25,79 2,467

17,51¢ 30,01¢ 8,711

17,34( 17,97 19,69:

13,05¢ 10,26 11,43¢

10,55" 9,59¢ 8,79¢

40,95: 37,84 39,92¢
(23,439 (7,822) (31,215
534 53¢ 83C
$(22,899  $(7,289  $(30,38)
$ (027 $ (010 $ (0.59)
85,96¢ 72,03 60,08«
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Net loss
Other comprehensive los

VICAL INCORPORATED

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
(in thousands)

Unrealized gains (losses) on availi-for-sale and lon-term marketable securitie
Unrealized gains (losses) arising during holdingqek
Less: Reversal of unrealized gains in accumulatieercomprehensive income upon the s

of long-term marketable securitit
Other comprehensive (loss) incol
Total comprehensive lo!

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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Year ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
$(22,89)  $(7,289)  $(30,38Y
257 10¢ (35)
(590 — ©)
(339) 10¢ (40)
$(23,23)  $(7,179  $(30,42Y
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VICAL INCORPORATED

STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD ENDED DEC EMBER 31, 2012
(in thousands)

Common Stock

Accumulated Other

Total
Stockholders’

Number of Additional Accumulated
Paid-in Comprehensive
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Income/(loss) Equity

Balance at January 1, 2010 53,78: $ 53¢ $341,30: $(287,37() $ 512 54,98
Net loss — — — (30,38%) — (30,38%)
Other comprehensive lo — — — — (40 (40
Issuance of common sto 15,36¢ 15z 32,02¢ — — 32,17¢
Exercise of stock options, warrants and

issuance of common stock underlying

restricted stock unit 2,491 25 4,96¢ — — 4,99(
Non-cash compensation expense related to

grant of equity based compensat — — 2,63¢€ — — 2,63¢
Balance at December 31, 20 71,64( 71€ 380,92¢ (317,75Y 472 64,36
Net loss — — — (7,289 — (7,289
Other comprehensive incor — — — — 10¢ 10¢
Exercise of stock options and issuance of

common stock underlying restricted stock

units 272 3 52 — — 5E
Non-cash compensation expense related ti

grant of equity based compensat — — 3,10¢ — — 3,10¢
Balance at December 31, 20 71,91% 71¢ 384,08 (325,039 58C 60,34¢
Net loss — — — (22,899 — (22,899
Other comprehensive lo — — — — (339 (339
Issuance of common sto 13,90¢ 13¢ 48,57( — — 48,70¢
Exercise of stock options and issuance of

common stock underlying restricted stock

units 314 3 (32 — — (29)
Non-cash compensation expense related ti

grant of equity based compensat — — 3,29( — — 3,29(
Balance at December 31, 20 86,13¢ $ 861 $435,91! $(347,93) $ 247 $ 89,08t

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic
Write-off of abandoned paten
Gain on sale of property and equipm
Compensation expense related to stock options wadia
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Receivables and other ass
Accounts payable and accrued expet
Deferred revenu
Deferred ren
Net cash used in operating activit
Cash flows from investing activitie
Proceeds from the sale of marketable secul
Maturities of marketable securiti
Purchases of marketable securi
Purchases of property and equipir
Proceeds from the sale of property and equipt
Patent and licensed technology expendit
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activi
Cash flows from financing activitie
Net proceeds from issuance of common s
Payment of withholding taxes for net settlementestricted stock unit
Net cash provided by financing activiti
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at end of "

Supplemental informatiot
Interest paic

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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Year ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

$(22,899  $ (7,289  $(30,38Y)
1,98¢ 2,29¢ 2,80¢
71 75 14¢

9 — —
3,29( 3,10¢ 2,63¢
977 (1,929) 40¢
(792) (51) (1,779)
51 99 (1,990)
(247) (169 (83)
(17,579 (3,84 (28,229

3,75( — —
22,49t 20,42¢ 31,81
(51,847 (24,599 (18,549
(64€) (25€) (347)

9 — —
(409) (40€) (419
(26,649 (4,831) 12,50¢
48,93: 214 37,26
(259) (159 (92)
48,68( 55 37,16¢
4,46 (8,624 21,44’
38,69¢ 47,32( 25,87
$43,15¢  $38,69¢  $47,32

$ — $ — $ —
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accountig Policies
Organization and Business Activity

Vical Incorporated, or the Company, a Delaware emfion, was incorporated in April 1987 and hasaded substantially all of its
resources since that time to its research and digwvent programs. The Company researches and devalmgharmaceutical products basec
its patented DNA delivery technologies for the mnetion and treatment of serious or life-threaterdisgases.

All of the Company’s potential products are in @sh and development phases. No revenues havegbaerated from the sale of any
such products, nor are any such revenues expemted feast the next several years. The Compamseavenue from research and
development agreements with pharmaceutical colabms and grant and contract arrangements withrgovent entities. Most of the
Company’s product candidates will require significadditional research and development effortduding extensive preclinical and clinical
testing. All product candidates that advance toicdil testing will require regulatory approval prto commercial use, and will require
significant costs for commercialization. There t@no assurance that the Company’s research aetbgevent efforts, or those of its
collaborators, will be successful. The Company et continue to incur substantial losses andyeoerate positive cash flows from
operations for at least the next several yearsaddoirance can be given that the Company can gerserfficient product revenue to become
profitable or generate positive cash flows fromragiens.

Basis of Presentatio

These financial statements are prepared in confgnmith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States of America. The
Company has evaluated all subsequent events thtbegiate and time its financial statements wenaeid.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith accounting principles generally acceptethie United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfenzitthe amounts reported in the financial stateisiand disclosures made in the
accompanying notes. Actual results could differemiatly from those estimates.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash andyHighld securities with original maturities at thate of acquisition of ninety days or
less. Investments with an original maturity of mtitan ninety days are considered marketable se&siahd have been classified by
management as available-for-sale. These investnaeatslassified as current assets, even thougstdled maturity date may be one year or
more beyond the current balance sheet date whilgiti® management’s intention to use the proceexnis $ales of these securities to fund its
operations, as necessary. Such investments afectatrfair value, with unrealized gains and loseekided as a separate component of
stockholders’ equity. Realized gains and lossa®s fitte sale of available-for-sale securities orahmunts, net of tax, reclassified out of
accumulated other comprehensive income, if anydarermined on a specific identification basis.

Restricted Cash and Marketable Securi

The Company is required to maintain a letter oflitreecuring an amount equal to twelve months efcdirrent monthly installment of
base rent for the term of the lease for its faesitwhich ends in August 2017. Under certain cirstances the Company may be able to
eliminate the need for the letter of credit. At
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December 31, 2012 and 2011, restricted cash oféiBlibn and $3.0 million, respectively, was plediges collateral for the letter of credit.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject @@npany to significant concentrations of credik kensist primarily of cash equivaler
marketable securities and receivables. The Comjpamegts its excess cash in debt instruments ohéiz institutions and of corporations with
strong credit ratings, in U.S. government obligagicand in money market funds and certificatesepiogits at financial institutions.

Property and Equipmel

Property and equipment is recorded at cost ancedigtion is computed using the straight-line metbeer the estimated useful lives of
the assets. Assets acquired pursuant to capitd Er@angements and leasehold improvements ardizedausing the straight-line method over
the shorter of the life of the remaining lease terrthe remaining useful life of the asset. Mantfeing equipment has estimated useful live
ten years. All other property and equipment havienesed useful lives of 3 to 5 years. Maintenanoe i@pairs of property and equipment are
expensed as incurred.

Intangible Asset

Intangible assets include licensed technology sigimid certain costs related to patent applicatibins.Company capitalizes license fees
paid to acquire access to proprietary technologlyeftechnology is expected to have alternativeréutise in multiple research and developr
projects. The cost of licensed technology righ@nmrtized using the straight-line method overasgmated useful life of the technology.
Certain costs related to patent applications arerémed over the estimated economic lives of themts, which is generally 20 years and
typically commences at the time the patent apptioas filed. Amortization expense for licensedheology and capitalized patent cost is
included in research and development expenses.

Impairment of Lon-lived Assets

The Company reviews lonlgred assets for impairment at least annually, taubyr for intangible assets, and whenever eventhanges i
circumstances indicate that the carrying amouino@isset may not be recoverable. Should an impafrexést, the impairment loss would be
measured based on the excess of the carrying arobthe asset over the asset’s fair value andab& lecognized in current earnings. The
Company recognized research and development expéapproximately $0.1 million for each of the ye@nded December 31, 2012, 2011
and 2010, related to patents for which the valus deemed to be impaired. The Company believeaithesfcash flows to be received from its
remaining long-lived assets will exceed the assetgying value, and accordingly has not recognameygladditional impairment losses.

Revenue Recognitic

Revenue is recognized when the four basic critdri@venue recognition are met: (1) persuasiveandd of an arrangement exists;
(2) delivery has occurred or services renderedih@Yee is fixed or determinable; and (4) collbiity is reasonably assured. Certain of the
Company’s revenue is generated through manufagteontracts and stand-alone license agreements.

The Company has entered into multiple-element gearents. In order to account for the multiple-elet@@rangements, the Company
identifies the deliverables included within theegment and evaluates which
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deliverables represent separate units of accourdinglyzing the arrangement to identify deliverablequires the use of judgment, and each
deliverable may be an obligation to deliver sersjeeright or license to use an asset, or ano#méonmance obligation.

Multiple-element arrangements after January 1, 2011

Effective January 1, 2011, the Company followsghmvisions of ASU No. 2009-13 for all multiple elent agreements, including
contract manufacturing, contract services and fieeagreements. Under the revised guidance, theedsti item(s) has value to the customer o
a standalone basis and, if the arrangement incladgseral right of return relative to the deliveitem, delivery or performance of the
undelivered item(s) is considered probable andtanbally in the Company’s control.

A delivered item is considered a separate unicobanting when the delivered item has value tgoiéner on a standalone basis based
on the consideration of the relevant facts anduarstances for each arrangement. Factors considetieid determination include the research
capabilities of the partner and the availability@$earch expertise in this field in the generaletplace. Arrangement consideration is
allocated at the inception of the agreement tadeltified units of accounting based on their ietaselling price. The relative selling price for
each deliverable is determined using vendor spesffjective evidence, or VSOE, of selling pricehard-party evidence of selling price if
VSOE does not exist. If neither VSOE nor third-gatidence of selling price exists, the Companysutsebest estimate of the selling price for
the deliverable. The amount of allocable arrangeroensideration is limited to amounts that aredixe determinable. The consideration
received is allocated among the separate unitsaafuanting, and the applicable revenue recognititier@a are applied to each of the separate
units. Changes in the allocation of the sales preteveen delivered and undelivered elements caadhmpvenue recognition but do not change
the total revenue recognized under any agreenfdatts and circumstances dictate that the licérasestandalone value from the undelivered
items, which generally include research and devetq services and the manufacture of drug prodtiedjcense is identified as a separate
unit of accounting and the amounts allocated tditemse are recognized upon the delivery of tbense, assuming the other revenue
recognition criteria have been met. However, ifdhgounts allocated to the license through theivelaelling price allocation exceed the
upfront license fee, the amount recognized uporéhieery of the license is limited to the upfrdeé received. If facts and circumstances
dictate that the license does not have standalalue vthe transaction price, including any upfit@nse fee payments received, are allocated
to the identified separate units of accounting eodgnized as those items are delivered.

The terms of the Company’s partnership agreementsde for milestone payments upon achievemenedfm regulatory and
commercial events. Effective January 1, 2011, tom@any adopted on a prospective basis the Milesgiethod of accounting under ASU
2010-17. Under the Milestone Method, the Companggaizes consideration that is contingent uporattieevement of a milestone in its
entirety as revenue in the period in which the stidae is achieved only if the milestone is substarit its entirety. A milestone is considered
substantive when it meets all of the following thaziteria: 1) The consideration is commensurate wither the entity’s performance to
achieve the milestone or the enhancement of thee\aflthe delivered item(s) as a result of a speoiftcome resulting from the entity’s
performance to achieve the milestone, 2) The cenaitbn relates solely to past performance, arithg)consideration is reasonable relative tc
all of the deliverables and payment terms withim dlhrangement. A milestone is defined as an evjttia¢ can only be achieved based in wi
or in part on either the entity’s performance ottlom occurrence of a specific outcome resultingnftbe entity’s performance, (i) for which
there is substantive uncertainty at the date trengement is entered into that the event will beea@d and (iii) that would result in additional
payments being due to the Company.

63



Table of Contents

VICAL INCORPORATED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Multiple-element arrangements prior to January 1, 2011

Prior to adopting the revised multiple element gunick on January 1, 2011, the Company analyzediitipie element arrangements to
determine whether the identified deliverables cdddaccounted for individually as separate unisazbunting. The delivered item(s) were
considered a separate unit of accounting if atheffollowing criteria were met: (1) the deliveriéein(s) has value to the customer on a
standalone basis; (2) there is objective and reliabidence of the fair value of the undeliveredhifs); and (3) if the arrangement includes a
general right of return relative to the deliverti, delivery or performance of the undeliverecigg) is considered probable and substantially
in the Company’s control. If these criteria weré met, the deliverable was combined with othendghbles in the arrangement and accounte
for as a combined unit of accounting.

Contract Services, Grant and Royalty Revenue

The Company recognizes revenues from contractcsenand federal government research grants duréngeriod in which the related
expenditures are incurred and related paymenthése services are received or collection is resslgrassured. Royalties to be received bi
on sales of licensed products by the Company’s\pestincorporating the Company’s licensed technolog recognized when received.

Accruals for Potential Disallowed Costs on Governtr@ontracts

The Company has contracts with U.S. government@gsminder which it bills for direct and indirectsts incurred. These billed costs
subject to audit by government agencies. The Cognpatablished accruals of approximately $49,008aah of December 31, 2012 and 2011
to provide for potential disallowed costs. In thvemt that the final costs allowed are differentiravhat the Company has estimated, the
Company may need to make a change in its estinaatdal, which could also affect its results ofrapiens and cash flow.

Research and Development Cc

Research and development costs are expensed aethdresearch and development costs include ssland personnel-related costs,
supplies and materials, outside services, costsrducting preclinical and clinical trials, fadiis costs and amortization of intangible assets.
The Company accounts for its clinical trial cosgselstimating the total cost to treat a patientanheclinical trial, and accruing this total cost fo
the patient over the estimated treatment periodgiwtorresponds with the period over which the isevare performed, beginning when the
patient enrolls in the clinical trial. This estiradtcost includes payments to the site conductiedrtal, and patient-related lab and other costs
related to the conduct of the trial. Cost per pati@ries based on the type of clinical trial, $iite of the clinical trial, the method of
administration of the treatment, and the numbdrezftments that a patient receives. Treatment gexiary depending on the clinical trial. The
Company makes revisions to the clinical trial astimates in the current period, as clinical trialsgress.

Manufacturing and Production Cos

Manufacturing and production costs include expenskased to manufacturing contracts and expensatedeto the production of plasmid
DNA for use in the Company’s research and developirefforts. Manufacturing expenses related to mactufing contracts are deferred and
expensed when the related revenue is recognizeduBtion expenses related to the Company'’s reseattiievelopment efforts are expensec
as incurred.
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Net Loss Per Shai

Basic and diluted net loss per share has been dethpsing the weighted-average number of sharesrofnon stock outstanding during
the period. The weighted-average number of shared to compute diluted loss per share excludesissiymed exercise of stock options, and
the assumed issuance of common stock under restisovck units, or RSUs, as the effect would belduive. Common stock equivalents of
1.4 million, 1.4 million and 0.7 million for the wes ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, reésgectvere excluded from the calculati
because of their antidilutive effect.

Fair Value of Financial Instrumen

The carrying amounts of cash, cash equivalentsjaiesl marketable securities, marketable secsritieceivables, accounts payable and
accrued expenses at December 31, 2012 and 201dgresiglered to reasonably approximate fair valwabge of the short term nature of those
items.

Income Taxe

The impact of an uncertain income tax positiontmihcome tax return must be recognized at thesrgmount that is more-likely-than-
not to be sustained upon audit by the relevanhtpauthority. An uncertain income tax position witit be recognized if it has less than a 50%
likelihood of being sustained. There were no ungaixed tax benefits recorded by the Company akeoflite of adoption in 2007. There are
no unrecognized tax benefits included in the baateets that would, if recognized, affect theatiffe tax rate.

Deferred income taxes result primarily from tempypdifferences between financial and tax reportidgferred tax assets and liabilities
are determined based on the difference betweeifinduecial statement bases and the tax bases dbasse liabilities using enacted tax rates. A
valuation allowance is established to reduce ardEfdax asset to the amount that is expected tikalg than not to be realized.

Comprehensive Loss

Comprehensive loss consists of net loss and cesteainges in equity that are excluded from net I6ssnprehensive loss for the years
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, has biéected in the Statements of Comprehensive Lossufilated other comprehensive
income (loss), which is included in stockholdergugy, represents unrealized gains and losses oketadole securities.

Business Segmer

The Company operates in one business segment, vghigthin the United States, and is dedicatecesearch and development of DNA
delivery technology.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company records its compensation expense asstevith stock options and other forms of equagnpensation based on their fair
value at the date of grant using the Black-Schdeston option pricing model. Stodkased compensation includes amortization relatstbu
option awards based on the estimated grant datedfie. Stock-based compensation expense relatgddk options includes an estimate for
forfeitures and the portion that is ultimately eggel to vest is recognized ratably over the vegtigrgpd of the option. In addition, the
Company records expense related to RSUs granted lossthe fair value of those awards on the gratg.drhe fair value related to the RSUs
is amortized to expense over the vesting term afarawards. Stock-based
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compensation expense related to RSUs includestiamagss for forfeitures and is recognized over thpeeted term of the award using the
straight-line method. The expected forfeiture wtall equity based compensation is based on obddristorical patterns of the Company’s
employees and is estimated to be 11.2% annuallgdoh of the years ended December 31, 2012, 2@ 2GHtO.

The fair value of each option award is estimatedhendate of grant using the Black-Scholes-Mertaluation model using the
assumptions noted in the following table. The exgedife of options is based on the Company’s olesthistorical exercise patterns. The
expected volatility of stock options is based uffumhistorical volatility of the Company’s stockhd risk-free interest rate is based on the
implied yield on a U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issith a remaining term equal to the expected terthefoption. The dividend yield reflects
that the Company has not paid any cash dividemd® $hception and does not intend to pay any casgtiethds in the foreseeable future.

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Assumptions:

Assumed ris-free interest rat 0.80% 1.90% 2.44%
Assumed volatility 72% 68% 66%

Average expected option li 45year 4.5year 4.5year
Expected dividend yiel — —

Recent Accounting Pronounceme

In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standardsr&cor FASB, issued authoritative guidance regardbomprehensive income. This
newly issued accounting standard allows an erdityaive the option to present the components dhoetne and comprehensive income in
either one or two consecutive financial statememte. guidance eliminates the current option to mepiher comprehensive income and its
components in the statement of changes in stockhslldquity. While the new guidance changes thegm&tion of comprehensive income,
there are no changes to the components that avgmeed in net income or other comprehensive inconter current accounting guidance.
The guidance was effective for fiscal years andrint periods beginning after December 15, 2011. Chmpany adopted these provisions ¢
January 1, 2012. The adoption did not have a nadienpact on the Company’s financial position asulés of operations.

In May 2011, the FASB issued authoritative guidaregarding common fair value measurements andodisod requirements in
U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ameérnational Financial Reporting Standards. Thiglpéssued accounting standard clari
the application of certain existing fair value m@asnent guidance and expands the disclosuresiforalme measurements that are estimated
using significant unobservable inputs. This guidawas effective on a prospective basis for annuelisterim reporting periods beginning on
or after December 15, 2011. The Company adoptestthevisions as of January 1, 2012. The adopitnat have a material impact on the
Company'’s financial position or results of operatio
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2. Short-Term Marketable Securities
The following is a summary of short-term marketad®eurities classified as available-for-sale (mugands):

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Market
December 31, 201, Cost Gain Loss Value
U.S. treasuries —
$10,13¢ $ : $ $10,13¢
Governmer-sponsored enterprise securit 15,507 — 1 15,50¢
Corporate bond 11,50¢ — 8 11,50:
Certificate of deposi 49¢€ — — 49€
$37,64° $ 1 $ 9 $37,63¢
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Market
December 31, 201 Cost Gain Loss Value
U.S. treasuries $ 1,00¢ $ 2 $ — $ 1,01¢
Governmer-sponsored enterprise securit 7,20( — 2 7,19¢
Certificate of deposi 52E — — 52¢

$ 8,73¢ $ 2 $ 2 $ 8,73¢

At December 31, 2012, $17.9 million of these samsiwere scheduled to mature outside of one yideare were no net realized gains
(losses) on sales of available-for-sale securitiethe years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 an@l 2aine of these investments have been i
a continuous unrealized loss position for more thiamonths as of December 31, 2012 and 2011.

3. Long-Term Investments

As of December 31, 2012, the Company held an aucéite security with a par value of $2.5 milliomi§ auction rate security has not
experienced a successful auction since the liquisiues experienced in the global credit and abpiairkets in 2008. As a result the security i
classified as a long-term investment as it is salebito mature in 2038. The security was rated BgEStandard and Posras of December &
2012. The security continues to pay interest adongrtb its stated terms.

The valuation of the Company’s auction rate segusisubject to uncertainties that are difficuljpr@dict. The fair value of the security is
estimated utilizing a discounted cash flow analyEre key drivers of the valuation model include #xpected term, collateral underlying the
security investment, the creditworthiness of thenterparty, the timing of expected future cash #pdiscount rates, liquidity and the expectec
holding period. The security was also compared,ngssible, to other observable market data fauritezs with similar characteristics. Based
on the valuation of the security, the Company leasgnized cumulative losses of $0.5 million as e€&nmber 31, 2012, none of which were
realized during the year ended December 31, 2002 Idsses when recognized are included in invedtar@hother income. The market value
of the security has partially recovered. Includedther comprehensive income are unrealized gdi$i6.@ million and $0.3 million for the
years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respgcthgebf December 31, 2012, the Company had recbcdenulative unrealized gains
$0.4 million. The resulting carrying value of thecion rate security at December 31, 2012, was $@lbn. Any future decline in market
value may result in additional losses being recogphi
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4. Fair Value Measurements

The Company measures fair value as an exit peggesenting the amount that would be receivedit@aseasset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between margatticipants at the measurement date. As suchvdhie is a market-based measurement that
should be determined based on assumptions thaemaakticipants would use in pricing an assetatility. Fair value measurements are b
on a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which prizes the inputs used in measuring fair value devia!:

. Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted pricestive markets
. Level 2: Inputs, other than the quoted prices tivaanarkets, that are observable either direatlyndirectly; anc

. Level 3: Unobservable inputs for which there iddibr no market data, which require the reporéngty to develop its own
assumptions

Cash equivalents, marketable securities and lomg-ii@vestments measured at fair value are cladsifi¢he table below in one of the
three categories described above (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements

December 31, 201 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Certificates of deposit $ 49¢ $ — $ — $ 49¢€
Money market fund 18,50( — — 18,50(
U.S. treasurie 10,13¢ — — 10,13¢
Corporate bond — 11,50: — 11,50:
Governmer-sponsored enterprise securit — 15,50¢ — 15,50¢
Auction rate securitie — — 2,22¢ 2,22¢

$29,13: $27,00: $2,22¢ $58,36¢

Fair Value Measurements

December 31, 201 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Certificates of deposit $ 52t $ — $ — $ 52t
Money market fund 12,77¢ — — 12,77¢
U.S. treasurie 1,01(C — — 1,01(C
Governmer-sponsored enterprise securit — 7,19¢ — 7,19¢
Auction rate securitie — — 5,92¢ 5,92¢

$14,31: $ 7,19¢ $5,92¢ $27,43¢

The Company’s investments in U.S. treasury seestitiertificates of deposit and money market fiardsvalued based on publicly
available quoted market prices for identical sdmsias of December 31, 2012. The Company detesireefair value of other government-
sponsored enterprise related securities with th@&valuations provided by third parties usingmietary valuation models and analytical
tools. These valuation models and analytical tasks market pricing or similar instruments thattawth objective and publicly available,
including matrix pricing or reported trades, benelnknyields, broker/dealer quotes, issuer spreagsstded markets, benchmark securities,
bids and/or offers. The Company validates the valna received from its primary pricing vendors itsrlevel 2 securities by examining the
inputs used in that vendor’s pricing process aridrdenes whether they are reasonable and observidideCompany also compares those
valuations to recent reported trades for thosergéxss The Company did not adjust any of the vdues
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received from these third parties with respectny @f its level 2 securities at December 31, 20t valuation of the Company’s investment
in auction rate securities is more fully descrilretllote 3.

Activity for assets measured at fair value usirggiicant unobservable inputs (Level 3) is preséritethe table below (in thousands):

Balance at December 31, 20 $ 5,92¢
Total net realized gains included in earni (590
Total net unrealized gains included in other corensive incom: 47
Net transfers in and/out of Leve 3,160

Balance at December 31, 20 $ 2,22¢

Amount of total losses for the period included @t loss attributable to the change in unrealizedser losses relating to assets
still held at December 31, 20:

©®
|

The Company transferred $6.5 million of its longatenvestments into the Level 3 category duringytbar ended December 31, 2008.
Total unrealized losses of $0.5 million relate &vel 3 assets still held as of December 31, 20B&rélwere no unrealized losses related to
Level 3 assets included in earnings for the yededrDecember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

5. Other Balance Sheet Accounts
Property and equipment consisted of the followinBecember 31 (in thousands):

2012 2011
Equipment $ 19,66( $ 19,14°
Leasehold improvemen 7,992 7,992
27,65 27,13¢
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (22,36¢) (20,919

Depreciation and amortization of equipment anddbakl improvements for the years ended Decembe2@®2, 2011 and 2010, was
$1.6 million, $1.6 million and $2.0 million, respaely.

Intangible assets consisted of the following atémeber 31 (in thousands):

2012 2011
Licensed technology rights $ 4,01¢ $ 4,01¢
Patent application cos 6,42( 6,09:
10,43t 10,10¢
Accumulated amortization licensed technology ri¢ (3,93)) (3,906
Accumulated amortization patent co (3,69)) (3,33)
$ 2,818 $ 2,871

Amortization of licensed technology rights and patepplication costs for the years ended Decembg?@®12, 2011 and 2010, was $0.4
million, $0.7 million and $0.8 million, respectiyelEstimated annual amortization for these assetsdch of the years in the period from 2013
to 2017 is $0.4 million, $0.4 million, $0.3 millio80.3 million and $0.2 million, respectively.

69



Table of Contents

VICAL INCORPORATED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consisthd &dllowing at December 31 (in thousands):

2012 2011
Employee compensation $3,85¢ $3,65:
Clinical trial accruals 66C 1,681
Accounts payabl 377 351
Deferred ren 307 247
Other accrued liabilitie 427 43C

$5,62¢ $6,362

6. Significant Contracts, Grants, License and Roy#} Agreements
Contract and Grant Agreements
Astellas

In July 2011, the Company entered into licenseegents with Astellas Pharma Inc., or Astellas, inanAstellas exclusive, worldwide,
royalty-bearing licenses under certain of the Camyfsaknow-how and intellectual property to develold commercialize certain products
containing plasmids encoding certain forms of giyotein B and/or phosphoprotein 65, including Tkéas™ but excluding CyMVectin™,
Under the agreements, Astellas is responsiblenfoiioridwide development and commercializationrofpicts in the licensed field, at its
expense, and has agreed to use commercially rdalsaeféorts to develop, obtain regulatory apprdealand commercialize at least one
licensed product for use in certain immunocompreuohigatients in the licensed field in the Unitedt&tand certain other major markets. Ui
the terms of the license agreements, Astellasgaignrefundable upfront license fee of $25.0 nmillio

In 2012 the Company received a $10.0 million mdastpayment upon finalization of the trial designd Phase 3 registration trial of
TransVax™ in hematopoietic stem cell transplanipieats. The Company is also entitled to receiwditaahal cash payments potentially
totaling $95.0 million for achievement of certaifleatones through commercial launch and to receougle-digit royalties on net sales of
products. In addition, the Company has an optiarotpromote TransVax™ in the United States. Unldertérms of a supply and services
agreement entered into by the Company and Astetlake same date, the Company agreed to perfotaircelevelopment and regulatory
activities, at Astellas’ expense, and to supplgr®ed products to Astellas, at Astellas’ expersayde in development and initial
commercialization activities in the licensed field.

In August 2012 the Company amended its licensesapgly agreements with Astellas to, among othegthi extend the time period that
the Company is obligated to supply licensed prcglfat commercial use to Astellas, at Astellespense, modify the allocation of $95.0 mill
of milestone payments among certain milestonesifiraommercial launch and modify the structurehefroyalties on net sales from a fixed
double digit royalty to tiered double digit royaki.

The Company identified the deliverables at the ptica of the agreements. The Company has deterntire¢dhe license and related
know-how, the development and regulatory servicesthe drug product supply individually represesgarate units of accounting, because
each deliverable has standalone value. The béstaget! selling prices for these units of accountirsg determined based on market
conditions, the terms of comparable collaborativarggements for similar technology in the pharmécaband biotechnology industry and
entity-specific factors, such as the terms of then@any’s previous collaborative agreements, the @2zo's pricing practices and pricing
objectives and the nature of the research and oleweint services to be performed for the partnee. drfhangement consideration was allocate
to the deliverables based on the relative sellimgepmethod.
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However, the amount of allocable arrangement cenattbn is limited to amounts that are fixed oredetinable; therefore, the amount
allocated to the licenses was limited to the ex¢érash received. As a result, during the yeadedribecember 31, 2012 and 2011, the
Company recognized $10.7 million and $25.3 millimspectively, related to the license fee and khow- The Company will recognize the
amounts allocated to research and developmentssras revenues under the agreements as the davezks are delivered and as
reimbursements are received. During the years eDdedmber 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company recogfizedmillion and $2.7 million,
respectively, of revenue related to contract sesvielivered. The Company will recognize as reveheeamounts allocated to the sales of «
product when the sale of that drug product hasathe¢quired specifications and the related titid aisk of loss and damages have passed to
Astellas. During the years ended December 31, 20822011, the Company recognized $1.8 million a0 #illion, respectively, of revenue
related to drug product delivered. The Companyidgbde to receive additional cash payments upanabhievement of specified regulatory .
commercial milestones. The Company has determimatcetach of the regulatory and commercial milestaneets the definition of a milestone
and that each milestone is substantive in accosdaitt the milestone method of revenue recognithgtordingly, the Company expects to
recognize such regulatory and commercial milesfimenents as revenues under the agreements up@veactant of each milestone.

AnGes Research and Development Agree!

On May 25, 2006, the Company entered into a rekemrd development agreement, or R&D Agreement, ditGes MG, Inc., or
AnGes, whereby AnGes agreed to fund, up to celiaits, the Company’s Allovectid Phase 3 clinicaak The funding consisted of
purchases by AnGes of $10.85 million of restrictbdres of the Company’s common stock and additioodrefundable cash payments by
AnGes of up to $11.8 million. The Company and AnGage agreed to share project costs, up to cdigits, that are in excess of $22.6
million. All of the funding provided by AnGes, inding those funds used to purchase the Companyisnam stock, must be used for actual
and documented costs related to the conduct dkltbeectin ® Phase 3 trial.

Under the R&D Agreement, the Company has grantéhtees exclusive marketing rights for Allovectin dpecified countries in Asia
and AnGes has agreed to pursue regulatory apprioviisse countries, subject to receipt by the Camypof regulatory approval in the United
States. The Company has also granted AnGes ceotalty-bearing licenses to its technology and kdmw. AnGes is obligated to pay
royalties to the Company on sales of Alloveétin sjrecified countries in Asia. AnGes also obtainedrtght to receive royalties from the
Company on any commercial sales of Alloveétin ia thnited States outside specified Asian countAe$ses may also purchase supplies of
Allovectin ® from the Company for resale by AnGed\sia.

The first equity installment of $6.9 million wascedved by the Company upon execution of the R&Dekgnent and a related stock
purchase agreement. In accordance with the terrtieeaftock purchase agreement AnGes was issuetl, 33®shares of the Company’s
restricted common stock at $6.50 per share in exgéor the first installment. The second equistatiment of $3.95 million was received by
the Company during 2008. In accordance with thesesf the stock purchase agreement AnGes was idsi@dl,550 shares of the Company’s
restricted common stock at $3.56 per share in exgdéor the second installment.

Under the stock purchase agreement, the Compamgismgranted AnGes limited rights to require tleenPany to register the shares of
common stock under the Securities Act of 1933 nasraled, upon the occurrence of certain events. Am@s also agreed to certain transfer
restrictions with respect to the shares of comntookssold under the stock purchase agreement antlhther agreed to certain standstill
provisions whereby AnGes will refrain from acqugior taking certain other actions with respechim €ompany’s common stock, subject to
certain exceptions.
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The Company has received total cash installmen$d 8 million from AnGes under the agreement. Rereeof $0.0 million, $0.0
million and $2.0 million has been recognized dutiing years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and g&dkctively, based on the ratio of
actual costs incurred to total estimated costs@&rpeo be incurred.

U.S. Navy

In 2009, the Company entered into a Cooperative&eh and Development Agreement, or CRADA, withNlawal Medical Research
Center, or NMRC, to develop an HIN1 DNA vaccinenriatated with the Company’s Vaxfectin adjuvant. Untie agreement, the Company
was obligated to manufacture the vaccine and adjyup&rform preclinical studies, file an IND withet FDA, and develop a clinical
immunoassay. These activities were being funde@muad1.3 million contract with the U.S. governmé&¥VRC plans to utilize the vaccine in
a Phase 1 clinical trial which began in 2010. Tlenpany recognized $0.7 million in revenue relatethts contract in 2010.

In 2010, the Company entered into a $0.8 milliontcact with the U.S. Navy, through the Henry M.k Foundation for the
Advancement of Military Medicine, Inc., to condecPhase 1 clinical trial of the company’s Vaxfeétifiormulated DNA vaccine against
A/H1IN1 pandemic influenza utilizing the vaccine tBempany manufactured under the 2009 CRADA withNMRC. The Company
recognized $0.8 million in revenue related to tuatract in 2010.

IPPOX Foundatior

In 2010, the Company entered into an agreemenatwifacture bulk plasmid DNA vaccines against HI\dema $2.4 million contract
with the IPPOX Foundation, a collaborating instdntfor the Poxvirus Vaccine Regimen Design ledhs Centre Hospitalier Universitaire
Vaudois under the auspices of the CollaboratiorAf@S Vaccine Discovery. The Company recognizedi$gillion in revenue related to this
contract in 2010.

Government Grants

In 2008, the Company was awarded a two-year, $2l@mPhase Il Small Business Technology Trangfiemt from the National
Institute of Allergy and Infectious Diseases, oAND, of the National Institutes of Health, or NIRihe grant period was extended to allow
preclinical development to continue for a third yélzhe grant will fund the ongoing developmentted Companys immunotherapeutic plasn
DNA vaccine against herpes simplex virus type I8K-2. The Company recognized $0.0 million, $0iffiom and $0.7 million in revenue
under this grant in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respdgtive

In 2007, the Company was awarded funding for eetlyesar, $6.0 million grant from the NIAID for dewpiment of a DNA vaccine
manufacturing process with the potential to prodeeeeral million doses of vaccines in a matterayfad The grant period was extended to
allow preclinical development to continue for arfibuyear. The Company recognized $0.0 million, $8iion and $1.5 million in revenue
under this grant in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respdgtive

In-licensing Agreements
City of Hope

In 2003 the Company licensed from the City of Hopean exclusive basis various U.S. patents thatigieqprotection for CMV-related
polynucleotide based vaccines, including TransWaxnd @yMVectin™ vaccine candidates. The agreementespipon the last to expire of
the patent rights licensed by the Company under the
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agreement, unless earlier terminated as set fortiei agreement. The City of Hope may terminatetreement early, in accordance with
notice provisions set forth in the agreement, é& @ompany ceases to operate, fails to make paymiets due or materially breaches the
agreement. Subject to certain conditions, the Compaay terminate the agreement early at any tinoa ygpior written notice to the City of
Hope. The Company is also obligated to pay a loubtiadigit percentage of any payments it receivesfthe sub-license of products that
incorporate the licensed technology. The Compaiy the City of Hope $2.6 million, $2.0 million ar§id.1 million under the agreement for
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 ctasgpe.

CytRx

In 2001, the Company entered into an exclusiveeagest with CytRx which grants to the Company thlts to use or sublicense
CytRx’s poloxamer technology to enhance viral on+vgal delivery of polynucleotides in all prevergiand therapeutic human and animal
health applications, including CMV. The agreemedi@des applications for four infectious diseasecuae targets that had been licensed to
Merck and prostate-specific membrane antigen. titiath, the agreement permits the Company’s ugeytiRx’s technology to enhance the
delivery of proteins in prime-boost vaccine apgiimas that involve the use of polynucleotides. Astf the agreement, the Company made a
$3.8 million up-front payment and agreed to makeepial future milestone and royalty payments. litense fee is fully amortized.

Wisconsin Alumni Research Foundation and Univerditylichigan License Agreements

The Company has research and exclusive licenseragrdgs with the Wisconsin Alumni Research Foundatio WARF, and the
University of Michigan for continuing research diwgnse rights to technology related to DNA delixefhe agreements grant the Company
right to commercialize any product derived fromdfied technology. The fees paid by the Companyeuitidese agreements are expensed as
incurred.

Under the Merck, Sanofi, AnGes, Merial and Aqua lHeagreements, the Company is required to pay U@ of certain initial upfront
monetary payments, and a small percentage of soyadty payments, to the WARF. The CytRx, UniversifyMichigan, and other license
agreements require the Company to make paymetfis €@ompany or its sublicensees advance producisgh clinical development. For
programs developed with the support of U.S. govemirfunding, the U.S. government may have rightesuolting products without payment
of royalties.

Milestone Payment

The Company may be required to make future paynterits licensors based on the achievement of toifes set forth in various in-
licensing agreements. In most cases, these milegtayments are based on the achievement of develdmmregulatory milestones, including
the exercise of options to obtain licenses relttexpecific disease targets, commencement of vapbases of clinical trials, filing of product
license applications, approval of product licerfses the FDA or a foreign regulatory agency, angl fihrst commercial sale of a related
product. Payment for the achievement of milestameter the Company’s ilicense agreements is highly speculative and sutgez number ¢
contingencies.

The aggregate amount of additional milestone paystbat the Company could be required to pay uatief its indicense agreements
place at December 31, 2012, is approximately $bllion, of which approximately $7.2 million is ried to the Company’s independent
programs and corporate and government collabomatidrich are currently in clinical trials. These amts assume that all remaining milestc
associated with the milestone payments are méhelevent that product license approval for anthefrelated products is obtained, the
Company may be required to make royalty paymengsldition to these milestone
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payments. Although the Company believes that sdtigeomilestones contained in its in-license agres may be achieved, it is highly
unlikely that a significant number of them will behieved. Because the milestones are continge@dhgany is not in a position to
reasonably estimate how much, if any, of the padéntilestone payments will ultimately be paid. Atitthally, under the in-license
agreements, many of the milestone events are deiaterogress in clinical trials which will takevegal years to achieve.

7. Commitments and Contingencies
Facility Leases

The Company is currently leasing its facility whicas approximately 68,400 square feet of manufexguresearch laboratory and office
space. The lease expires in August 2017. The Coynipasithe option to renew the lease for three mafdit five-year periods beyond its
expiration.

The lease related to the facility is treated asgerating lease. The minimum annual rent on thiitfais subject to increases specified in
the lease. The Company is also required to paystamsurance and operating costs under the fatgiitye. The Company recognizes level
monthly rent for its facility lease over the entiease period. The monthly rent is calculated kgirsgithe total rent payments over the entire
lease period and then dividing the result by thal term of the lease. The $2.0 million differefaween the base rent paid and the rent
expensed through December 31, 2012 is recordedfaged rent in the balance sheet. Rent expendbdarears ended December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010 was $2.9 million, $2.9 million and%aillion, respectively.

At December 31, 2012, future minimum rental payraehte under the Company’s facilities lease weffelamvs (in thousands):

Year ending December 3

2013 $ 3,37:
2014 3,44(
2015 3,50¢
2016 3,57¢
2017 2,417
Thereaftel —
Total lease paymen $16,31"

Other Contingencies

The Company prosecutes its intellectual propertgtes/igorously to obtain the broadest valid scigpéts patents. Due to uncertainty of
the ultimate outcome of these matters, the impadtiture operating results or the Company’s finahcondition is not subject to reasonable
estimates.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company Ibeapme a party to lawsuits involving various nratt&he Company is unaware of
any such lawsuits presently pending against it iyhindividually or in the aggregate, are deemebleanaterial to the Company’s financial
condition or results of operations.

8. Stockholders’ Equity

As of the date of this filing the Company has de & shelf registration statement that allows iaise up to an additional $150.0 million
from the sale of common stock, preferred stockt deburities and/or warrants. Specific terms of affigring under the shelf registration
statements and the securities involved would bebéshed at the time of sale.
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In November 2012, the Company entered into an At-Wlarket Equity Offering Sales Agreement, or S&lgeeement, with Stifel,
Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated, or Stifel, unddrich the Company may issue and sell up to $5000@00f shares of its common stc
from time to time. Under the Sales Agreement, tben@any will set the parameters for the sale ofesiancluding the number of shares to be
issued and any minimum price below which sales n@ybe made. Subject to the terms and conditiotiseoBales Agreement, shares may be
sold through Stifel acting as sales agent or dir¢otStifel acting as principal, by means of oy brokers’ transactions on the Nasdaq Globe
Market, in privately negotiated transactions oreottise at market prices prevailing at the timeadé sat prices related to prevailing market
prices or at negotiated prices. Any sales othar hyamethods deemed to be an “at the market” offeais defined in Rule 415 promulgated
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,eo6t#curities Act, will require the Company’s primnsent. Stifel is obligated to use
commercially reasonable efforts in conducting salg#sities consistent with its normal trading aades practices. The Sales Agreement may
be terminated by the Company upon prior noticetif@lSr by Stifel upon prior notice to the compamy at any time under certain
circumstances, including but not limited to thewtence of a material adverse change in the company

The Sales Agreement provides that Stifel will batkenl to compensation for its services in an am@ir2.5% of the gross proceeds from
the sale of shares sold through Stifel under thesS&greement. The company has no obligation fcasgi shares under the Sales Agreement,
and may at any time suspend offers under the 3g@eement. The Company agreed in the Sales Agreeim@novide indemnification and
contribution to Stifel against certain liabilitigacluding liabilities under the Securities Actdato reimburse Stifel for certain legal expenses
incurred in connection with the Sales Agreement.

In January 2012, the Company sold 13,333,334 sludiiescommon stock in a public offering at a prio the public of $3.75 per share.
In February 2012, the Company sold an addition&l 38 shares pursuant to a partial exercise afitiderwriters’ overallotment option at a
price to the public of $3.75 per share. Net prosdeaimn the offering, after deducting underwritingabunts and commissions and other
offering expenses payable by the Company, totad@d7dmillion. All of the shares of common stock weiffered pursuant to two effective sl
registration statements.

In September 2010, the Company sold 15.0 milliares$ of its common stock in a public offering atrige to the public of $2.25 per
share. Net proceeds from the offering, after dedgainderwriting discounts and commissions androtffering expenses payable by the
Company, totaled $31.5 million. In October 201@ @ompany sold an additional 368,662 shares pursodme exercise of the underwriters’
overallotment option at a price to the public ofZper share. Net proceeds from the overallotroptibn exercise, after deducting
underwriting discounts and commissions and othieriofy expenses payable by the Company, totalegi®lion. All of the shares of
common stock were offered pursuant to an effecthadf registration statement.

In the fourth quarter of 2009 and again in thet fingarter of 2010, certain of the Company’s investexercised warrants to purchase an
aggregate of 1,967,689 and 2,365,644 shares of consinck, respectively. The Company received netgeds of $4.2 million and $5.0
million as a result of these exercises in 2009201D, respectively. The warrants were issued imeotion with the Company’s May 2009
registered direct offering.

9. Stock Based Compensation

On December 31, 2012, the Company had two stockebesmpensation plans, which are described belotal $tock-based
compensation expense of $3.3 million, $3.1 milléovd $2.6 million was recognized for the years eridecember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.
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Total stock-based compensation expense was altbtatesearch and development, manufacturing asdiption and general and
administrative expense as follows (in thousands):

Years ended December 3.

2012 2011 2010
Research and development $1,03¢ $ 947 $ 727
Manufacturing and productic 207 16t 281
General and administratiy 2,04¢ 1,994 1,62¢
Total stocl-based compensation expel $3,29( $3,10¢ $2,63¢
Cash received from options exercis $ 221 $ 212 $ 35

Stock Plan and Directors’ Stock Option Plan

The Company has a stock incentive plan, under whici00,000 shares of common stock, subject tosadpnt as provided in the plan,
are reserved for issuance to employees, non-empliiyectors and consultants of the Company. Asaxfdinber 31, 2012 there were
13,702,618 shares reserved for future issuancer tinelplan. The plan provides for the grant of iteee and nonstatutory stock options anc
direct award or sale of shares, including restiicimck. The exercise price of stock options mgsteéat least the fair market value of the
underlying common stock on the date of grant. Tgimum term of options granted under the plannsytars. Except for annual grants to
non-employee directors which vest at the next ahmegting, options generally vest 25% on the firstiversary of the date of grant, with the
balance vesting quarterly over the remaining tlyessers. The plan also limits the number of optidrag may be granted to any plan participant
in a single calendar year to 1,300,000 shares.

The Company has granted RSUs to executive officghgr executives, and employees under the staghtive plan. In 2012, 2011, and
2010 the Company granted RSUs covering an aggrefas8,456, 545,780, and 438,329 shares of constamk, respectively. These RSUs
vest 25% on the first anniversary date of the gnaith the remaining rights vesting quarterly ottee remaining three years and, once vested,
allow the participants to acquire the underlyingrels of common stock at par value. The participargsot entitled to sell or transfer any
unvested RSUs and are not entitled to vote orveatdividends on any shares of common stock coveyatie RSUs prior to the acquisition of
such shares. Granted but unvested RSUs are farf&iteermination of employment. Compensation expeakated to the RSUs for the years
ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 was apmtedy $0.8 million, $1.1 million and $0.9 milliorespectively.
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The following table summarizes stock option tratisas under the Company’s stock incentive plangHeryears ended December 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010:

Weighted Average

Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding December 31, 2009 4,300,35: $ 5.67
Grantec 1,722,20. $ 3.3¢
Exercisec (20,129 $ 1.7¢
Forfeited (816,329 $ 11.1C
Outstanding December 31, 20 5,186,10! $ 4.0€
Grantec 2,052,001 $ 2.34
Exercisec (74,38¢) $ 2.8t
Forfeited (208,619 $ 5.77
Outstanding December 31, 20 6,955,101 $ 3.51
Grantec 1,687,25 $ 3.5C
Exercisec (96,349 $ 2.2¢
Forfeited (549,449 $ 5.94
Outstanding December 31, 20 7,996,56! $ 3.3¢€
Vested and unvested options expected to vest@sadmber 31, 201 7,667,13. $ 3.37

The number of underlying shares and weighted aeeeagrcise price of options exercisable at Decer®@bg?012, 2011 and 2010, were
5,031,587 shares at $3.55, 3,895,520 shares &,%hd 2,899,922 shares at $4.84, respectivelywHighted average remaining contractual
term of options outstanding and options exercisabl@ecember 31, 2012, was 6.5 years and 5.3 yesysctively. The weighted average
remaining contractual term of vested and unvespeidios expected to vest at December 31, 2012, wlage@rs. The aggregate intrinsic value
of options outstanding and options exercisableetenber 31, 2012, was $2.4 million and $1.6 milli@spectively. As of December 31, 2C
the total unrecognized compensation cost relatethtested options was $2.1 million, which is expddb be recognized over a weighted-
average period of 1.42 years.

The weighted average grant-date fair value of ostigranted during the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2010, was $1.88,
$1.21 and $1.73 per share, respectively. The iwt@hsic value of options exercised during thergeended December 31, 2012, 2011 and -
was $121,000, $124,000 and $9,000, respectivelipekember 31, 2012, there were 4,742,239 shardalaslesfor grant under the Company’s
stock incentive plans.

A summary of the outstanding RSUs as of Decembg2@12, and changes during the year then endegsepted below:

Weighted Average

Grant-Date Fair

Shares Value per Share
Unvested at December 31, 2011 804,22 $ 2.5¢
Grantec 258,45¢ $ 3.5¢
Vested (423,45) $ 2.7
Cancellec (46,95) $ 2.7¢
Unvested at December 31, 2C 592,27: $ 2.91
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The aggregate grant-date fair value of RSUs gramteihg the years ended December 31, 2012, 20126010, was $0.9 million, $1.3
million and $1.5 million, respectively. As of Decbar 31, 2012, the total unrecognized compensatshrelated to unvested RSUs was
$0.9 million, which is expected to be recognizedrow weighted average period of 1.80 years. Theeggte grant-date fair value of shares
subject to RSUs vested during the years ended Dssxedi, 2012, 2011 and 2010, was $1.1 million, $dildon and $0.5 million, respectivel
As of December 31, 2012, there were 371,538 slwiresmmon stock underlying RSUs that were fullyteesbut the issuance of such shares
has been deferred.

10. Income Taxes

At December 31, 2012, the Company had deferredsagts of $106.7 million. Due to uncertaintiesaumding the Company'’s ability to
generate future taxable income to realize thesetgss full valuation allowance has been estahfisbeffset the net deferred tax asset.
Pursuant to Sections 382 and 383 of the InterneéRee Code, or IRC, annual use of the Company’spetating loss and credit
carryforwards may be limited in the event a cumuéathange in ownership of more than 50% occurkiwih three-year period. The Company
determined that such an ownership change occurrddecember 29, 2006, as defined in the provisidr&eation 382 of the IRC as a result of
various stock issuances used to finance the Congpapgrations. Such ownership change resultednm@rimitations on the utilization of tax
attributes, including net operating loss carryfagand tax credits. The Company estimates that.gX@illion and $33.3 million of its net
operating loss carryforwards will expire unusedem8ection 382 for federal and California purposespectively. A portion of the remaining
net operating losses limited by Section 382 becawaglable each year. The Company also estimaté$12a6 million and $0.2 million of its
research and development credits and other taxtsmeil expire unused under Section 383 for fetlaral California purposes, respectively.

a result of the Section 382 analysis completedhgu2iD12, the Company has included in the defear@sset schedule the deferred tax asset:
for net operating losses of $67.1 million and teedits of $16.4 million which were previously reneavfrom the deferred tax asset schedule.
There was a corresponding increase in the valuatlowance as a result. The company has not pe€fdrrSection 382 analysis through
December 31, 2012. There is a risk that additichahges in ownership could have occurred sincedtitat If a change in ownership were to
have occurred, additional net operating loss ardadit carryforwards could be eliminated or riestd. If eliminated, the related asset would
be removed from the deferred tax asset scheduteandbrresponding reduction in the valuation allogea The Company has not completed at
analysis of uncertain tax positions related torteeoperating losses and credits recorded as ddftax assets. If such analysis is performec
later date and an uncertain tax position is idetjfthe related deferred tax asset would be retatmng with a corresponding reduction in the
valuation allowance.

The Company’s practice is to recognize interestf@ruenalties related to income tax matters asnectax expense. The Company had
no accrual for interest or penalties on its balassiwets at December 31, 2012 and 2011, and hasaugnized interest and/or penalties in its
statement of operations for any of the years efsmémber 31, 2012, 2011 or 2010.

The Company is subject to taxation in the Uniteatet and California. The Company’s tax years f@618nd forward are subject to
examination by the United States and Californiaaathorities due to the carryforward of unutilizest operating losses and R&D credits.

Significant components of the Company’s deferredassets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 aré bistew. A valuation allowance
of $106.7 million and $6.2 million at December 20,12 and 2011, respectively,
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has been recognized to offset the net deferreddsats as realization of such assets is unceftaiaunts for the years ended December 31
were as follows (in thousands):

Deferred Tax Assets 2012 2011
Net operating losse $ 76,15: $ —
Credit carryover: 18,40¢ —
Depreciation and amortizatic 8,21( 2,60¢
Accruals and reserve 414 36¢€
Capital loss carryove 45 45
Other 3,501 3,18:
Total deferred tax asse 106,72 6,197
Less valuation allowanc (106,72) 6,197)
Net deferred tax assets | $ — $ —

The reconciliation between the provision for incai@ees and income taxes computed using the U.8rdkstatutory corporate tax rate
were as follows for the years ended December 3h¢nsands):

2012 2011 2010
Computed “expected” tax benefit $ (7,71 $(2,606€) $(10,33)
State income taxes, net of federal ber 451 (545 (2,117
Tax effect of:
Change in valuation allowance { (37,179 2,18t 12,981
Expiration of prior year credits and net operafwgses 45,38: 1,88( 1,83¢
Research and development and other tax creditgosaams (1,099 (1,469 (2,519
Stock compensatic 35¢ 297 294
Other (203) 257 (152)
Provision for income taxe $ — $ — $ —

(1) The increase in the valuation allowance relébegkior year net operating loss carryforwards tndcredits is not included in the change
in the valuation allowance. See above explana

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company taithhle federal net operating loss carryforwarflapproximately $285.8 million
and $265.0 million, respectively, which expire fr@®18 through 2032. In addition, the Company haefal research and development credit
and orphan drug credit carryforwards of $25.0 willand $23.7 million as of December 31, 2012 arid 26espectively, to reduce future
federal income taxes, if any. These carryforwasgsre from 2013 through 2032 and are subject téese\and possible adjustment by the
Internal Revenue Service. The Company also hasa@eiCalifornia state net operating loss carryfmie of approximately $261.6 million &
$234.2 million as of December 31, 2012 and 201dpeetively, which expire from 2013 to 2032. In anbafi, the Company had California
research and development credits and manufactineestment credits of approximately $8.6 milliamda58.1 million as of December 31,
2012 and 2011, respectively, to reduce future @ali& income tax, if any. Due to Section 382 an8 B@itations some of these net operating
loss carryforwards and research and developmeditemmay expire unused. The manufacturers’ investroedits expire in 2013. The
California research and development credits dceerpire.

The Company generated windfall tax benefits fromgattlement of certain stock awards. The tax litewéff be recorded as a credit to
additional paid-in capital in the year the deduttieduces income taxes payable.
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VICAL INCORPORATED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

The net operating loss carryforwards related tseheindfall tax benefits of approximately $1.2 ioiti are included in the net operating loss
carryforwards disclosed above.

The American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012, whichreattively reinstated the United States federatassh and development tax credit
from January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2013, nsasnacted into law until the first quarter ofl30Therefore the deferred tax asset and
corresponding increase in the valuation allowacdHe amount of the credit generated in 2012 mdtl be reflected until 2013.

11. Employee Benefit Plan

The Company has a defined contribution savings ptater section 401(k) of the IRC. The plan coveisstantially all employees. The
Company matches employee contributions made tplareaccording to a specified formula. The Compamyatching contributions totaled
approximately $0.2 million for each the years enget2, 2011 and 2010.

12. Summary of Unaudited Quarterly Financial Information

The following is a summary of the Company’s unaediiguarterly results of operations for the yeadedrDecember 31 (in thousands,
except per share amounts):

2012: March 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31,
Total revenues $11,46( $ 1,56¢ $ 2,17¢ $ 2,31¢
Total operating expens 11,60( 9,50z 9,95¢ 9,89t
Net income (loss 244 (7,86¢) (7,726 (7,549)
Basic net income (loss) per share (0.00 (0.09) (0.09 (0.09)
Diluted net income (loss) per share (0.00 (0.09) (0.09 (0.09)
2011. March 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31,
Total revenues $ 64¢ $ 81¢ $26,61¢ $ 1,932
Total operating expens 9,36¢ 9,26¢ 10,221 8,97¢
Net income (loss (8,699 (8,40€) 16,43 (6,619
Basic net income (loss) per share (0.12) (0.12) 0.2: (0.09)
Diluted net income (loss) per share (0.12) (0.12) 0.2z (0.09)

(1) Netincome (loss) per share is computed indepehdtamteach quarter and the full year based upspeetive shares outstandil
Therefore, the sum of the quarterly loss per shareunts may not equal the annual amounts repc
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN'S ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not applicable.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURE!
Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of DiscloserControls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our principal executffecer and principal financial
officer, we conducted an evaluation of our disctestontrols and procedures, as such term is definBdile 13a-15(e) promulgated under the
Exchange Act, as of the end of the period covesethis Annual Report on Form 10-K. The evaluatiémor disclosure controls and
procedures included a review of the disclosurerotsitand procedures’ objectives, design, impleragah and the effect of the controls and
procedures on the information generated for uskignreport. In the course of our evaluation, wegt to identify data errors, control proble
or acts of fraud and to confirm the appropriate@ctive actions, including process improvementgevieing undertaken. Based on this
evaluation, our principal executive officer andngipal financial officer concluded that our disalos controls and procedures were effective a
of the end of the period covered by this Annual&epn Form 10-K.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting, as such term is defined
in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Under the supeovisind with the participation of our managemerdiuiding our principal executive officer
and principal financial officer, we conducted amlenation of the effectiveness of our internal cohtwver financial reporting based on the
framework ininternal Control — Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe Treadway Commission, as
of December 31, 2012, the end of the period covkyetthis Annual Report on Form 10-K. Based on aalgation under the framework in
Internal Control- Integrated Frameworkour management concluded that our internal cbatrer financial reporting was effective as of
December 31, 2012.

Ernst & Young LLP, the independent registered puaticounting firm that audited the financial statats included in this Annual Rep
on Form 10K, has issued an attestation report on the effeatigs of our internal control over financial repartas of December 31, 2012. T
report is included herein.

Changes in Internal Controls

There has been no change in our internal contrai imancial reporting during the three months ehBecember 31, 2012, that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, our internal control over financigporting.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Vicaldrporated

We have audited Vical Incorporated’s internal cohtwer financial reporting as of December 31, 20d#5ed on criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by@oenmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TweadCommission (the COSO
criteria). Vical Incorporated’'s management is resgiole for maintaining effective internal contrales financial reporting, and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting included in the accomgagyManagement’s Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsipiig to express an opinion on the company’s infezaatrol over financial reporting based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedwof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@d&/nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigéfénternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etastilg and evaluating the design and operatifegtéfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre®& considered necessary in the circumstancefeéliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonablesaesuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting princip

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiincludes those policies and procedures thai€ftpin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseocfompany; (2) provide reasonable assuranc
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatg@aparation of financial statements in accor@anwith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely deteatfauinauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Vical Incorporated maintained, ihraaterial respects, effective internal controkofinancial reporting as of
December 31, 2012, based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the balance
sheets of Vical Incorporated as of December 312201 2011, and the related statements of opesatimmprehensive loss, stockholders’
equity and cash flows for each of the three yeaathé period ended December 31, 2012 of Vical Ipo@ated and our report dated February
2013 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

San Diego, California
February 15, 2013
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.

PART IlI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this item and not irt&d in Part [, Item 1 of this Annual Report on Fdr@iK is incorporated by reference
from our Proxy Statement for our 2013 Annual Megtifi Stockholders, or our Proxy Statement.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The information required by this item is incorpaaby reference from our Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OVNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDEF
MATTERS

The information required by this item is incorp@dby reference from our Proxy Statement.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
The information required by this item is incorpaaby reference from our Proxy Statement.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
The information required by this item is incorpaaby reference from our Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(2)(2) Financial Statements
The following independent auditors’ reports andhfinial statements are filed as part of this AniRegbort:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfing
Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011
Statements of Operations for each of the threesyieahe period ended December 31, 2012
Statements of Comprehensive Loss for each of ttee tyears in the period ended December 31, 2012
Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for each ofttiree years in the period ended December 31, 2012
Statements of Cash Flows for each of the threesyiaghe period ended December 31, 2012
Notes to Financial Statements

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

The schedules required to be filed by this itemeHagen omitted because of the absence of conditinahsr which they are requir
or because the required information is includethenfinancial statements or the notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits

See the list in paragraph (b) below. Each manageoogrtract or compensatory plan or arrangementiredjitio be identified by this
item is so designated in such list.

(b) Exhibits
Exhibit
Number Description of Document
3.1(3)(7) Restated Certificate of Incorporatic
3.2(ii)(2) Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Comp
3.3(1)(2) Certificate of Amendment to Restated Certificatén@brporation
3.4(i)(16 Certificate of Amendment to Restated Certificaténabrporation
4.1(7) Specimen Common Stock Certifica
10.1(38) Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan of Vicarporated
10.3(11) Form of Indemnity Agreement between the Companyindirectors and officer:
10.4(24) Vical Incorporated Na-Employee Director Compensation Poli
10.5(25) Consulting Agreement dated August 1, 2010, by atd/ben the Company and Gary A. Lya
10.6(26) First amendment dated December 17, 2010 to Congultjreement dated August 1, 2010, by and betweCbmpany
and Gary A. Lyons
10.7(27) Second amendment dated June 16, 2011 to ConsAlgregment dated August 1, 2010, by and betweegtmepany

and Gary A. Lyons
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Exhibit
Number

10.8(36)¢

10.9(37)¢
10.102

10.11(4)
10.12(1)p
10.14(1)p
10.16(5)

10.17(6)

10.19(13y

10.23(9)¢
10.26(10y

10.27(10)
10.29(17)
10.30(11y

10.32(12y
10.36(13y

10.41(14)
10.45(21)
10.46(15y

10.47(18)

10.50(19)

Description of Document
Third amendment effective December 31, 2011 to Gliting Agreement dated August 1, 2010, by and beitbe
Company and Gary A. Lyon

Fourth amendment effective June 30, 2012 to Canguitgreement dated August 1, 2010, by and betwleeCompany
and Gary A. Lyons

Fifth amendment effective January 1, 2013 to CdimguAgreement dated August 1, 2010, by and betweeiCompany
and Gary A. Lyons

Research Collaboration and License Agreement ddtgd31, 1991, between the Company and Merck & Da.,
License Agreement dated January 1, 1991, betwee@dmpany and Wisconsin Alumni Research Foundz
License Agreement dated October 23, 1992, betwee@obmpany and the Regents of University of Michi

Research, Option and License Agreement dated Sbpte2f, 1994, between the Company and Pasteur dé&érums &
Vaccins (subsequently Sanofi Paste

Amendment dated April 27, 1994, to Research Cofatian and License Agreement dated May 31, 199%yd®n the
Company and Merck & Co., In

Amendment dated November 3, 1997, to Researchl@@olition and License Agreement dated May 31, 1B6tlyeen the
Company and Merck & Co., In

Restated employment letter dated January 9, 2@GA@egen the Company and Vijay B. Sami

Amendment No. 4 dated December 7, 2001, to Rese@mtion and License Agreement between the CompadySanofi
Pasteur (formerly Pasteur Mérieux Sérums & Vacc

Lease dated January 30, 2002, between the Compariiloy Realty, L.P. a Delaware Limited Partnepsl
Restated employment letter dated January 9, 2@@&gen the Company and Alain Rolla

Amendment No. 5 dated September 23, 2002, to Rese@ption and License Agreement between the Coyngad Sano
Pasteur (formerly Pasteur Mérieux Sérums & Vacc

Fourth Amendment dated August 20, 2003, to Resdaotlaboration and License Agreement dated Mayl99,1, betwee
the Company and Merck & Co., Ir

Amendment dated May 20, 2004, to License Agreermatad January 1, 1991, between the Company ant/igmonsin
Alumni Research Foundatio

License Agreement dated May 24, 2005, between gmepany and AnGes MG, In
Restated employment letter dated January 9, 2608nt between Vical Incorporated and Jill M. Brasudf

Fifth Amendment dated September 8, 2005, to Rekdantlaboration and License Agreement dated Mayl991, by and
between Vical Incorporated and Merck & Co., |

Amendment dated February 20, 2006, to License Agee dated May 24, 2005, between the Company ai@eAMG,
Inc.

Research and Development Agreement dated May 2%, 2@tween the Company and AnGes MG,
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Exhibit
Number

10.54(8)p

10.56(20)
10.57(22)
10.58(3)¢

10.59(3)¢

10.63(28)
10.64(29)
10.65(30)
10.66(31)
10.67(32)
10.68(33)

10.69(34)
10.70(35)

10.71(39)
10.72(40)
10.73(41)

10.74(42)

23.1
31.1
31.2
32.1
32.2

Description of Document
First Amendment to Research and Development Agraearel Stock Purchase Agreement dated Septemb20Q8,
between the Company and AnGes MG,

License Agreement dated December 7, 2001, betwee@ampany and CytRx Corporatic
License Agreement dated February 14, 2006, bettfree@ompany and the Regents of the University afhigjan.

Form of Delayed Issuance Stock Purchase Electiore&kgent, as amended, under the Amended and ReStatgd
Incentive Plan (with deferral electior

Form of Delayed Issuance Stock Purchase Electiore&kgent, as amended, under the Amended and ReStatgd
Incentive Plan

U.S. License Agreement dated July 12, 2011, betwlesei€ompany and Astellas Pharma |
Ex-U.S. License Agreement dated July 12, 2011, betwlsei€ompany and Astellas Pharma
Supply and Services Agreement dated July 12, 28dttyeen the Company and Astellas Pharma
Exclusive License Agreement dated February 3, 2088yeen the Company and City of Ho
Underwriting Agreement, dated January 6, 2(

Letter agreement dated July 5, 2011, related tditense Agreement dated December 7, 2001, bettime@ompany and
CytRx Corporation

Letter agreement dated July 7, 2011, related t&Kudusive License Agreement dated February 3, 2068veen the
Company and City of Hop

Letter agreement dated July 12, 2011, relatedadt!$. License Agreement dated July 12, 2011, iwlee Company ar
Astellas Pharma Int

1st Amendment dated August 6, 2012, to U.S. Licégreement Between Vical Incorporated and Astéflaarma Inc
1st Amendment dated August 6, 2012, t-U.S. License Agreement Between Vical Incorporatedi Astellas Pharma In

1st Amendment dated August 6, 2012, to Supply ardi&s Agreement Between Vical Incorporated aniglfes Pharma
Inc.

At-The-Market Equity Offering Sales Agreement dalwa/ember 7, 2012, between the Company and Stfeblaus &
Company, Incorporate:

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourfing.

Certification of Vijay B. Samant, Chief Executivéfider, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb--Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Jill M. Broadfoot, Chief Financiélfficer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Vijay B. Samant, Chief ExecutivdfiOer, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Jill M. Broadfoot, Chief Financi&lfficer, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002
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Exhibit

Number Description of Document

101.INS XBRL Instance Documer

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutr
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurh
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

(1) Incorporated by reference to the Com[’s Registration Statement on Fori-1 (No. 3:-56830) filed on January 7, 19¢

(2) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of sthene number filed with the Company’s Quarterly &®epn Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 201

3) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of $hee number to the Company’s Annual Report on Ad+K for the year ended
December 31, 200!

4 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 &f @ompany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for thartpr ended September 30, 1994
(No. C-21088).

(5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit A of the Comy’'s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1

(6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit A of then@pany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the tpraended June 30, 1994 (No. O-
21088).

(7 Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of shene number filed with the Company’s RegistraBtetement on Form S-3 (No. 33-
95812) filed on August 15, 199

(8) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of $hene number to the Company’s Quarterly ReportaymF.0-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 200

(9) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to thenpany's Current Report on Forn-K filed on January 15, 200

(10) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & same number to the Company’s Annual Report omAd-K for the year ended
December 31, 200:

(11) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & same number to the Company’s Annual Report omHAd-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 200:

(12) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & s$ame number to the Company’s Quarterly RepoRoosm 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 200

(13) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & s$ame number to the Company’s Quarterly RepoRoosm 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 200¢

(14) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & same number to the Company’s Quarterly RepoRasm 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 200¢

(15) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 1- 10.4 to the Compar' s Current Report on Forn-K filed on October 12, 200!

(16) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 fileith the Company’s Registration Statement on F&r81(No. 333-135398) filed on
June 23, 200¢

(17) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to thenpany's Current Report on Forn-K filed on January 15, 200

(18) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & s$ame number to the Company’s Quarterly RepoRoosm 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2006

(19) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & s$ame number to the Company’s Quarterly RepoRoosm 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 200¢

(20) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99 to CytRxtwatior's Current Report on Forn-K filed on December 21, 200
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(21)
(22)

(24)
(25)
(26)

(27)
(28)
(29)
(30)
(31)
(32)
(33)
(34)
(35)
(36)

(37)
(38)
(39)
(40)
(41)
(42)

b

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to thenpany's Current Report on Forn-K filed on January 15, 200

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & same number to the Company’s Amendment No.1 om BEO-K/A to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany' s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2
Incorporated by reference to the exhibit @& same number to the Company’s Annual Report omA®-K for the year ended
December 31, 201!

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to thenpany's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to thenpany's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to thenpany' s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to the @amy’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed on January 9, 201,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to thenpany' s Current Report on Forn-K filed on January 5, 201

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to therpany' s Current Report on Forn-K filed on January 5, 201

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.4 to thenpany's Current Report on Forn-K filed on January 5, 201

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & same number to the Company’s Annual Report omHAd-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 201:

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to thenpany's Current Report on Forn-K filed on May 31, 2012

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to thenpany' s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to thenpany' s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to thenpany' s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2
Indicates management contract or compensatorygslamrangemen

Confidential treatment of certain portions of thgreement has been requested and/or received eimgpauions have been omitted and
filed separately with the SEC pursuant to Rule-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1¢
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

Date: February 15, 2013
VICAL INCORPORATED

By: /'s/ VIJAY B. SAMANT

Vijay B. Samant
President and Chief Executive Officel

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgl Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélpthe following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated.

/s/ V1JAY B. SAMANT President, Chief Executive Officer and Director February 15, 2013
Vijay B. Samant (Principal Executive Officer
/s/ JiLL M. B ROADFOOT Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,and  February 15, 2013
Jill M. Broadfoot Secretary (Principal Financial and Accounting
Officer)
/s/ R. GorboND ouGLAs, M.D. Chairman of the Board of Directors February 15, 2013

R. Gordon Douglas, M.D.

/'s/ ROBERTH. C AMPBELL Director February 15, 2013
Robert H. Campbell

/s/ GARYA.L YONS Director February 15, 2013
Gary A. Lyons

/'s/ RoBERTC. MERTON, PH.D. Director February 15, 2013
Robert C. Merton, Ph.D.

/s/ GEORGEJ. M ORROW Director February 15, 2013

George J. Morrow
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EXHIBIT 10.10

. 10380 Pacific Center Court, San Diego, CA 92121
Iw B58+5461100, FAX: 858+546.1151
www.vical.com
CONSULTING AGREEMENT

FIFTH AMENDMENT

This Fifth Amendment, to the Consulting Agreeméntnade effective as of January 1, 2013 (the “Ffthendment Effective Date”) and
is entered into by and between Vical Incorporat¥fcél”), a Delaware Corporation, having a placeboisiness at 10390 Pacific Center Couirt,
San Diego, CA 92121-4340 and Gary A. Lyons (therf€ldtant”), an individual having a principal addyes 1344 Stratford Court, Del Mar,
CA 92014.

Whereas, Vical and Consultant entered into the @iing Agreement (the “Agreement’®ffective August 1, 2010 which has been fur
amended thereby extending the Term until Decembg?312;

Whereas, Vical and Consultant wish to further amtiedAgreement to extend the Term until June 30320
Now, therefore, in consideration of the covenant$ promises contained herein, the parties agréalaws:

Exhibit A of the Agreement, a previously amended, is hereby amended to becegpia its entirety as follows:

Term:  This Agreement shall terminate on June 30, 201@sgrrenewed in a writing signed by both partiesafoadditional six (6) months.
Either party shall have the right to terminate thiseement at any time with thirty (30) d’ written notice to the other part

Except as amended hereby, all other terms and timmsliof the Agreement shall remain unchanged &atl sontinue in full force and
effect.

In witness whereof, the parties have executedrtfiis Amendment to the Consulting Agreement to fieative as of the Fifth
Amendment Effective Date.

VICAL INCORPORATED Gary A. Lyons

By: /s JLL M. B ROADFOOT By: /s]  GARY A. L YONS
Name: Jill M. Broadfoot Name: Gary A. Lyons

Title:  Senior Vice President & CF Date: January 4, 201

Date: January 4, 201



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference ifdllewing Registration Statements:

1) Registration Statements on Fori-3 (33:-181157 and 3:-164476) of Vical Incorporated, a

2) Registration Statements on Form S-8 (33-6082&0B24, 33-81602, 33-81600, 33-87972, 333-30183;80681, 333-
60293, 333-66254, 333-97019, 333-107581, 333-11,63%3-135266, 333-143885, 333-169344 and 333-1831\Bical
Incorporated

of our reports dated February 15, 2013, with resfmethe financial statements of Vical Incorporatadd the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting of Vical Incorporated, imded in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) of Vicaklirporated for the year ended
December 31, 2012.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

San Diego, California
February 15, 2013



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Vijay B. Samant, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fK/ical Incorporated;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dén#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtf@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedores designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaing, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registraisslosure controls and procedures and presentdsimeport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the registrant’s
fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affectedis reasonably likely to materially affect, ttegistrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordvelr financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 15, 2013 By: s/ Viay B. SAMANT

Vijay B. Samant
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION
[, Jill M. Broadfoot, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fK/ical Incorporated;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or enéttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, niatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedores designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig toeriod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaing, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registraisslosure controls and procedures and presentdsineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the teghid's internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the registrant’s
fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affectedis reasonably likely to materially affect, ttegistrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimiternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regrg’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invadweaanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 15, 201 By: /s/__JLL M. B ROADFOOT
Jill M. Broadfoot
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002 (18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted), Vijay B. &aimthe Chief Executive Officer of
Vical Incorporated (the “Company”), hereby certfigat, to the best of his knowledge:

1. The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for peeiod ended December 31, 2012, to which thisif@ztion is attached as
Exhibit 32.1 (the “Annual Report”), fully compliegith the requirements of Section 13(a) or Sectibfd} of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Annual Repaitly presents, in all material respects, the faaincondition of the Company at
the end of the period covered by the Annual Reawdtresults of operations of the Company for theodecovered by the Annual Report.

Dated: February 15, 2013

/sl V1JAY B. SAMANT

Vijay B. Samant
Chief Executive Officer

THIS CERTIFICATION “ACCOMPANIES” THE ANNUAL REPORTIS NOT DEEMED FILED WITH THE SEC AND IS NOT TO
BE INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE INTO ANY FILING OF THEOMPANY UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS
AMENDED, OR THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, ASVENDED (WHETHER MADE BEFORE OR AFTER THE DATE
OF THE ANNUAL REPORT), IRRESPECTIVE OF ANY GENERANCORPORATION LANGUAGE CONTAINED IN SUCH FILING. #
SIGNED ORIGINAL OF THIS CERTIFICATION HAS BEEN PRARED TO THE COMPANY AND WILL BE RETAINED BY THE
COMPANY AND FURNISHED TO THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANE COMMISSION OR ITS STAFF UPON REQUEST.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002 (18 U.S.C. 8 1350, as adopted), Jill M. Bifoat, the Chief Financial Officer of
Vical Incorporated (the “Company”), hereby certfidat, to the best of her knowledge:

1. The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for peeiod ended December 31, 2012, to which thisif@etion is attached as
Exhibit 32.2 (the “Annual Report”), fully compliegith the requirements of Section 13(a) or Sectibfd} of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Annual Repaitly presents, in all material respects, the faaincondition of the Company at
the end of the period covered by the Annual Reawdtresults of operations of the Company for theodecovered by the Annual Report.
Dated: February 15, 2013

/s/ JiLL M. B ROADFOOT
Jill M. Broadfoot
Chief Financial Officer

THIS CERTIFICATION “ACCOMPANIES” THE ANNUAL REPORTIS NOT DEEMED FILED WITH THE SEC AND IS NOT TO
BE INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE INTO ANY FILING OF THEOMPANY UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS
AMENDED, OR THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, ASVENDED (WHETHER MADE BEFORE OR AFTER THE DATE
OF THE ANNUAL REPORT), IRRESPECTIVE OF ANY GENERANCORPORATION LANGUAGE CONTAINED IN SUCH FILING. #
SIGNED ORIGINAL OF THIS CERTIFICATION HAS BEEN PRARED TO THE COMPANY AND WILL BE RETAINED BY THE
COMPANY AND FURNISHED TO THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANE COMMISSION OR ITS STAFF UPON REQUES



